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@ Punjab & Sind Bank
(A Government of India Undertaking)
Head Office: 21-Rajendra Place,
New Delhi-110 008,

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Punjab & Sind Bank will be held
at India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg, Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003 on Monday, the 30" June, 2014
at 9.00 a.m. for transacting the following business:

Item No.

1.  To discuss, approve and adopt Audited Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31t March 2014, Profit & Loss account
for the year on that date, the Report of the Board of Directors on the working and activities of the Bank for the
period covered by the Accounts and the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

2. To approve and declare final dividend for the financial year 2013-14.

3.  To elect two Directors from amongst the shareholders, other than Central Government, in respect of whom valid
nominations are received in terms of Section 9(3) (i) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with The Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and The Nationalised Banks (Management
& Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980 and Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2008 made
pursuant to Section 19 of the Act and Notification No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/ 2007-08, 47/29.39.001/
2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC. No. 95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23.05.2011 issued by
Reserve Bank of India and to pass the following resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT two Directors elected from amongst shareholders other than Central Government, in respect of
whom valid nominations were received, pursuant to Section 9(3)(i) of the Act read with Scheme and Regulations made
thereunder, be and are hereby appointed as the Directors of the Bank to assume office from the date following the date
of this meeting and to hold office until the completion of a period of three years from the date of such assumption.”
Notice is also hereby given that the Register of Shareholders and the Share Transfer Books of the Bank, will remain

closed from 14.06.2014 to 30.06.2014 (both days inclusive) in connection with (a) the Annual General Meeting;
and (b) to determine the entitlement of shareholders to receive final dividend declared, if any, at the Fourth AGM.

Further, the Bank has fixed Friday, May 30, 2014 as ‘Cut-off’ Date for ascertaining the shareholders who will be
entitled to participate (to nominate, contest and vote/e-vote) in the election of two shareholder directors of the Bank
and to ascertain the shareholder who will be entitled to participate in voting/e-voting on the agenda items of 4" AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Date: 19" May 2014 Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 )
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NOTES
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT:

The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts in respect of Iltem No. 3 of the Notice regarding Election
of Directors is annexed below.

Explanatory statements setting out the material facts in respect of agenda item No. 3

The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, inter alia, provides that where the
capital issued under Clause (C) of sub section (2 B) of Section 3 of the Act (other than to the Central Government),
is more than 16% but not more than 32% of the total paid up capital, the Shareholders would be entitled to
elect two directors from amongst themselves.

The paid up equity share capital of the Bank as on 31.03.2014 was Rs. 275.28 crores of which 81.42% is held
by the Govt. of India while 18.58% is held by others. In view of provisions in Para (Il) of Section 9(3) (i), the
Bank is required to have two directors on Board of Directors to be elected by the Shareholders from amongst
themselves. Two directors elected on 03.06.2011 from amongst the shareholders, for a period of three years,
completed their term on 02.06.2014.

The Board of Directors in their meeting dated 10.05.2014 has decided to appoint two directors from amongst
shareholders other than the Central Government, through the process of election at the Annual General Meeting
of the Bank.

A Director, so elected, shall be deemed to have assumed office from the date following that on which he/she
is elected or deemed to have been elected and will hold office for a period of three years.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY:
A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER OF THE BANK.

However, the proxy so appointed will not have any right to speak at the meeting.

No person shall be appointed as a proxy who is an officer or employee of Punjab & Sind Bank as per provisions
of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.

As per the regulation 70 (vi) of Regulations, the grantor of an instrument of proxy shall not be entitled to vote
in person at the meeting to which such instrument relates.

The Proxy Form (Annexure-'D’) in order to be effective must be received at Shares Cell, Head Office Accounts
& Audit Department, 1% floor, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi-110 008, at least Four days before the date of the
Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the closing hours of the Bank at 5.00 p.m. on 25.06.2014 (Wednesday)
together with the Power of Attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a copy of that Power
of Attorney or other authority certified as a true copy by a Notary Public or a Magistrate unless such Power of
Attorney or other authority has been previously deposited and registered with the Bank.

APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE :

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting as a duly authorized representative of a company
or any other Body Corporate which is a shareholder of the Bank, unless a copy of the Resolution appointing
him/her as a duly authorized representative, certified to be true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which
it was passed, shall have been deposited at Shares Cell, Head Office Accounts & Audit Department, 1 floor,
21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi-110 008 at least four days before the date of the Annual General Meeting, i.e.
on or before the closing hours of the Bank at 5.00 p.m. on 25.06.2014 (Wednesday).

No person shall be appointed as authorised representative who is an officer or employee of Punjab & Sind Bank
as per provisions of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.

REGISTRATION, ATTENDENCE SLIP AND ENTRY SLIP:

In order to facilitate the shareholders attending the meeting, Registration process will commence from 8.00 a.m.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 7
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on 30.06.2014, at the venue. Shareholders are requested to be present for the meeting well in advance, to
complete the Registration formalities.

For the convenience of the shareholders, attendance slip and entry pass is annexed (Annexure-'E’) to this notice.
Shareholders/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are requested to fill in, affix their signatures at the
space provided therein and surrender the same at the venue and thereafter entry slip shall be issued to them.
Proxy/Authorised Representative of a shareholder should state on the attendance slip as ‘Proxy’ or ‘Authorised
Representative’ as the case may be. Shareholders / Proxy holders / Authorised Representatives may note that
the admission to the meeting will be subject to verification / checks, as may be deemed necessary and they
are advised to carry valid proof of identity viz., Voters ID Card / Employer Identity Card / Pan Card / Passport
/ Driving license etc.

5. COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes, if any, in their Registered
Addresses, email address, bank details etc. to the Share Transfer Agent of the Bank at the following address:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.

Unit : Punjab & Sind Bank

44, Community Centre, 2™ Floor,

Naraina Industrial Area, Phase-l,

Near PVR Naraina,

NEW DELHI-110 028. Ph: 011 41410592, 41410593 email: delhi@linkintime.co.in

Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate the aforesaid changes only to their
depository participants.

6. CLOSURE OF BOOKS:

The Register of shareholders and the share transfer books of the Bank will remain closed from 14.06.2014 to
30.06.2014 (both days inclusive) in connection with (a) the Annual General Meeting and (b) to determine the
entitlement of shareholders to receive final dividend declared, if any, at the Fourth AGM.

7. CUT-OFF DATE FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASCERTAINMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS ENTITLED TO PARTICIPATE
IN THE ELECTION & VOTE/e-VOTE TO ELECT TWO DIRECTORS AND OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

Those shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders/ as Beneficial owners as furnished by
NSDL/ CDSL as at the close of business hours i.e. 30.05.2014 (hereinafter referred to as the “Cut-Off Date”)
shall be entitled to participate i.e. nominate, contest and vote/e-vote in election of directors from amongst
Shareholders other than Central Government and other agenda items.

8. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Bank in its meeting held on 10.05.2014 recommended a final dividend of Rs.
0.60 (paise sixty only) (excluding interim dividend of Rs. 1.60 per equity share declared on 16.01.2014, paid on
31.01.2014) per equity share of Rs. 10/~ each, for the financial year 2013-14. Final dividend as recommended
by the Board of Directors, approved and declared at the 4" Annual General Meeting will be paid as under:

a. To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in electronic form as per the data as may be made available
by the National Securities Depository Services Ltd. (NSDL) / Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL)
as of the close of business hours on 13.06.2014.

b. To all the members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transfers, if any,
in respect of transfer requests lodged with the Bank/ Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, i.e., Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd. on or before the close of business hours, i.e. 5.00 p.m. on 13.06.2014.

c. The final dividend will be distributed to the eligible shareholders within thirty days from the date of 4%
Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 9



e v ws e o

9.

10.

1.

arATer aifear/sIe ud i uRador:

F. AaIS ®U # ¥ Y Al RRERS! B vag gRT gfud fear siar & 6 S9e defta feufirey @ §
Ul 4 fIarUll B 9 §IRT ST BT I B & (ol¢ SUANT H AT SIMQAT | dF 3feral §HDBT I(oRe
T4 ¥R BEIARY Yoiwe , Solagl=d wd H ¥R @ aTel 9awll 9 |19 &1 o Ud {6l 3Ry &R $Rars
TE BT SN o faavoli srrar da orferasr § Safer 8 | U uRaciai &1 o hadl 9o fSuifores) FeHni
P& & ST ARy |

@, HIft® FI A WR [ dTel FaRI A R 2 & Al 39 ud qA1 98 [9avor § o1 gRacH 21 a1 sq!
T TehTel 9 B YRR 3R IR SR Yol i forep iersy sfear wifar. @1 ¢ | saagifve wu #
R I el R DI 04 Id H ¥ JHR & uRad+ &1 Ga-T1 3G &1 9+ Haferd Fgvrh feufored
DI I ARY | I 1qaT dF & RORER TG AR EATARYT Tolve I AT o Dl eI 8T 2 |

T, Tl ¥ R © & 9 9% 311 % & IR U9 IR AR Goie & 12 fH 1 7R & 03 a8R
H I Heferd Bifera Hax (ST forw e U IR Hifdd wu # ®) 3R 310+ SIS/ uTES 3 S Hax
(7@ forg R g IR gacIe U | €) 6T 3avd Scoikd N |

IS A, Il DI A

JRGRG FUAT &JFYdd Al o & dfFT dul (SuHAl &1 o9 d ofcawon  iffem 1980
M S HoRa®HU HHRI HUAT (SUHHA BT 3o g favon) a2 facda dxer fafdy (Fenes) srfafaas 2006 &
HeAoR AEWS &85 & 91 & forg g8 fard § f& 91 S e an] 89 & q1¢ ugel & 981 # 917 W8
g IR BT & / AQMET AHRT @RI H TAT $60 12T 8 I AATIH AN B & 918 “3facd AT FTd
» 3 AR e |

J<h “ STET AT @I » H AR MR T2AT SR 7 fIfr & A1 a9 Y 7afer g 9901 g3 A_Taha/ara iy
1 T e Rren d wReror (R 7 AR fBa ST o1Ufera & T2 s Ieand § 31T HBUs & U $ls
qraT UG A8l fehar S |

IfeserT BT A BT

S TRIRUR®T & U Us ¥ 31fed @il H U TRy A9 H R 2, I ARy © [ I ford geq sfear

1.1, (MR E1T.) B IR YHIU-UAT & 12T U Widl & ook BifeR & H1ef fad o) difd 96 Ydb @t 7 94
gTRT IRRT BT TG T H Fe 8l I& | T Haell aad HRATS T+ @ 918, FaRl & IR FHA0T U5

g7 IHY ofreT fau S |

12. T GIRPT T IRIE:

13.

FYAT AE BN P a1 Tr= dos 3 a1 RUIC &1 afcai faRka =27 &1 STe (o1 IRRERS] /AT a1/
iRrpd ARl & Ry € 6 9 doo H aftie Ruid o1 au+ U Hrer od 31y |

IR GRPI & FATIPIE:

Jfefd & arT 32 3) H Ry MU g@u™l B AT B IGAR ds WRBR B IcAdl, b Bl Pl Al
YRRYRS 30 §RT TRP WRI, §F & G MR gRPI & Hol AR ST 10 FRrerd § 1R IR, 3@ ©
@ 98 FATIGR ST U= T2 8N |

QY& &I g

14. §o & oRere & & F gF T 3 HTIP HoTAY

10

JefFTH B arRT 9 (3 Q) H A TS Al B IR, IMdeH Pl 96 Pl WRARS BT ALY AR S
e & @ (1) SYURT (3) @& SIERN # f43erd AT ST Aredn 81, 81 @1

(@) forae! Ama: e a1 ifrs Ame # a9y ISR a1 Ia'Re IgHd BT a1y : -
- SN gd UTAT referawer
aiffe RuYE 2013-14




10.

11.

12.

13.

Punjab & Sind Bank e

RIASEE

DIVIDEND MANDATE / CHANGE OF ADDRESS

a. Beneficial Owners holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that Bank particulars registered
against their respective depository account will be used by the Bank for payment of dividend. The Bank or
its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent can not act on any request received directly from the shareholders
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandate. Such changes are to
be advised only to their Depository Participant.

b. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address, bank details
immediately to the Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Shareholders
holding shares in electronic form must send the advice about change in address, bank details to their
respective Depository Participant only and not to the Bank or Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

c. Shareholders are requested to invariably quote their respective folio number/s (for those holding shares in
physical form) and their respective DP ID / Client ID number (for those holding shares in electronic form)
in any correspondence with the Bank or Bank’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

UNPAID DIVIDEND, IF ANY

Shareholders are requested to carefully note that pursuant to amendment in Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 vide “The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
And Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act, 2006, Public Sector Banks are required to transfer amount
remaining unpaid/unclaimed in dividend accounts of earlier years on the commencement of the aforesaid Act,
and also dividend declared after the commencement of the said Act, to “Unpaid Dividend Account”.

The amount transferred to the said “Unpaid Dividend Accounts” and remaining unclaimed/unpaid for a period
of seven years from the date of transfer is required to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection
Fund established and thereafter no claim for payment shall lie in respect thereof to the Bank or the Fund.

CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:

The shareholders who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio, are requested to
intimate to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (RTA), the ledger folio of such accounts together with the share certificate(s)
to enable the Bank to consolidate all the holdings into one folio. The share certificate(s) will be returned to the
Shareholders after making necessary endorsement in due course.

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS:

Shareholders / Proxy holders / Authorised Representatives are requested to bring their copies of the Annual
Report to the Annual General Meeting. No copy of the Annual report shall be provided at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting.

VOTING RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS:

In terms of the provisions of Section 3 (2E) of the Act, no shareholder of the Bank, other than the Central
Government shall be entitled to exercise voting rights in respect of any shares held by him / her in excess of
ten per cent of the total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Bank.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS:

14. QUALIFICATION REQUIRED FOR BEING ELECTED AS A DIRECTOR OF THE BANK

In terms of Section 9(3-A) of the Act, a candidate being a Shareholder of the Bank and who desires to be elected
as Director under the clause (i) of Sub section (3) of the Act shall -

A)  have special knowledge or practical experience in respect of one or more of the following matters namely:-

- agriculture and rural economy;

- banking
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- co-operation;
- economics;
- finance
- law;
- small-scale industry;
- any other matter the special knowledge of and practical experience in which, would, in the opinion of the
Reserve Bank be useful for the Bank.
B) represents the interest of depositors; or
C) represent the interest of farmers, workers and artisans.
In terms of Section 9(3AA) of the Act a candidate being a shareholder of the Bank and desires to be a Director
of the Bank should possesses ‘Fit and Proper’ status pursuant to guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India

in this regard. Further the elected Director shall also execute the deed of covenant and is required to furnish
annual declarations/ changes, if any, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

DISQUALIFICATION FROM BEING ELECTED AS A DIRECTOR OF THE BANK:

A. In terms of Clause 10 of the Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980,
a person shall be disqualified for being appointed as, and for being a Director:

a) if he has at any time been adjudicated as insolvent or has suspended payment or has compounded with
his creditors ; or

b) if he has been found to be of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent Court; or

¢) if he has been convicted by a criminal court of an offence which involves moral turpitude; or

d) if he holds any office of profit under any Nationalized Bank or State Bank of India constituted under
Sub-Section (1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act, 1955 or any Subsidiary Bank as defined
in Section 3 of the State Bank of India (Subsidiary Banks) Act, 1959, except for holding the post of a
whole-time director, including the Managing Director and directors nominated under Clause (e) and (f)
of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act from among the employees of the Bank.

B. If he is not found to be ‘Fit and proper’ person in terms of Notification No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/
2007-08, 47/29.39.001/ 2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC.No 95/29.39.001/2010-11
dated 23.05.2011 and/or other guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

16. TENURE OF DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to Clause 9(4) of the Scheme, an elected director shall hold office for three years and shall be eligible
for re-election.

Provided that no such director shall hold office continuously for a period exceeding six years.
Attention of Shareholders is invited to Section 9 (3B) of the Act, on the right of Reserve Bank of India to
remove a director so elected under Section 9 (3) (i) of the said Act, who does not fulfill the requirements of
Section 9 (3A) & (3AA) of the said Act.

17. NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES FOR ELECTION:

1. No nomination of a candidate for election as a Director shall be valid unless,

a. He/she is a shareholder holding not less than 100 (One hundred) shares of the Bank as on, the 30.05.2014
being the cut-off date for participating in the election ;

b. He/she is, as on 14.06.2014, being the last date for receipt of nomination not disqualified to be a Director
under the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1980 or under The Nationalised
Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980 / RBI;
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c. the nomination is in writing signed by at least one hundred shareholders entitled to elect Directors under
the Act or by their duly constituted attorney, provided that a nomination by a shareholder who is a company
may be made by a resolution of the Directors of the said company and where it is so made, a copy of
the resolution certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed shall be
dispatched to the Head Office of Bank addressed to the Assistant General Manager, Head Office Shares
Cell, Accounts & Audit Department, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi, such copy shall be deemed to be a
nomination on behalf of such company;

d. the nomination is accompanied or contains a declaration signed by the candidate before a Judge, Magistrate,
Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Gazetted Officer or any officer of the Reserve Bank of India
or any Nationalized bank, that he/she accepts the nomination and is willing to stand for election and that
he/she is not disqualified under the Act or the Scheme or these Regulations.

2. No nomination shall be valid unless it is received with all the connected documents complete in all respect,
at the Head Office of the Bank addressed to the Assistant General Manager, Head Office Shares Cell,
Accounts & Audit Department, 21, Rajendra Place, New Delhi 110 008 on working day not less than 14
days, before the date fixed for the meeting i.e., on or before the closing of business hours of the Bank on
14 June 2014 (2.00 p.m.).

18. SUBMISSION OF NOMINATION FORMS:

Shareholders desirous of contesting the election of Directors of the Bank from amongst the Shareholders other
than the Central Government should submit the following:

a. duly filled in ‘Declaration Form’ as per format (Annexure-’A’) attached along with testimonials viz., bio-data,
certificates of educational qualification(self attested), experience;

b. “Declaration and Undertaking by Candidate” as per format (Annexure-‘B’) attached pursuant to Fit & Proper
Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and required attachments thereat; and

c.  minimum of 100 Nomination Forms, as per format (Annexure-'C’) obtained from shareholders of the Bank
who are entitled to nominate, in the format(s) annexed to this Notice, in a sealed envelope and super
scribed “Nomination for Shareholder Director”, to :

The Assistant General Manager
Punjab & Sind Bank

Head Office, Shares Cell
Accounts & Audit Department,
21 Rajendra Place,
NewDelhi-110008

on any working day not less than fourteen days before the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting i.e., on or
before the closing hours of the Bank i.e., 2.00 p.m. on Saturday, 14 June, 2014 failing which, the nominations
are liable to be rejected.

19. AVAILABILITY OF LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS:

To enable the Shareholders to contest the election, a copy of the list of shareholders as mentioned in Regulation
64 of Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations 2008 will be made available at the Head office
of the Bank, from 5" June 2014 onwards for purchase by Shareholders on payment of Rs. 50,000/- [Rupees
fifty thousand only] by demand draft in favour of Punjab & Sind Bank, payable at New Delhi. However, a
shareholder may make extracts of any entry in the register or computer prints free of charges or if he requires
a copy or computer prints of the register or any part thereof, the same will be supplied to him on pre-payment
at the rate of Rs.5/- for every 1000 words or fractional part thereof required to be copied.

20. SCRUTINY OF NOMINATIONS:

a) Nominations shall be subjected to Scrutiny by Nomination Committee of the Board in terms of the fit and
proper Guidelines dated 01.11.2007 issued by the RBI on Monday, the 16 June 2014, the first working
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day following the date fixed for receipt of the nominations and in case any nomination is not found to be
valid, the same shall be rejected after recording the reasons therefore.

b) If there are only two valid nominations for the vacancies to be filled by election, the candidate(s) so nominated
shall be deemed to be elected forthwith & they will assume office from the next day and his/her name &
address shall be published. In such an event there shall not be any election at the meeting and Agenda
Item No. 3 shall be withdrawn.

¢) In the event of an election being held, if valid nominations are more than the number of directors to be
elected, the candidate polling the majority of votes shall be deemed to be elected and they will assume
office from the next day and his/her name & address shall be published.

d) If there is any dispute, the same will be settled as per Regulation 67 of the Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares
and Meetings) Regulations, 2008.
21. WITHDRAWAL OF NOMINATIONS:

If any candidate desires to withdraw his/her nomination, he/she would be entitled to do so at any time prior to
closing hours of the Bank on Saturday 28" June, 2014.

SHARES Cell

In order to facilitate quick and efficient service to the shareholders, the Bank has set up a Shares cell at its Head
Office, New Delhi, Shareholders may contact this Cell at the under mentioned address for any assistance :

The Company Secretary,

Punjab & Sind Bank,

Head Office, Shares Cell,

Accounts & Audit Department,

21 Rajendra Place, 1* floor,

New Delhi-110008

Telephone : 011-25782926, 25812922

OTHER INFORMATION
Shareholders may kindly note that no gift/gift coupons will be distributed at the meeting.

Due to strict security reasons, brief cases, eatables and other belongings are not allowed inside the hall. Persons
attending the meeting are, therefore, advised to make their own arrangements for the safe keeping of their articles.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place : New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Date: 19" May 2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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Punjab & Sind Bank

GIST OF PROVISIONS OF RELEVANT ACTS, SCHEME AND REGULATIONS ETC.

In terms of Section 9 (3) (i) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, Shareholder
Directors shall have to be appointed depending upon the extent of capital issued under Clause (c) of Sub-Section 2
(B) of Section 3. The relevant Sections of The Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertaking) Act, 1980, Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme,
1980 and relevant regulations of the Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2008 respectively in
this regard, are reproduced below for the information of the shareholders.

THE BANKING REGULATION ACT, 1949
Prohibition of Common Directors:

16 (1) No banking company incorporated in India shall have as a Director in its Board of Directors, any person who
is a Director of any other Banking Company.

Restrictions on loans and advances:
Section 20:

1.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 77 of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), no
banking company shall —

a) grant any loans or advances on the security of its own shares, or

b) enter into any commitment for granting any loan or advance to or on behalf of

i) any of its directors

ii) any firm in which any of its directors is interested as partner, manager, employee or guarantor, or

iii) any company not being a subsidiary of the banking company or a company registered under Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), or a Government Company of which or the subsidiary or the holding company of
which any of the directors of the banking company is a director, managing agent, manager, employee or guarantor
or in which he holds substantial interest, or

iv) any individual in respect of whom any of its directors is a partner or guarantor.

2. Where any loan or advance granted by a banking company is such that a commitment for granting it could not
have been made if Clause (b) of Sub-Section (1) had been in force on the date on which the loan or advance was
made, or is granted by a Banking Company after the commencement of Section 5 of the Banking Laws (Amendment)
Act, 1968 (58 of 1968), but in pursuance of a commitment entered into before such commencement, steps shall
be taken to recover the amounts due to the banking company on account of the loan or advance together with
interest, if any, due thereon within the period stipulated at the time of the grant of loan or advance, or where no
such period has been stipulated, before the expiry of one year from the commencement of the said Section 5.
Provided that the Reserve Bank may, in any case on any application in writing made to it by the Banking Company
in this behalf, extend the period for the recovery of the loan or advance until such date, not being a date beyond
the period of three years from the commencement of the said Section 5 and subject to such terms and conditions
as the Reserve Bank may deem fit.

Provided further that this Sub-Section shall not apply if and when the director concerned vacates the office of the
director of the banking company, whether by death, retirement, resignation or otherwise.

3.  No loan or advance, referred to in Sub-Section (2), or any part thereof shall be remitted without the previous
approval of the Reserve Bank, and any remission without such approval shall be void and of no effect.

4.  Where any loan or advance referred to in Sub-Section (2), payable by any person, has not been repaid to the banking
company within the period specified in that Sub-Section, then such person shall, if he is a director of such banking
company on the date of the expiry of the said period, be deemed to have vacated his office as such on the said date.

Explanation — In this Section

a) “Loan or advance” shall not include any transaction which the Reserve Bank may, having regard to the nature
of the transaction, the period within which, and the manner and circumstances in which, any amount due on
account of the transaction is likely to be realized, the interest of depositors and other relevant considerations,
specify by general or special order as not being a loan or advance for the purpose of this section.
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b) “Director” includes a member of any board or committee in India constituted by a banking company for the
purpose of managing, or for the purpose of advising it in regard to the management of, all or any of its affairs.

If any question arises whether any transaction is a loan or advance for the purpose of this section, it shall be
referred to the Reserve Bank, whose decision thereon shall be final.

THE BANKING COMPANIES (ACQUISITION AND TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS) ACT, 1980
Composition of the Board of Directors:

Section 9 (3) (i): Where the capital issued under clause (c) of sub-section (2B) of Section 3 is: -
(I) Not more than sixteen per cent of the total paid-up capital, one Director.
(II) More than sixteen per cent but not more than thirty two percent of the total paid-up capital, two Directors.

(I11) More than thirty two percent of the total paid-up capital, three Directors. to be elected by the shareholders,
other than the Central Government, from amongst themselves:

Provided that on the assumption of charge after election of any such Directors under this clause, equal number
of Directors nominated under clause (h) shall retire in such manner as may be specified in the scheme.

Obligation as to Fidelity and Secrecy:

Section 13 (2): Every Director, member of a local board or a committee, or auditor, advisor, officer or other
employee of a corresponding new bank shall, before entering upon his duties, make a declaration of fidelity
and secrecy in the form set out in the Third Schedule

NATIONALISED BANKS (MANAGEMENT AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) SCHEME, 1980

Clause 11: Vacation of Office of Director, etc.

i) If a Director becomes subject to any of the disqualification as specified in Clause 10, or is absent without
leave of the Board for more than three consecutive meetings thereof, he shall be deemed to have vacated
his office as such and thereupon his office shall become vacant.

i)  The Chairman or a whole-time Director including the Managing Director or a Director referred to in Clause
(b) or Clause (c) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act may resign his office by giving notice thereof in
writing to the Central Government and on such resignation being accepted by that Government shall be
deemed to have vacated his office; and any other Director may resign his office by giving notice thereof in
writing to the Central Government and such resignation shall take effect on the receipt of the communication
of the resignation by the Central Government.

iii) Without prejudice to the provision of the foregoing Sub-Clauses, the office of the Director referred to in Clause
(e) or Clause (f) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act shall become vacant as soon as the Director ceases
to be a workman or an employee, other than a workman of the Nationalized Bank of which he is a Director

iv) Where any vacancy occurs in the office of a Director, other than an elected director, it shall be filled in
accordance with Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

Clause 11A: Removal from Office of an Elected Director:

The Shareholders, other than the Central Government, may, by a resolution passed by the majority of votes of
such Shareholders holding in aggregate, not less than one-half of the share capital held by all such Shareholders,
remove any Director elected under Clause (i) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 and elect instead of another person
to fill the vacancy.

Clause 11 B: Filling of Vacancy in the Office of an Elected Director:

1.

Where any vacancy occurs before the expiry of the term of office of a elected Director, the vacancy shall be
filled in by election; Provided that where the duration of vacancy is likely to be less than six months, the vacancy
may be filled in by the remaining directors.

A person elected or co-opted as the case may be, under Sub-Clause (1) shall hold office for the un-expired
portion of the term of his predecessor.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Disclosure of Interest by Directors:

Clause 12 (8): A Director who is directly or indirectly concerned or interested in any contract, loan, arrangement or
proposal entered into or proposed to be entered into by or on behalf of the Nationalized Bank shall, as soon as possible
after the relevant circumstances have come to his knowledge, disclose the nature of his interest to the Board and shall
not be present at the meeting of the Board when any such contract, loan, arrangement or proposal is discussed unless
his presence is required by the other Directors for the purpose of eliciting information and no Director so required to be
present shall vote on any such contract, loan, arrangement or proposal.

Provided that nothing contained in this Sub-Clause shall apply to such Director by reason of his being:

i) A shareholder (other than a Director) holding not more than two percent of the paid up capital in any
public company as defined in the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), or any corporation established by or
under any law for the time being in force in India or any Co-operative Society, with which or to which the
nationalized Bank has entered into or made or proposes to enter into or make, a contract, loan, arrangement
or proposal, or

ii) An officer or other employee of the nationalized bank, if he is a Director referred to in Clause (e) or Clause
(f) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

PUNJAB & SIND BANK (SHARES AND MEETINGS) REGULATIONS, 2008

Regulation 10. Exercise of Rights of Joint Holders:

If any share stands in the names of two or more persons, the person first named in the register shall, as regards voting,
receipt of dividends, service of notices and all or any other matters connected with Punjab & Sind Bank except the
transfer of shares, be deemed to be sole holder thereof.

MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Regulation 61. Voting at General Meeting.

i) At any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall, unless a poll is demanded, be decided
on a show of hands.

ii) Save as otherwise provided in the Act, every matter submitted to the general meeting shall be decided by a
majority of votes.

iii) Unless a poll is demanded under sub-regulation (i), a declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution
on show of hands has or has not been carried either unanimously or by a particular majority and an entry to
that effect in the books containing the minutes of the proceedings, shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion of the votes cast in favour of, or against such resolution.

iv) Before or on the declaration of the result of the voting on any resolution on a show of hands, a poll may be
ordered to be taken by the Chairman of the meeting of his own motion, and shall be ordered to be taken by
him on a demand made in that behalf by any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy and
holding shares in the Bank which confer a power to vote on the resolution not being less than one fifth of the
total voting power in respect of the resolution.

v) The demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the person or persons who made the demand.
vi) A poll demanded on a question of adjournment or election of Chairman of the meeting shall be taken forthwith.

vii) A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time not being later than forty-eight hours from
the time when the demand was made, as the chairman of the meeting may direct.

viii) The decision of the Chairman of the meeting as to the qualification of any person to vote, and also in case of
a poll, as to the number of votes any person is competent to exercise shall be final.
Regulation 63. Directors to be elected at General Meeting:

i) A Director under Clause (i) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act shall be elected by the Shareholders on
the register, other than the Central Government, from amongst themselves in the General Meeting of Punjab &
Sind Bank.
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i) where an election of a Director is to be held at any General Meeting, the notice thereof shall be included in
the notice convening the meeting. Every such notice shall specify the number of Directors to be elected and
the particulars of vacancies in respect of which the election is to be held.

Regulation 64. List of Shareholders:

i) For the purpose of election of a Director under Sub-Regulation (i) of Regulation 63 of these regulations, a list
shall be prepared of shareholders on the register by whom the Director is to be elected.

ii) The list shall contain the names of the shareholders, their registered addresses, the number and denoting numbers
of shares held by them with the dates on which the shares were registered and the number of votes to which
they will be entitled on the date fixed for the meeting at which the election will take place and copies of the
list shall be available for purchases atleast three weeks before the date fixed for the meeting at a price to be
fixed by the Board or the Management Committee, on application at the Head Office.

Regulation 67. Election Disputes:

i) If any doubt or dispute shall arise as to the qualification or disqualification of a person deemed or declared
to be elected, or as to the validity of the election of a director, any person interested, being a candidate or
shareholder entitled to vote at such election, may, within seven days of the date of the declaration of the result
of such election, give intimation in writing thereof to the Chairman and Managing Director/Executive Director of
Punjab & Sind Bank and shall in the said intimation give full particulars of the grounds upon which he doubts
or disputes the validity of the election.

i) On receipt of an intimation under Sub-Regulation (i), the Chairman and Managing Director or in his absence,
the Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank shall forthwith refer such doubt or dispute for the decision of a
committee consisting of the Chairman & Managing Director or in his absence, the Executive Director and any
two of the Directors nominated under Clause (b) and (c) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Act.

iii) The committee referred to in Sub-Regulation (ii) shall make such enquiry as it deems necessary and if it finds
that the election was a valid election, it shall confirm the declared result of the election or, if it finds that the
election was not a valid election, it shall, within 30 days of the commencement of the enquiry, make such order
and give such directions including the holding of a fresh election as shall in the circumstances appear just to
the committee.

iv)  An order and direction of such committee in pursuance of this regulation shall be conclusive.

VOTING RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Regulation 68. Determination of Voting Rights:

i) Subject to the provisions contained in Section 3 (2E) of the Act, each shareholder who has been registered as a
shareholder on the date of closure of the register prior to the date of a General Meeting shall, at such meeting,
have one vote on show of hands and in case of a poll shall have one vote for each share held by him.

i)  Subject to the provisions contained in Section 3 (2E) of the Act, every shareholder entitled to vote as
aforesaid who, not being a company, is present in person or by proxy or who being a company is present
by a duly authorized representative, or by proxy shall have one vote on a show of hands and in case
of a poll shall have one vote for each share held by him as stated hereinabove in Sub-Regulation (i).
Explanation — for this Chapter, “Company” means any body corporate.

iii) Shareholders of the Bank entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person
(whether a shareholder or not) as his proxy to attend and vote instead of himself; but a proxy so appointed shall
not have any right to speak at the meeting.

Regulation 69. Voting by Duly Authorised Representative:

i) A shareholder, being the Central Government or a company, may by a resolution, as the case may be, authorize
any of its officials or any other person to act as its representative at any General Meeting of the shareholders
and the person so authorized (referred to as a ‘duly authorized representative’ in these regulations) shall be
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ERE

entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the Central Government or company which he represents,
as if he were an individual shareholder of Punjab & Sind Bank. The authorization so given may be in favour
of two persons in the alternative and in such a case any one of such persons may act as a duly authorized
representative of the Central Government / Company.

No person shall attend or vote at any meeting of the shareholders of Punjab & Sind Bank as the duly authorized
representative of a company unless a copy of the resolution appointing him as a duly authorized representative
certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed shall have been deposited
at the Head Office of the Punjab & Sind Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for the meeting.

Regulation 70. Proxies:

i)

i)

iii)
iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless, in the case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him or
by his attorney duly authorized in writing or in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the Shareholder first
named in the register or his attorney duly authorized in writing or in the case of the body corporate signed by
its officer or an attorney duly authorized in writing;

Provided that an instrument of proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any shareholder, who is, for any reason,
unable to write his name, if his mark is affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-
Registrar of Assurances or other Government Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Punjab & Sind Bank.

No proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped and a copy thereof deposited at the Head Office of Punjab &
Sind Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for the meeting, together with the power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a copy of that power of attorney or other authority, certified
as a true copy by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, unless such a power of attorney or the other authority is
previously deposited and registered with Punjab & Sind Bank .

No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless it is in Form ‘B’.
An instrument of proxy deposited with Punjab & Sind Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one
form shall be executed.

The grantor of an instrument of proxy under this regulation shall not be entitled to vote in person at the meeting
to which such instrument relates.

No person shall be appointed as duly authorized representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee
of Punjab & Sind Bank.
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e-Voting
e-Voting for the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Punjab & Sind Bank

Pursuant to section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rules 20 of Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 new provisions has been introduced whereby every listed company or a company having not less than
one thousand shareholder is required to provide to its members facility to exercise their right to vote at general
meetings by electronic means. The Bank shall provide facility of e-Voting, through CDSL, to the shareholders for the
Fourth Annual General Meeting., in terms of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

(A)

In case of members receiving e-mail:

i)

If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and casted your vote
earlier for EVSN of any Company, then your existing login id and password are to be used.

ii) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab to cast your votes.

iv) Now, select the Electronic Voting Sequence Number - “EVSN” along with “Punjab and Sind Bank” from the

drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

v) Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

For Members holding shares For Members holding shares
in Demat Form in Physical Form

User ID For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID Folio Number registered
followed by 8 Digits Client 1D with the Company
For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department when prompted by the

system while e-voting (applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said

demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the
Details# said demat account or folio.

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use

the default number: <ABCDE1234F> in the PAN field.

# Please enter any one of the details in order to login.

Vi

vii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will th en reach directly the EVSN selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily change their login password in the new password field. The new password has to be minimum
eight characters consisting of at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and
a special character(@ # $ %& *). Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Kindly note that this changed password
is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions for the Company or any other Company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.

viii) Click on the relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

iX)

On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option “YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
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x) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

xi) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
and accordingly modify your vote.

xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(I) In case of members receiving the physical copy of Notice of AGM [for members whose e-mail IDs are not

registered with the company/ depository participant(s) or requesting physical copy]l:

Please follow all steps from sl. no. (ii) to sl. no. (xii) above, to cast vote.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to https:/www.
evotingindia.co.in and register themselves, link their account which they wish to vote on and then cast their
vote. They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the vote.

The electronic voting period commences on 24th June, 2014 (9:00 am) and ends on 25th June, 2014 (6:00 pm).
The electronic voting facility will be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. During this period the shareholders
of the Bank, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 30th
May, 2014, may cast their vote electronically.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of
the Bank as on the cut-off date of 30th May, 2014;

Members may cast their votes separately for each business to be transacted in the Annual General Meeting. For
example, a member may cast his vote in favour of some resolution and may cast not in favour/ against some
resolution. A member may also elect not to vote on some resolution. However, in case of item no. 3 (election
of two directors), vote be casted for not more than two directors otherwise the votes casted shall be treated as
invalid.

(F) Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the member, he shall not be allowed to change or modify it subsequently;

(G) Member can log in any number of times till he has voted on all the resolutions or till the end of the voting period

(H)

(i.e. till the last date of receipt of e-votes), whichever is earlier.

Members can opt only one mode for voting i.e. either by Physical Ballot or e-voting. If member opts for e-voting,
then he does not vote by Physical Ballot also and vice versa. However, in case member(s) cast their vote both via
Physical Ballot and e-voting, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by Physical Ballot
will be ignored.

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Kochar, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 10818) has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
the electronic voting process, who shall prepare and submit its report of the votes cast in favour or not in favour/
against, to the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting within 3 business days from the date of conclusion of
the electronic voting period;

The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Bank and on the
website of CDSL within 2 business days of the decision on the resolution at the AGM;

Subject to receipt of the sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual
General Meeting;

Notice of the meeting is also displayed at www.psbindia.com

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or call CDSL Toll free No. 022-30249561 or to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent,
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at 011-41410592, 41410593 or write an email to delhi@linkintime.co.in.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2013-14

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting Annual Report of the Bank alongwith the Balance Sheet & Profit
and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March, 2014.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Indian economy continued to face challenging times during 2013-14. The slowdown of the economy that began in
2011-12 continued during this year. The sluggish growth and inflationary pressure remained serious concern of the
economy throughout the year. In fact, since Sep 2009 the state of the world economy has been the most decisive
factor impacting the economy of every developing country including India. Among India’s major trading partners,
USA is showing signs of recovery from a long recession, Japan’s economy is responding to stimulus, Euro zone is
reporting a fractional growth of 0.2% and China’s growth slowed during 2013-14. The challenges faced by India
are common to all emerging economies. However, India coped with these challenges in a better way than other
emerging economies during 2013-14.

The Govt. of India had declared fiscal consolidation, price stability, self sufficiency in food, revival of good environment
in investment, promotion of manufacturing, encouragement to exports, quicker implementation of projects as its
objectives. However, infrastructure, petroleum, power, coal and textiles continued to remain stressed sectors of the
economy.

While the Government successfully contained the Current Account Deficit , controlling inflation proved to be difficult.
However, economy once again proved its resilience.

The performance of Indian agriculture was better than industry. The industry continued to be a stressed sector of the
economy. The deceleration in investment in manufacturing has remained particular area of concern. Though exports
recovered sharply, however, imports remained down which did not augur well either for manufacturing or domestic
trade.

The exchange rate affected the Rupee adversely. However, the Government, RBI and other concerned agencies
undertook number of measures to improve capital inflow and stabilize foreign exchange market.

However, the state of the economy improved during Q3-Q4 of 2013-14 and growth is expected to be at least 5.2%
against growth in Q1 and Q2 of 2013-14 at 4.4% and 4.8% respectively. The economy is more stable today. The
fiscal deficit is declining, CAD has been contained, inflation has moderated, the exchange rate is stable, exports have
increased and growth rate is on the rise.

In the given scenario of the economy, Bank faced the challenges bravely, even though the asset quality remained a
serious cause of concern throughout the year and there has been pressure on the profitability of the Bank with high
cost of deposit, rise in NPAs, low income and lower Net Interest Income.

WORKING RESULTS

TOTAL BUSINESS

During the year ended 31.03.2014, total Business of the Bank recorded an increase of 16.41% at Rs.142588 crore
as compared to Rs.122485 crore as on 31.03.2013.

HIGHLIGHTS OF RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2014
(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended
31.03.2014 31.03.2013 %age change
Interest Income 797271 734012 8.62
Other Income 42728 39422 8.39
Total Income 839999 773434 8.61
Total Expenditure 759945 679549 11.83
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Operating profit 80054 93885 (14.73)
Net Profit 30063 33922 (11.38)
Return on Assets (ROA) 0.35% 0.44% —
Net Interest Margin (NIM) 1.88% 2.15% —
Gross NPA% 4.41% 2.96% -
Net NPA(%) 3.35% 2.16%
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) (Basel 1) 12.10% 12.91% -
Capital Adequacy Ratio(%) (Basel ) 11.04% NA -
EPS 10.69 13.49 -
PROFIT

The Bank recorded a Net Profit of Rs.300.63 crore for the year 2013-14 as compared to that at Rs.339.22 crore during
the FY 2012-13.

CAPITAL AND RESERVE

During the year, Bank has issued 2,12,63,023 Equity Shares of Rs.10/ each to Government of India by way of Preferential
Issue at a price of Rs.47.03 per share determined as per ICDR Regulation of SEBI after taking necessary approval from
RBI/ MOF. Accordingly, the Equity Share Capital of the Bank has increased by Rs.21.26 crore to Rs.275.28 crore and
Share Premium has increased by Rs.78.52 crore (Share Premium Received Rs.78.74 crore minus Share Issue Expenses
Rs.0.22 crore) to Rs.703.98 crore.

The Net Worth of the Bank has improved from Rs.3897.25 crore as on 31.03.2013 to Rs.4180.40 crore as on
31.03.2014.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (Basel Ill) of the Bank is 11.04% as on 31.03.2014 against the minimum stipulated
requirement of 9%.

UNSECURED REDEEMABLE BONDS: (Subordinated Debts for Tier —Il Capital)
Total outstanding of Tier 1l Bonds as on 31.03.2014 remains unchanged at Rs.1,365 crore .

DEPOSITS

The total deposit of the Bank registered a growth of 19.94% with Net accretion of Rs.14088.66 crore to reach
Rs.84730.16 crore as on March 31, 2014 from Rs.70641.50 crore as on March 31, 2013. The average cost of deposits
of the bank stood at 8.22% as compared to 8.32% in previous year.

ADVANCES

The Bank has registered qualitative credit growth of 11.60% during the FY 2013-14. The Gross Advances of the Bank
increased from Rs.51843.35 crore as on 31.03.2013 to Rs.57857.74crore as on 31.03.2014. The average Yield on
Advances stood at 11.34% as on 31.03.2014 as compared to 11.86 % as on 31.03.2013.

Non Fund Advances business of the bank stood at Rs.3433.42 crore as on 31.03.2014 as against Rs.3578.73 crore
as on 31.03.2013.

The Bank has a diversified portfolio of Advances and has extended credit to all sectors i.e Industry, Services, Agriculture,
Retail Lending etc; as per vibrant Loan Policy of the Bank. There was notable credit growth to preferred sectors like
Agriculture, Construction, Housing sector, Education, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) etc. Advances to Housing
Sector increased by 18.40% (from Rs.2360.33 crore as on 31.03.13 to Rs.2795.18 crore as on 31.03.14). Credit
growth in MSME Sector was 39.50% (from Rs.10113.01 crore as on 31.03.13 to Rs.14107.89 crore as on 31.03.14).
Credit exposure to industry other than infrastructure increased by 8.58% (from Rs.9000.80 crore on 31.03.2013 to
Rs.9773.05 crore on 31.03.2014) which mainly comprised of sectors viz: Food processing (28.10%) from Rs.683.98
crore to Rs.876.19 crore etc. growth of credit to Textiles during FY 2013-14 was (3.17%) from Rs.1369.15
crore on 31.03.2013 to Rs1412.67 crore on 31.03.2014. Credit growth to infrastructure sector was in Energy (2.21%)
(Earlier Power & Electricity) from Rs.12164.55 crore to Rs.12433.73 crore. Exposure in Energy Sector has increased
due to restructuring of accounts of DISCOMS with additional funding.
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To strengthen its credit appraisal, the Bank has recruited Chartered Accountants and Technical personnel i.e; Engineers.
For improving credit off-take and expeditious disposal of loan proposals, Bank has introduced concept of New Business
Proposal Committee, where all proposals of High Value are given in principle sanction /expression of interest for
ensuring expeditious processing.

PRIORITY SECTOR ADVANCES
Bank continues to accord importance to varied goals under National priorities, including Agriculture, Micro & Small
Enterprises, Housing, Education, Micro-credit, Weaker sections, SC/STs and Minority communities.

Priority Sector advances of the Bank increased by Rs.4096 crore, up from Rs.13605 crore as on 31.3.2013 to Rs 17701
crore as on 31.3.2014 thereby registering a growth of 30% on year to year basis.

AGRICULTURE ADVANCES

Bank’s advances under agriculture portfolio stood at Rs.7919 crore as on 31.3.2014 registering a growth of Rs.3007
crore. The major accretion under Agriculture has been under Direct Agriculture and these advances increased to
Rs.5537 crore with an absolute growth of Rs.1151 crore registering a growth rate of 26 % over the previous year.

SPECIAL AGRICULTURAL CREDIT PLAN (SACP)

Bank maintained credit flow to Agriculture achieving more than 100%. Bank has disbursed Rs.7271 crore under
Special Agriculture Credit Plan (SACP) against the target of Rs.7055 crore, achieving 103% during the FY 2013-14,

KISAN CREDIT CARD (KCC)

During the year 2013-14, the total number of KCCs of the Bank increased by 19125 showing growth rate of 14%. As
at March 2014, the credit outstanding under KCCs was Rs.4503 crore. As at March 2014, 99265 KCC holders have
been provided with ATM enabled ‘RuPay Kisan Debit Cards’ covering 86% of eligible KCC holders.

MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES (MSMESs)

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises is a thrust area of the Bank in credit dispensation. Advances to MSME sector
increased by Rs.3996 crore registering a growth rate of 40% in 2013-14 and stood at Rs.14108 crore as on 31.03.2014.

WELFARE OF MINIORITY COMMUNITY

As at March 2014, advances to specified minority communities aggregated to Rs.6737 crore, registering a growth of
18% and accounting for 38% of the total priority sector advances against the stipulated level of 15%.

CREDIT TO WOMEN ENTREPRENEURS:

Bank'’s credit to women entrepreneurs stood at Rs.2414 crore as on 31.03.2014 registering a growth of Rs.231 crore
accounting for 5% of ANBC.

ADVANCES TO SC/ST BORROWERS

In support of the underprivileged sections of the society, the Bank’s advances to SC/ST beneficiaries reached Rs.357
crore as at March 2014 from Rs.327 Crore as at March-2013.

ADVANCES TO ECONOMICALLY WEAKER SECTIONS

Advances to weaker sections aggregated to Rs.5578 crore, with a y-o-y growth of 17%. Advances to weaker sections
formed 11% of ANBC against the minimum norm of 10%.

Special thrust was laid by the Bank in financing weaker sections including SC/STs under various Government sponsored
schemes namely Ajeevika under National Rural Livelihood Mission (NRLM), Rajiv Rinn Yojana, Swarna Jayanti Shahari
Rojgar Yojana (SJSRY) and Prime Minister Employment Generation Programme (PMEGP).
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CREDIT MONITORING

The Bank through its well-established Credit policy Department continues to give directions to its Advances Portfolios
by preparing vibrant Loan Policy of the Bank and also monitor its Advances portfolio to maintain its quality and
performance.

In order to have proper and effective monitoring to check fresh slippages and devise a strategy for their minimization,
the department has started monitoring individual High Value Accounts at HO level.

Towards this end Bank has set up a control room at HO Credit Monitoring Department for monitoring of Credit
Portfolio which is manned by a team of CAs and experienced officials. The team identifies emerging credit related
issues in borrowal accounts and puts up the position before Top Management on daily basis for taking proactive
corrective steps.

NEW INITIATIVES

= Bank has opened 202 new branches during the year 2013-14 as against 101 new branches opened in last
fiscal. Out of these, 72 branches were opened in unbanked rural centers including 40 Ultra Small Branches.

= To widen the spread of Electronic Delivery Channels, Bank installed 829 additional ATMs during the year.
Total number of ATMs of the Bank as on 31.03.2014, stood at 1008 as compared to 179 as on 31.03.2013.

®  Government Business Modules (PPF, NPS & SCSS) have been made operational.
®m  To facilitate customers, Bank has introduced 24*7 Call Center facility through Toll free number.
®m  Bank has launched Debit Card in tie up with Master Card during the year 2013-14.

= |n order to outreach masses, Bank has opened 115 rural branches and recruited 37 Agriculture Field Officers
in 2013-14 in addition to existing 97 Agriculture Field Officers.

®m  Bank has introduced new scheme for Financing Seed production and processing units and scheme for
Financing of Agriculture Input dealers (Seeds, fertilizers, pesticides etc).

= Ason 31.03.2014, Bank has 29 MSME branches as against 11 MSME branches as on 31.03.2013.

= To give boost to MSE credit, Bank signed a MOU with CRISIL for credit rating of MSE units at concessional
rate to have rationalized mechanism of rate of interest on MSME advances.

®  There has been a quantum jump in lending under Priority Sector through special drives. An amount of
Rs.3851 crore was disbursed in 43152 accounts under Priority Sector during the Special Drives / Mega
Credit Campaign/ Core Credit plus campaign held from 1% September, 2013 to 31 March, 2014.

RRB SPONSORED BY THE BANK

Sutlej Gramin Bank, Bhatinda, the RRB sponsored by the Bank, covers six districts of Punjab viz. Bhatinda, Faridkot,
Mansa, Muktsar, Moga and Ludhiana and is in profit since its inception. The progress made by the RRB in various
parameters is as under:

(Amount in Crore)

Parameter 31.3.2013 31.03.2014
Deposits 264.73 306.46
Advances 203.56 256.14
Priority Sector Advances 194.81 198.23
Agriculture Advances 175.28 181.79
Net Profit 1.55 2.36

LEAD BANK RESPONSIBILITY/SETTING UP OF FINANCIAL LITERACY AND CREDIT COUNSELLING CENTRES
(FLCCs)

Bank has lead bank responsibilities in 3 districts of Punjab viz., Moga, Faridkot and Ludhiana. Pursuant to the
directions of Reserve Bank of India, Bank has set up FLCCs in the name of “PSB Suvidha Centres” in all three lead
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districts to impart free Financial Literacy/Credit Counseling Services to the needy persons to help them avail financial
services from Banking system and also to provide counseling services to those who are under financial distress due
to debt burden.

CONTRIBUTION TO RURAL DEVELOPMENT

‘PSB Trust for Development of Agriculture and Rural Employment ‘(PSB Trust for DARE) has been established with
the objectives of setting up training institutes for imparting trainings to farmers and for capacity building of the rural
youth/women/economically weaker sections and also organizing tractor maintenance, animal welfare camps etc.
through Rural Development Centres.

As per initiative of Ministry of Rural Development (MoRD), Govt. of India, Bank under the aegis of ‘PSB Trust for
Development of Agriculture and Rural Employment has established ‘Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs)’ in three of its lead districts Moga, Faridkot and Ludhiana in Punjab to promote entrepreneurship development
among rural youth and encourage them taking up self-employment activities. The operational expenditures, salary
to support staff and infrastructure facility of these RSETIs are fully met by Trust for Development of Agriculture and
Rural Employment (DARE). During 2013-14, these training institutes have trained 1410 unemployed candidates, taking
the tally to 4729 trained youths since inception.

As per MoRD guidelines, Government of Punjab allotted land for setting up Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs). With the financial assistance of MoRD/Bank’s CSR fund assistance, the construction of RSETI Building at
Moga is completed. The construction work at Faridkot is in full swing and at Ludhiana the work is under progress.

FINANCIAL INCLUSION

Financial Inclusion is not only a process but a Mission for the Bank to empower deprived and underserved sections
of the population and the endeavor of the bank has been to connect these people with the banking system i.e.
“inclusion of the excluded” and make them a productive asset of the society. Key initiatives of the bank are as under:

= Bank has been allotted 400 unbanked villages with population above 2000 and 2316 unbanked villages
with population below 2000. These villages have been covered by the bank either by opening regular
Brick and Mortar Branches or through Information Communication Technology (ICT) based Business
Correspondent (BC) model. As on 31.03.2014, out of the 400 villages with population above 2000, 359
villages have been covered by deployment of BCAs and enrolment have already been started, 38 villages
have been covered by opening Rural Branches. Out of 2316 villages with population less than 2000, 334
villages have been covered by deployment of 193 BCAs.

®  Bank has planned to open 120 USBs over a period of 3 years i.e. 40 each in 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-
16. Bank has achieved the 2013-14 targets for opening of 40 USBs. These branches have been opened
on CBS platform of the bank and are managed by permanent staff of the bank.

= Fl Gateway has been successfully implemented and Bank has made Ist CSC Kiosk live on 31.01.2014 at
Kurali (Punjab).

= During the year, Bank has opened 65,000 additional No-Frill Accounts through BCs and total No-frill
accounts opened up to March 2014 are 1.45 Lacs with total outstanding of Rs. 0.26 crore. The Cumulative
figure of No Frill Account is 10.86 Lac with total outstanding of Rs.61.84 Crore.

= Bank has issued 154570 KCCs with a total outstanding of Rs. 4503.31 crore.

= Bank has provided Over Draft facility of Rs. 500/~ per account availed in 2.88 lacs No-frill Accounts with
overdraft amount of Rs. 12.72 crore.

All FI accounts have been migrated to CBS Server and total system has since been operationalised.

IMPLEMENTATION OF DIRECT CASH TRANSFER (DCT) & DBTL

= |n terms of the directions of Ministry of Finance, Direct Cash Transfer (DCT) has been implemented in
43 districts in a phased manner w.e.f. 01.01.2013 and has been extended to 78 more districts in Phase Il
w.e.f. 01.07.2013. The DCT Scheme is already implemented in 121 districts.

= The DBTL scheme for LPG beneficiaries has already been implemented in 289 districts and it will be rolled
out in rest of the country in phased manner. Our Bank has a lead role in District Ludhiana, Faridkot and
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Moga. Bank is in the process of seeding Aadhaar number of LPG beneficiaries in their Bank accounts. District
wise details of number of beneficiaries and Aadhaar seeding as on 31% March2014 is appended below :

Name of District Total beneficiaries Aadhaar seeded by OMCs Aadhaar seeded by bank
Faridkot 116811 88853 (76.07%) 82116 (70.30%)
Ludhiana 958241 647610 (67.58%) 554230 (57.84%)
Moga 181195 89654 (49.48%) 63981 (35.31%)

RETAIL MARKETING_

The Bank aggressively pursued Retail Lending through liberalization of policy for products under the Retail segment,
rationalized the interest rates to make the products most competitive in the market and undertook specific marketing
initiatives to provide depth to the Loan book of the Bank.

Further, Special Festival Bonanza Scheme was launched for providing Housing Loan, Auto Loan and Consumer Loan
to existing and new customers. New innovative Retail products were also launched during the year. The growth in
fresh Retail lending was above 6% over previous year.

The percentage of Retail loans to gross advances was 6.91% as on 31-03-14.

Further, the Bank participated in the booking schemes launched by various Housing Development Authorities of
State Governments for financing of the earnest money.

The Bank has introduced a facility of online submission of application form by prospective borrowers for Retail Loans
with a facility to track the status online.

The Bank also initiated the process for entering into MOU with major commercial and passenger car manufactures
to boost Auto lending.

ASSETS QUALITY

The Bank continued to make concerted efforts to contain NPAs and has used all available tools of recovery including
negotiated settlements and legal means. The provisions of “The Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets
& Enforcement of Security Interest Act — 2002” were used effectively. The Bank also organized Recovery Camps
during the year at various centers. During the year, two short term schemes for settlement of NPAs were formulated
under Agriculture Sector and unsecured T.W.O accounts apart from Bank’s Recovery Management Policy. In all 1554
cases were settled at Rs.85.87 Crore.

The performance of the Bank under recovery of NPAs during the year continued to be good. The aggressive and
focused efforts could result in the total recovery of over Rs.493.72 Crore including recovery of Rs.95.21 crore in
Technically Written Off accounts.

However, despite higher slippage, the gross and net NPAs as on 31.03.2014 have been contained at Rs.2553.52
crore and Rs.1918.60 crore as against Rs. 1536.90 crore and Rs. 1110.38 crore as on 31.03.2013 respectively.

The position of Gross and Net NPAs as on 31.03.2014 vis-a-vis previous year is as under:

(Amount in crore)

NPA As on 31.03.2013 As on 31.03.2014
GROSS 1536.90 2.96% 2553.52 4.41%
NET 1110.38 2.16% 1918.60 3.35%

The Provisioning Coverage Ratio of the Bank (including T.W.O a/cs), as on 31.03.2014 stood at 45.51%.

INVESTMENT & FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Bank’s total investment increased by 25.48% during current financial year to Rs.28346.61 crore with a portfolio
composition consistent with the corporate requirement, risk perception and investment policy of the Bank.

The profit on sale of securities for the year increased from Rs. 62.98 crore for year ended March 2013 to Rs. 125.37
crore for the year ended 31.03.2014 on account of trading activities in G-sec and Non-SLR securities.
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Exchange profit in Forex transactions for the year 2013-14 was Rs 26.91crores (Forex Treasury).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank has put in place a robust and integrated Risk Management system to ensure that the risks assumed by the Bank
are within the defined risk appetites and are adequately monitored. The overall responsibility of setting the Bank’s risk
appetite and effective risk management rests with the Board and apex level management of the Bank. The implementation
of Integrated Risk Management System in the Bank is monitored by HO Risk Management Department (RMD) which
is headed by General Manager.

Risk is managed through following Apex committees viz.
= Risk Management Committee (RMC)- a Board level Committee
= Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
®m  Asset and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO)
= Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) and
= (Capital Planning Committee as per ICAAP

These committees work within the overall guidelines and policies approved by the Risk Management Committee
(RMQ) / Board.

POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Bank has Board approved policies and procedures in place to measure, manage and control various risks that
the Bank is exposed to.

Integrated Risk Management Policy has been formulated with the objective of analyzing the overall risk profile
of the bank and to integrate all the risks of the Bank. The other important risk policies comprise of Asset-Liability
Management (ALM) Policy, Investment Policy, Loan Policy, Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA), Credit Audit, Country
Risk Management Policy, Derivatives Policy, Operational Risk Management Policy, Business Continuity Planning (BCP)
& Disaster Recovery Management (DRM) Policy, Stress Testing Policy, Policy on Utilization of Credit Risk Mitigation,
ICAAP Policy. The policies are reviewed annually by the RMC / Board.

BANK'S COMPLIANCE WITH BASEL-II

In terms of Regulatory Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, the Bank has adopted the New Capital Adequacy
Framework w.e.f. 31.03.2009. Based on Basel Il norms, the Bank has adopted Standardized Approach for Credit
Risk, Modified Duration approach for Market Risk and Basic Indicator approach for Operational Risk for computing
the capital charge. The Bank has also implemented Basel 11l Guidelines and has started computing CRAR w.e.f. June
2013. The CRAR position of the Bank is reviewed by the Board on a quarterly basis. Bank is geared for moving
towards advanced approaches under BASEL Il as suggested by RBI. Bank has also appointed a Consultant for setting
up Enterprise Wide Integrated Risk Management System (EIRMS) in the Bank for moving to Advance approaches of
Basel 1l and implementation of Basel 11l Guidelines.

ICAAP POLICY

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Basel Il & Basel Ill — Pillar 2- Supervisory Review and
Evaluation Process (SREP), the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) Policy has been formulated to
assess the capital requirement commensurate with the size, level of complexity, risk profile and scope of operations
of the Bank. Various residual risks are assessed and additional capital is provided for wherever required. The capital
adequacy of the Bank is assessed based on the analysis of current and projected financial/capital position as well as
the headroom available.

Stress Testing exercises are also undertaken to assess the likely impact of various stress situations in relation to capacity
of Bank’s profitability to absorb the shock and consequent impact on Bank’s capital. The ICAAP outcome is prepared
on half yearly basis and is reviewed by RMC.

DISCLOSURE

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Basel Il & Basel Ill — Pillar 3 — Market Discipline, the
Bank has put in place a Disclosure Policy duly approved by the Board and the disclosures on quarterly / Half yearly
/ Annual basis, as per the policy, are displayed on the Bank’s Website / Annual Report.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk management processes involve identification, measurement, monitoring and control of credit exposures.
Credit risk and its policy formulation is managed by Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC). The Committee
regularly monitors prudential caps in different loan segments including industry, corporate, retail and individual/
group borrowers.

Comprehensive credit rating framework comprising of Credit Risk Rating Models for Corporate and Retail Loans,
pricing of loans linked to risk assessment and credit rating, study & analysis of industries/portfolio, migration of credit
ratings is undertaken.

MARKET RISK
The Bank’s portfolio is exposed to Market Risk on account of change of Interest rates and Currency rates.

The Asset and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) is overseeing the functions relating to market risk. The
Bank has put in place a variety of market risk measurement systems and tools including a Mid office in Treasury
Department. Strict adherence to various limits and proper escalation of breaches, if any, are followed.

The Liquidity Management Framework is well established, which safeguards the ability of the Bank to meet all payment
obligations when they become due. It is designed to identify measure and manage the liquidity risk position of the Bank.

The Bank is computing the Market Risk Capital charge as per the Modified Duration approach, by using Modified
duration method, as per the guidelines received from the regulator. The Bank also calculates Value at Risk (VaR) on
its foreign exchange portfolio at prescribed intervals.

The Bank periodically undertakes stress test exercise to highlight the potential risks, on account of liquidity and Interest
rate risk that may arise due to events that are rare but conceivable. The impacts of shock on account of different risk
factors that may generate worst case scenario are studied and to counter the impact possible solutions are derived.

OPERATIONAL RISK

The Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) oversees on matters relating to risks associated with operations
and ensures the continuity / restoration of business in the event of contingency / exigencies. Presently, capital charge
on operational risk is calculated as per Basic Indicator Approach. The Bank is in the process of strengthening its ORM
Framework & ORM systems to migrate to advance approaches for calculation of Operational Risk Capital.

Bank has posted Risk Managers in all the Zonal Offices and also at Top 10 branches for ensuring compliance of Basel
norms at the operating level and with the aim of conservation and optimum use of capital.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
The cadre wise staff strength as on 31.03.2014 is as under:-

Category 31st March 2013 31st March 2014

Officers 5932 6062
Clerks 1640 2029
Sub-staff 961 779
Total 8533 8870

WOMEN IN EMPLOYMENT:- Out of the total strength of 8870 as on 31.03.2014, the women employees are 1738
constituting 19.60% of the total strength.
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EMPLOYMENT TO RESERVED CATEGORY EMPLOYEES:- Bank is committed to the constitutional safeguard and social
objectives for the development and welfare of persons belonging to SC, ST and other backward classes of the society.
The Bank observes all guidelines stipulated by the Govt. of India in respect of Reservation Policy for reservation of
Posts in all India and local recruitments.

A special SC/ST cell has been set up in the Bank to monitor the Reservation and other provisions for SC/ST employees.
An executive at the rank of General Manager has been designated as Chief Liaison Officer for SC/ST employees who
ensures compliance of various guidelines pertaining to SC/ST employees and takes care of all matters of grievance
redressal of SC/ST employees of the Bank.

The staff strength of SC/ST employees stood at 1382 and 436 respectively on 31.03.2014. The staff strength under
various reserved categories viz OBC/EX-SM/PH is as under:-

CATEGORY SC ST OBC EX-SM PH

OFFICERS 813 348 692 43 71
CLERKS 342 60 334 121 44
SUB-STAFF 227 28 32 173 15
TOTAL 1382 436 1058 337 130

FINANCIAL ASSISTAN CE TO THE DEPENDENTS OF DECEASED EMPLOYEES

During the Financial year 2013-14 the Bank made total payment of Rs.55,06,108/- in 9 cases received from the
dependants of the deceased employees under the scheme for the payment of ex-Gratia in lieu of appointment on
compassionate grounds.

PROMOTIONS

Bank is regularly promoting employees almost in all cadres year after year to keep rewarding its top performers and
make them assume higher responsibilities. Special drive was made during the year under review to fulfill the growing
aspirations of the employees for fast career progression thereby motivating employees for higher productivity.

Following promotions have been effected during the year:

Promotions from DGM to GM AGM to CM to AGM | SRM to CM | MGR to SRM OFFICER to Total
DGM MGR
General 6 5 3 95 59 128 296
Specialist - - 1 4 2 5 12
Total 6 5 4 99 61 133 308
TRAINING

Training is an integral part of Human Resource development. In the current competitive environment in the Banking
Industry, it is all the more important to keep the staff abreast of the latest developments in technology, system and
procedures, legal aspects etc., especially amongst the peers.

The training programs organized by the Bank are focused towards integrating the new recruits into the Bank and in
enhancing the skills, knowledge and for reorienting the attitude of its existing work force to achieve the organizational
objectives.

The Bank endeavoured to provide training to 50% of its employees during the Financial Year 2013-14. With this in
view, 236 programmes were conducted by PSB Centre for Banking Research & Training at Chandigarh in General
Banking & Computer related programmes at NIBSCOM, NOIDA in various fields from 1%t April 2013 to 31 March
2014, in which training was imparted to 4654 employees of different cadres.
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7 Special Training Programmes were conducted at NIBSCOM on Credit Appraisal, Foreign Exchange and Security
Workshop in which 219 officials were imparted training.

Besides 213 officers were also imparted training at Apex Level. Bank also deputed four officials in various cadres
for overseas trainings.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:- The industrial relations in the Bank remained cordial throughout the year. The
representatives from Workers and Officers unions participated in various discussions on developmental and other
issues with the management at various levels and efforts were made to resolve the same.

DIRECT RECRUITMENT:- The Bank launched a special recruitment drive to cater to the challenges of superannuation,
sustained business growth and rapid branch expansion in the FY 2013-14. Recruitment of both the Specialist Officers
and Probationary Officers was done to address the diverse manpower requirement of the Bank.

During the year, 1 Chief Security Officer in Scale -V, 3 CAs in Scale -llI, 22 CAs in Scale Il, 8 Law Officers in Scale
—I1,772 Probationary Officers, 38 AFO in Scale —I, 10 HR/IR Officers in Scale | and 495 Single Window Operators-A
in Clerical cadre have joined the Bank under Bank’s Recruitment Projects.

STAFF WELFARE

In order to motivate and encourage the staff for effective participation in development activities, the Bank is maintaining
various welfare schemes for the staff.

During 2013-14, Bank introduced new schemes for the welfare of staff. Also improvement / betterment in the existing
schemes of Housing Loans, Mediclaim Policy for retired employees etc. have been made for the welfare of staff.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
®  Ason 31.03.14, all 1330 branches of the Bank are on Core Banking Solution.

®  Bank has implemented Anti Money Laundering Solution which facilitates generation of Cash Transaction
Report (CTR), Suspicious Transaction Reports (STR) and Non-profit Transaction Report (NTR).

®  Cheque Truncation System has been implemented across the country and bank is participating in all the
grids i.e. Southern, Western and Northern Grids.

®  Biometric based Authentication for employees’ login into CBS application has been introduced to prevent
the incidence of frauds taking place on account of password theft/sharing of password. As on 31.03.2014,
rollout in 445 branches has been completed. Rollout in the remaining branches shall be completed by
June 2014.

®  Video Conferencing Facility has been extended to 74 centers, which includes Head Office, Zonal Offices
and top Business Branches.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal control function like many other functions of the management is carried out in the Bank through a well-
established Inspection & Audit Dept.(IAD), which ensures examination & verification of adherence to systems, policies
and procedures of the Bank. The IAD constantly aims at checking the inherent risks through its effective control
mechanism, enforced through five Zonal Inspectorates, to protect Bank’s interest and endeavours to prevent frauds
by conducting RBIA and Inspection of branches/ offices as per risk prioritised Annual Audit Plan (AAP) approved by
the Audit Committee of the Bank.

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) oversees the internal Audit function of the Bank for improving the efficiency
of systemic controls. The ACB, which met 8 times during FY 2013-14, also monitors the functioning of the Audit
Committee of Executives (ACE), which is a first tier Committee to oversee Inspection and Audit function in the bank.

During FY 2013-14, Risk Based Internal Audit was conducted in 876 branches of the Bank; 496 branches were
brought under Concurrent Audit System; the Information System audit was conducted in 288 branches; Post migration
audit was conducted in 600 branches, and Zonal Offices and Departments at Head Office have been subjected to
Management Audit & Inspection.
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The Inspection and Audit Department is also assigned the responsibility of monitoring redressal of the customer
grievances/ complaints. The Bank has implemented Standardized Public Grievances Redressal System (SPGRS), a
web-based customer complaint redressal module. During FY 2013-14, 1810 complaints were received, of which
1775 complaints have been disposed off. The Banking Ombudsman passed 5 awards against the Bank out of which
against 2 awards bank has gone into appeal.

During the year, the Inspection and Audit Department formulated ‘Risk Based Internal Audit Policy’ and revised &
devised computer aided reporting formats of Risk Based Internal Audit & Concurrent Audit.

To summarize, Bank’s Inspection and Audit Dept. has been effectively monitoring the compliance of systems and
procedures laid down by Board, the Regulator and the Government of India.

COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

During the financial year 2013-14, Bank reviewed the Compliance-policy. Compliance Manuals of Zonal Offices
and various HO Departments were drafted /updated during the year. Functional Manual of the bank has also been
placed on the Intranet site of the bank.

Bank complied with the various guidelines issued by the RBI on Compliance functions. The Compliance Department
ensures that the functioning of Zonal Offices, Branches and Departments is synchronized with their Functional Manuals.
Annual Compliance Audits of branches/offices are conducted at regular intervals.

PR and PUBLICITY

During the financial year 2013-14, the Bank adopted a multi-media strategy to build up its image in Public and at the
corporate level and accordingly publicity was made through the print media by release of its product, tender, financial
and other display/notice ads in different newspapers, magazines and souvenirs targeting various audiences all over the
country.

Bank also used effective outdoor media signifying display of Balloon at Chandigarh and Amritsar Airports. Bank’s
banners, hoardings displayed on events of high publicity value facilitated extension of outreach of the Bank.

Bank also received immense publicity through Bank’s Wall Calendar & Table Calendar 2014 which was widely
distributed among clients and well wishers of Bank.

Bank got huge publicity by way of coverage of its press releases by the print media.

All these activities facilitated the Bank to rededicate itself to the service of the Nation and enabled it to earn a well
deserved mileage on the publicity front.

VIGILANCE
PREVENTIVE VIGILANCE

During the year, the Vigilance Department has taken number of initiatives on Preventive as well as on Punitive
Vigilance to strengthen the vigilance administration and also to instill compliance culture within the organization.

To educate staff across the organization to work with utmost sincerity, honesty and uniformity in a most transparent
manner and to spread awareness about stronger compliance culture and strengthening vigilance administration, series
of programmes, conferences and workshops were organized. These programmes were participated by senior officials
of the Bank and also presided over by the Top officials of the Central Vigilance Commission and CBI.

VALUE ADDITION TO THE ORGANIZATION

In line with this year’s theme observing Vigilance Awareness Week by Hon’ble CVC “Promoting Good Governance —
Positive Contribution of Vigilance” and on the basis of information received from various sources, quarters regarding
Revenue Leakages in Big Borrowal Accounts, Bank started a special drive under the name “Mission Compliance” i.e.
checking of the compliance of terms and conditions of sanction in big borrowal accounts on sample basis.
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OBSERVANCE OF VIGILANCE AWARENESS WEEK FROM 28.10.2013 TO 02.11.2013

As desired by Hon’ble Commission, the Bank undertook number of initiatives during “Vigilance Awareness Week"
w.e.f. 28.10.2013 to 02.11.2013 for observing the same in a befitting manner. Besides, a programme for all the senior
functionaries of Delhi based Zones was also organized.The programme was inaugurated by Vigilance Commissioner,
Central Vigilance Commission.

SECURITY ARRANMGEENT

The Bank has a well established Security set-up within the Bank’s organizational structure. Security department of the
Bank has been regularly reviewing the security arrangements at all Currency Chests and branches and accordingly
strengthening the security arrangements to meet prevailing security scenario with effective, modern and unobstructed
Security Systems. All the essential and mandatory security arrangements in terms of RBI/ IBA guidelines are provided
at most of the branches.

The Zonal Security Officers periodically carry-out Security audit of branches to assess the security arrangements in
vogue and recommend implementation of additional preventive security measures wherever desired. They maintain
close liaison with the law enforcing and administrative authorities. Besides, the Chief Security Officer, other officials
from Head Office are also carrying out the security audit of the Currency Chests and also undertake random visits of
the vulnerable branches of the Bank.

The Access Control System at all Banks’ Currency Chests has been strengthened in terms of RBI guidelines. Security
Alarm Systems are installed at all branches and currency chests.

All the branches of Bank are provided armed guards and all the cash remittances are escorted by armed guard. Training,
including firing practice, for Armed Guards deployed at currency chests / branches is imparted on an annual basis.
Also, all the security officers undergo refresher training on security once in a year.

CCTV Surveillance System has been installed at all the Currency chest branches and 237 identified High Risk and
vulnerable branches in the first phase, keeping in view the threat perception, volume of cash and valuables handled
and need for continuous surveillance. CCTV systems shall be installed at remaining branches in a phased manner.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

During the financial year 2013-14, Bank made significant progress in implementation of Official Language Policy for
promoting and propagating the use of Official Language in the Bank. During the year 2013-14, a total of 84 workshops
were organized, in which 1039 personnel were trained. Besides, 3203 personnel were trained during 705 Hindi Desk
Training Programmes and 286 personnel were imparted training for using Unicode on Computers. With the aim of
reviewing the progress of Official Language, inspections were conducted in 705 Branches/Offices.

This year ‘Delhi Town Official Language Implementation Committee’ (TOLIC), awarded ‘Consolation Prize’ to our
Bank In-House Hindi Magazine ‘Rajbhasha Ankur’. Apart from this five employees of our Bank won eight prizes in
various competitions organized by different banks under the auspices of Delhi Bank TOLIC.

SPORTS
The Bank has a Sports Academy which nurtures Bank’s Hockey Team at National Level, besides Hockey Academy
for age group of 15-18 years. During the year, Bank’s Hockey Team won the following three National Tournaments:
= All India Gurmit Hockey Tournament
= All India Surjit Hockey Tournament
= All India Nehru Hockey Tournament
The Bank’s Hockey Academy also brought laurels to the Bank by winning All India Level Tournaments.

The following players of the Bank’s Hockey Team and Hockey Academy have represented Indian Hockey Team in
various International Tournaments during the year 2013-14:
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Sh. Harbir Singh Sh. Harjot Singh Sh. Satbir Singh Sh. Ramandeep Singh
Sh. Gurmail Singh Sh. Prabhdeep Singh Sh. Talwinder Singh

Sh. Baljit Singh Saini Olyampian was appopinted as coach of the Indian Hockey Team and
Sh. Rajinder Singh Olyampian was appointed as coach of Indian University Team.

In addition to the above said achievements, the officials attached with Bank’s Hockey Team have also worked for
the deposit mobilization during this financial year.

RECONCILIATION

Total outstanding in Inter Bank Reconciliation (IBR) & Demand Draft as on 31.03.2014 has been reduced by 99%
from the level as on 31-03-2013.

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Various building projects viz Staff Training College, Delhi, Fort Mumbai, Gurgaon, Noida etc. are in progress and
are likely to be completed this year. During the year, Bank has gone for revaluation of Bank owned properties after
a gap of three years.

CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on 31 March 2014, the Board comprised of three Whole time Directors viz Chairman & Managing Director
and two Executive Directors besides ten other Directors including representatives from Ministry of Finance, Reserve
Bank of India, Non Official Director (Chartered Accountant Category), two Share Holders Directors and five Part
Time Non Official Directors.

Various Committees constituted under the Board as listed below, oversee the functioning and control the affairs of
the bank:

= Management Committee

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds
Vigilance Committee

Customer Service Committee
Shareholders’/Investors Grievance Committee

IT Strategy Committee

Nomination Committee

HR Committee

Appellate Committee

Remuneration Committee

Committee of Directors on Executives’ Promotion
Committee for Monitoring of Recovery
Concurrent Audit Committee

During the year 2013-14, sixteen meetings of the Board of Directors, twenty one meetings of the Management
Committee and eight meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board were held besides meetings of other
Committees of the Board.

The constitution of Bank’s Board of Directors underwent following changes during the year 2013-14:
INCLUSIONS

n Sh. Pradipta K Jena was nominated as RBlI Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/34/2013-BO.1
dated 31.05.2013.

®m  Sh. Kishore Kumar Sansi was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.
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Sh. Mukesh Kumar Jain was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Sanjay Verma was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/16/2011-BO.1 dated
12.08.2013.

®  Sh. S C Das was nominated as Ministry of Finance Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/3/2012-
BO.1 dated 22.10.2013.

®  Smt. Anita Karnavar was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/56/2013-BO.1 dated
30.01.2014.

Sh. Jatinderbir Singh-IAS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of Punjab & Sind Bank vide Government
of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/7/2013-BO.1
dated 31.01.2014.

CESSATIONS
Sh. Devinder Pal Singh, Chairman & Managing Director attained the age of superannuation and thus retired on
31.01.2014.

Sh. Rajat Sachar, MOF Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 21.10.2013.
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon completed his term as Non-Official Director on the Board of the Bank on 04.07.2013.
Sh. B P Kanungo, RBI Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 30.05.2013.

Sh. P K Anand, Executive Director attained the age of superannuation and thus retired from the service of the bank
on 31.05.2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to good Corporate Governance and is constantly striving to further strengthen the same
to ensure greater transparency and better coordination at all levels in the Organization. The working of the Bank
reflects transparent ownership structure, improved risk management practices, well defined delegation of powers,
accountability and an elaborate audit function carried out by both its Inspection & Audit Division and by independent
Statutory Central Auditors.

Bank has complied with the guidelines of RBI and SEBI on the matters relating to Corporate Governance which have
been examined by the Statutory Central Auditors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS
®  The Directors confirm that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2014:

®m  The applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any.

®  The accounting policies framed in accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, were
consistently applied.

®  Reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates were made so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the bank for the year ended on
31 March, 2014

®  Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of applicable laws Governing Banks in India and the accounts have been prepared on
going concern basis.

STATUTORY AUDIT

As approved by Reserve Bank of India, Bank has appointed M/s.R.M.Lall & Co., Lucknow, M/s.O.P Tulsyan & Co,
New Delhi; M/s B K Shroff & Co., Kolkata; and M/s R Kothari & Co., Kolkata as Statutory Central Auditors for the
accounting year ended March 2014.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Bank thanks valued customers, shareholders, well-wishers and correspondents of the
Bank in India and abroad for their goodwill, patronage and continued support.

The Directors also acknowledge with gratitude the valuable and timely advice, guidance and support received from
Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Stock Exchanges, various
State Governments, Financial Institutions and the Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank in the functioning of the Bank.

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable contribution of the members of the staff at all
levels for the progress of the Bank during the year and look forward to their continued co-operation in realization of
the Corporate goals in years ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (Jatinderbir Singh)
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director
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Punjab & Sind Bank
Report on Corporate Governance (2013-14)

BANK’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE :

The Bank shall continue its endeavor to enhance its shareholders’ value by protecting their interest by ensuring
performance at all levels, and maximizing returns with optimal use of resources in its pursuit of excellence.
The Bank shall comply with not only the statutory requirements, but also voluntarily formulate and adhere to
a set of strong Corporate Governance practices. The Bank believes in setting high standards of ethical values,
transparency and a disciplined approach to achieve excellence in all its sphere of activities. The Bank is also
committed to follow the best practices. The Bank shall strive hard to best serve the interests of its stakeholders
comprising shareholders, customers, Government and society at large.

The Bank is a listed entity, which is not a company but body corporate under the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 and is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the Bank shall
comply with the provisions of Revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges to
the extent it does not violate the provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1980 and the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board:

The composition of Board of Directors of the Bank is governed by the provisions of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949, the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980, as amended and the
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980, as amended.

The composition of Board of Directors of the Bank as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

Sr. Name Position Held No. of No. of No. of No of Remarks
No equity member- | Directorship Membership/ (nature of
shares of | ship in Sub [ held in other | Chairmanship appointment
the Bank | Committees | Companies held in Sub in the Bank
held as on | of the Bank [ i.e. Other Committees of | other
31.03.2014 than the the Board in Companies)
Bank. Other Companies
1 Sh. Jatinderbir Chairman & Managing NIL 10 NIL NIL +
Singh, IAS Director
2. Sh K.K. Sansi Executive Director NIL 9 NIL NIL *
3. Sh M.K.Jain Executive Director NIL 10 NIL NIL *
4., Sh S.C.Das Director —-MOF NIL 9 NIL NIL i
Nominee Director
5. Sh P.K. Jena Director — RBI NIL 6 NIL NIL @
Nominee Director
6. Sh. S.P.S. Virk Workmen Employee NIL 2 NIL NIL +++ 4+
Director
7. Sh.Mahesh Kumar |Non-Official Director NIL 4 NIL NIL DS
Gupta (CA-Cat)
8. Sh.Sukhen Pal Non-Official Director 499 5 2 NIL $
Babuta (Shareholder Director)
9. Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Non-Official Director | NIL 5 NIL NIL #
Arora
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Sr. Name Position Held No. of No. of No. of No of Remarks
No equity member- | Directorship Membership/ (nature of
shares of | ship in Sub [ held in other | Chairmanship appointment
the Bank | Committees | Companies held in Sub in the Bank
held as on | of the Bank | i.e. Other Committees of / other
31.03.2014 than the the Board in Companies)
Bank. Other Companies

10. |Sh. Sanjay Verma | Non-Official Director |NIL 5 NIL NIL ++

11. | Sh. Suresh Thakur | Non-Official Director |NIL 3 2 NIL +++

12. |Sh.N. Rajendran Non-Official Director |500 3 NIL NIL +4++

(Shareholder Director)

13. | Smt. Anita Non-Official Director |NIL NIL NIL NIL +4+++++
Karnavar

+  Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/7/2013-BO-I dated 31st January 2014 as a whole time
Director (designated as Chairman & Mg. Director) w.e.f. the date of taking charge on or after 01.02.2014 and
upto 31.12.2017 i.e. the date of his attaining the age of superannuation or until further orders, whichever is
earlier.

* Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/5/2012-BO-I dated 5th August 2013 as Executive Director
w.e.f. the date of his taking over charge of the post and upto 31.08.2017 i.e. the date of his attaining the age
of superannuation or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

* Appointed in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.4/5/2012-BO-I dated 5th August 2013 as Executive Director for
a period of five years from the date of his taking over charge of the post, or until further orders, whichever is
earlier.

**  Appointed as Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/3/2012-BO-I dated 22nd October 2013 under
clause (b) of sub section (3) of section 9 of the The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970/1980 with immediate effect and until further orders.

@ Appointed as Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/34/2013-BO-I dated 31st May 2013 under clause

(c) of sub section 3 of Section 9 of Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980
with immediate effect and until further orders.

++ + + + Appointed as Workmen Employee Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.No0.9 /35/2009-BO-I dated

23rd November 2011under Clause (e) of sub section 3 of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification or till he
ceases to be a Workmen employee of Punjab &Sind Bank or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Appointed as part-time non-official Director under chartered accountant category in terms of GOl MOF letter
No F.No 6/16/2013-BO-I dated 30th January 2013 under of sub section (3g) of Section 9 of The Banking
Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date
of notification and / or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Elected from amongst the shareholders, other than the Central Government, in terms of Section 9 (3) (i) of
The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with Clause 9 (4 ) of the
Nationalised Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 and Regulation 66 (i) of Punjab &
Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations,2008 for a period of 3 years, i.e. from 03.06.2011.

Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/59/2010-BO-I dated 15th
July 2011 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
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Punjab & Sind Bank
++ Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/16/2011-BO-I dated 12th
August 2013 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

+ + +Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.N0.6/57/2010-BO-I dated 13th
July 2011 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

+ + + + Elected from amongst the shareholders, other than the Central Government, in terms of Section 9 (3) (i)
of The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with Clause 9 (4) of the
Nationalised Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 and Regulation 66 (i) of Punjab &
Sind Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2008 for a period of 3 years, i.e. from 03.06.2011.

+ + + + + + Appointed as part-time non-official Director in terms of GOl MOF letter No F.No0.6/56/2013-BO-I dated
30th January 2014 under of sub section (3h) and (3-A) of Section 9 of The Banking Companies (Acquisition
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 for a period of three years from the date of notification of her
appointment or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

2.2 Appointment / Cessation of Directors During The Year
The constitution of Bank’s Board of Directors underwent the following changes during the year 2013-2014:

[A] Appointment:

= Sh. Jatinderbir Singh, IAS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of Punjab & Sind Bank vide
Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No.
4/7/2013-BO.1 dated 31.01.2014.

= Smt. Anita Karnavar was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/56/2013-BO.1 dated
30.01.2014.

= Sh. S C Das was nominated as Ministry of Finance Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/3/2012-BO.1
dated 22.10.2013.

= Sh. Mukesh Kumar Jain was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Kishore Kumar Sansi was appointed as Executive Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, vide Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 4/5/2012-
BO.1 dated 05.08.2013.

®  Sh. Sanjay Verma was nominated as Non-official Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/16/2011-BO.1 dated
12.08.2013.

= Sh. Pradipta K Jena was nominated as RBI Nominee Director of the Bank vide Government of India, Ministry
of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi Notification No.F.No. 6/34/2013-BO.1 dated
31.05.2013

[B] Directors out going / resigned during the year:

®  Sh. Devinder Pal Singh completed his term as Chairman & Managing Director of the Bank on 31.01.2014
i.e. the last day of the month in which he attained the age of superannuation.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Sh. Rajat Sachar MOF Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 21.10.2013.

Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon completed his term as Non-Official Director on the Board of the Bank on
04.07.2013.

Sh. B P Kanungo RBI Nominee Director was on the Board of the Bank up to 30.05.2013.

Sh. P K Anand completed his term as Executive Director of the Bank on 31.05.2013 i.e. the last day of the
month in which he attained the age of superannuation.

2.3 Profiles of Directors appointed during 2013-14:
[A] Shri Jatinderbir Singh-1AS

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI JATINDERBIR SINGH

2. FATHER’S NAME SARDAR BALWANT SINGH

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 12.12.1957 - 56YEARS
PUNJAB & SIND BANK, BANK HOUSE,21, RAJENDRA

4. PRESENT ADDRESS PLACE,NEW DELHI

5. EMAIL ADDRESS CMD@PSB.ORG.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION MBA, PG-ENGLISH, GRADUATION

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND
BANK

8. EXPERIENCE DURING HIS 30 YEARS LONG SERVICE SPAN HE
HAD MANY PRESTIGIOUS ASSIGNMENTS IN ASSAM,
MEGHALAYA AND IN DIFFERENT CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
MINISTRIES SUCH AS HOME AFFAIRS, CHEMICALS &
FERTILIZERS, DEFENCE AND WATER RESOURCES.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if —

any)

[B] Shri Mukesh Kumar Jain

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI MUKESH KUMAR JAIN

2. FATHER’S NAME LT. SHRI MADAN LAL JAIN

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 01.08.1960 — 53 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 501, TOWER 1, COMMONWEALTH GAMES VILLAGE,
AKSHARDHAM, NEW DELHI.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS MKJAIN@PSB.CO.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION POST GRADUATE, DELHI SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS;
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND BANK

8. EXPERIENCE EX GENERAL MANAGER, DENA BANK

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —
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[C] Shri Kishore Kumar Sansi

Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL
1. FULL NAME SHRI KISHORE KUMAR SANSI
22 FATHER’S NAME SHRI BHIM SAIN SANSI
3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 19.08.1957- 56 YEARS
4. PRESENT ADDRESS D-1/5, RAJOURI GARDEN, NEW DELHI
5. EMAIL ADDRESS KISHORESANSI@PSB.CO.IN
6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION M.SC, M.TECH.
7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, PUNJAB & SIND BANK
8. EXPERIENCE EX GENERAL MANAGER, OBC
9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —

[D] Shri Sanjay Verma

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI SANJAY VERMA

28 FATHER’S NAME LT. SHRI SHYAMLAL VERMA

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 17.08.1968- 45 Years

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 425, 1IM VASTRAPUR, AHMEDABAD.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS SVERMA@IIMAHD.ERNET.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION PhD. , MBA, BSc.

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR PART-TIME NON-OFFICIAL DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE MORE THAN 22 YEARS TEACHING EXPERIENCE IN
PRESTIGIOUS EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTES. HAS BEEN
TEACHING IN IIM AHMEDABAD SINCE MAY-1999.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —
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[E] Shri S C Das

Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SHRI S C DAS

2, FATHER’S NAME SHRI RA) KRISHAN DAS

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 01.05.1954 — 59 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS 23/177, TYPE IV FLATS, LODHI ROAD, NEW DELHI.

5. EMAIL ADDRESS SC.DAS@NIC.IN

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION B.A.

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTOR, DY. SECTARY,
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

8. EXPERIENCE 38 YEARS EXPERIENCE IN DIFFERENT CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT MINISTRIES.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) -

[F] Smt. Anita Karnavar

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL

1. FULL NAME SMT. ANITA KARNAVAR

2. FATHER’S NAME SHRI T K R KURUP

3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 09.10.1957- 56 YEARS

4. PRESENT ADDRESS PERUMPITTATHU HOUSE, NEDUVARAMCOD, P.O.
ALLEPPEY (DT), KERALA. PIN-689508

5. EMAIL ADDRESS ANITAKARNAVAR@GMAIL.COM

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION DOUBLE POST GRADUATE

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR PART-TIME NON-OFFICIAL DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE ENTREPRENEUR, NEWS READER IN DOORDARSHAN AND
RUNNING A NGO.

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any) —

[G] Shri Pradipta Kumar Jena

SNO. PARTICULARS DETAIL
1. FULL NAME SHRI PRADIPTA KUMAR JENA
2. FATHER’S NAME SHRI DASARATHI JENA
3. DATE OF BIRTH & AGE 09.01.1959- 55 YEARS
4. PRESENT ADDRESS 26, MADHUSUDAN NAGAR,UNIT-4,

BHUBANESHWAR-751001

EMAIL ADDRESS

PKJENA@RBI.ORG.IN
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Punjab & Sind Bank

SNO. PARTICULARS

DETAIL

6. EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION

M.A. M.PHIL

7. NATURE OF APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR

RBI NOMINEE DIRECTOR

8. EXPERIENCE

CGM REGIONAL DIRECTOR, RBI, BHUBANESHWAR

9. PARTICULARS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP (if any)

2.4 Board Meetings:

During the Financial Year 2013-14, total 16 Board Meetings were held on the following dates as against minimum
of 6 meetings prescribed under Clause 12 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions)

Scheme, 1980.

06.04.2013 01.05.2013 21.05.2013 31.05.2013 14.06.2013
26.06.2013 27.07.2013 19.08.2013 25.09.2013 05.10.2013
11.11.2013 21.12.2013 02.01.2014 16.01.2014 28.01.2014
26.02.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Board Meetings held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their attended
tenure
Sh D.P. Singh — Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 15 14
Sh Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 4 4
Sh. K.K.Sansi-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 9
Sh M.K.Jain-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 9
Sh Rajat Sachar — MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 10 8
Sh S C Das— MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 6 4
Sh B.P. Kanungo —RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 3 1
Sh. P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 13 7
Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non-Official Diredtor 01.04.2013-31.03.2014 16 15
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 6 5
Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 75



m uony ws g §6

e &1 W Iafer S0 didTd & | doa e
IR amAfea | weariar @t
do@ g
N TARISA— IR—ATRHIRS s 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 13
£ G STgR— IR—3MHIRS e 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 13
7 HOlld HAR IRIST—IR—AABING Aerd 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 16
3N THNGE fae— IR—eRi@RS fFawrs 01.04.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 16 16
£ | qH— IR—AAHIRS e® 12.08.2013 ¥ 31.03.2014 9 7
S AT HUITaR— IR—aTRHIRS Ao 30.01.2014 ¥ 31.03.2014 1 1
2.5. sa Higar

3.2

76

(e Hedl T THRT e difie Sl (el vd (e 3 v ug e o1 el #emegs |ieiford 8, 8 b
TSl H AGGAT DRR D TS 49 D U H AR | Pl (e Heel gRT AT PR 31 TR & | 7
MR AT &1 §% @1 de9a1ge www.psbindia.com TR 31dalid fdhar ST Gl © | Feee Asa & W) wedi ud
HETERID! =1 TR HfedT & Ui FeAfd &b P & © |

TATT 0P

g1f¥e araTeT Job:

9% B UYIRURDI DI AN ATb AT 906 IaR f&id 26 S, 2013 BT 93 fQeell d AT B T8, S8l
fafaRad feere Sulerd 2

1. it SIqRiE e Ud ey fAeerd
2. ot ToTd R IBENEY
3. 31 HSS AR T [RENED
4, N HAuTe g dear IRENED
5. 7GR UTel 99l IRENED
6. CIRGENCE-T IRENED
7. 31 G2 BTHR [RENED
8. I ICEC NS IRENED
9. i g di v o s
JATYTEOT HTHATT SO

IRT ARPR & AIH | BRI B g ARG & U BT SfFaS] IWRT & AHM 377de dRd R [GaR R
T fai® 21.12.2013 ST RAURU HHRI 46 AN S g 7201 I8 [Auig form w1 & %, 10/— 9 &
2,12,63,023 AT IRRT BT AH MR R 6. 47.03 / —(F. 37.03 & WA ARA) W IRT WHR & ARIA 4
BRI HA U ART @ U BT SN Td 377afed fhy 97y |

frearar o afft

§5 & Feve Hsa 7 HRURCS -9 Tl GIRGH U§ed Yulell TR ¥Rd WRGR dl 9Rdd Red 96 &
feem—fdergaR SR & Fe@yul &5 W IR ed & forg e @1 faf afafel o1 1o fear 2
IS HHS P dod & SR Yaa aif A9 Fed / ienflis deg & gRared, fwred faerg R faar—faqst
D AR A AP, IR & HRI-AHIEH, FFER], AN, JIRgH 3R SHA HefST sraegaanei &
fageiyer W SR a1 8 | Fees dea g1 Mfda Aeaqul affadl fe=rgar §

aiffe Ruré 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their attended
tenure

Sh. N.Rajendran- Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 13
Sh Suresh Thakur -Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 13
Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora -Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16
Sh. S.P.S. Virk-Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 16 16
Sh. Sanjay Verma -Non Official Director 12.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 9 7

Smt. Anita Karnavar- Non-Official Director

30.01.2014 to 31.03.2014

2.5 Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and key Management Personnel i.e. Directors & one rank below
Director comprising all General Managers has been approved by the Board of Directors in compliance of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The said Code of Conduct is posted on Bank’s website www.
pshindia.com. All the Board Members and General Managers have since affirmed the compliance of the Code.

3. General Meeting

3.1. Annual General Meeting:

The Third Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank was held on Wednesday, 26th June, 2013
at New Delhi, where the following Directors were present :

1. | Sh. D.P. Singh Ex.Chairman and Managing Director
2. | Sh. Rajat Sachar Director
3. | Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta Director
4, Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon Director
5. | Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta Director
6. Sh. N Rajendran Director
7. | Sh. Suresh Thakur Director
8. | Sh. Sanjiv Arora Director
9. | Sh. S.P.S.Virk Director

3.2. Extra Ordinary General Meeting :

Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Bank was held on 21.12.2013 to consider the allotment of preferential
issue of equity shares to The President of India acting through the Government of India [GOI] and it was
resolved to issue and allot 2,12,63,023 equity shares of Rs.10/- each to The President of India acting through

the Government of India [GOI] on preferential basis at a price of Rs.47.03 (including premium of Rs.37.03).

4. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Bank has constituted various Committees of Directors to look into different areas of
strategic importance in terms of Reserve Bank of India and Government of India guidelines on Corporate Governance
and Risk Management. The Management lays emphasis on the analysis of sectoral development, segment / product
performance, opportunities, threats, risks & associated concern besides operational performance & development
of HR / IR in the discussions during the Board / Committee Meetings. The important Committees of the Board

are as under:
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SNo Name of the Committee
1. Management Committee of the Board (MC)
2. Audit Committee of Board (ACB)
3. Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds
4, Vigilance Committee
5. Risk Management Committee
6. Customer Service Committee
7. Remuneration Committee
8. Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee
9. Nomination Committee
10. |1 T Strategy Committee
11. | Committee of Directors on Executives’ Promotions
12. | Committee of Directors on Appellate / Reviewing Authority
13. | HR Committee
14. | Committee for Monitoring of Recovery
15. | Concurrent Audit Committee
16. | Election of Shareholder Director Committee-Voting by Public Sector Bank

4.1. Management Committee of the Board:

In pursuance of Clause 13 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980

(as amended) read with the amendments made by the Ministry of Finance, Government of India, a Management

Committee of the Board has been constituted to consider various business matters of material significance like

sanction of high value credit proposals, compromise / write-off proposals, sanction of capital and revenue

expenditure, premises, investments, donations etc.

The Committee mandate to consist of Chairman and Managing Director , Executive Director (s)and Directors
nominated by Government of India under Section 9 (3) (c) and 9 (3) (g) besides three Directors from amongst
those appointed under sub section (e) (f) (h) and (i) of section 9(3) of The Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980.

The composition of the committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:

SNo

Name of the Director

_

Sh. Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

Sh K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

Sh. M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Sh Pradipta.K. Jena — RBI Nomiinee Director

Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta —Non-Official Director (CA Category)

Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta — Non-Official Director

Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non-official Director

Sh. Suresh Thakur— Non-Official Director

(PN |u B ]w

Sh. Sanjay Verma- Non-Official Director
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During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Management Committee of the Board met on 21 occasions on the following dates:

06.04.2013 21.05.2013 26.06.2013 26.07.2013 19.08.2013
23.08.2013 07.09.2013 17.09.2013 25.09.2013 05.10.2013
26.10.2013 11.11.2013 07.12.2013 21.12.2013 02.01.2014
11.01.2014 28.01.2014 26.02.2014 12.03.2014 22.03.2014
29.03.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

Name of the Director

Period

Meetings held during
their tenure

Meetings attended

Sh D.P. Singh — Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 17 16
Sh. Jatinderbir Singh— CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 2 2
Sh. K.K.Sansi— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 17 17
Sh. M.K.Jain— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 17 17
Sh B.P. Kanungo-RBI Nominee 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 2 1
Sh. P K Jena-RBI Nominee 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 19 12
S. Mahesh Kumar Gupta — Non official 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 21 20
Director
. . 14.06.2013 to 13.12.2013 11 11

Sh. Sukhen Pal Babuta—Non official Director

01.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 7 6

01.04.2013 to 13.06.2013 2 2
Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non official Director 01.07.2013 to 31.12.2013 11 11

15.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Sh. Karanpal Singh Sekhon— 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 3 3
Non official Director
Sh. Sanjay Verma- Non official Director 14.12.2013 to 31.03.2014 8 6

01.04.2013 to 14.07.2013 3 3
Sh. Suresh Thakur— Non official Director

11.01.2014 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Sh. S.P.S.Virk-Workmen Employee Director 15.07.2013 to 14.01.2014 13 13

4.2. Audit Committee of Board (ACB):

The Bank, in consonance with the fundamentals of Corporate Governance and in pursuance of directives of the
Reserve Bank of India, has constituted an Audit Committee of the Board. A Non-Executive Director, who is a
Chartered Accountant, is the Chairman of the Committee.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:
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1

Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta - CA Director (Chairperson)

2 Sh K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3 Sh M.K.Jain — Executive Director

4 Sh S C Das — MOF Nominee Director

5 Sh P. K.Jena — RBI Nominee Director

6 Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non Official Director
During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) met on 08 occasions on the dates given
below:
17.04.2013 01.05.2013 27.07.2013 03.09.2013 11.11.2013 07.12.2013
28.01.2014 26.02.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Sr. Name of the Director Period Meeting held Meeting
No during their attended
tenure

Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta CA

1. 01.04.2013 to 20.12.2013 6 6
Chairperson upto 20.12.2013

2. | Sh P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 2 2

3. | Sh. K K Sansi - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5

4. | Sh. M K Jain - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5

5. | Sh. S C DAS-MoF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 3

6. | Sh Rajat Sachar — MoF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 4 4

7. | Sh B.P. Kanungo - RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 30.05.2013 2 0

8. | Sh P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 6 4

9. | Sh Mahesh Kumar Gupta (Chairperson w.e.f. 05.03.2013 to 31.03.2014 8 6
21.12.2013)- Non official Director

10. | Sh.Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non official Director 21.12.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2

The main functions of Audit Committee inter-alia include assessing and reviewing the financial reporting system of
the Bank to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. It reviews and recommends to
the Management the quarterly / annual financial statements before their submission to the Board.

The Audit Committee provides directions and oversees the operations of total audit functions of the Bank including
the organization, operation and quality control of internal audit, internal control weaknesses and inspection within
the Bank and follow-up of the suggestions of Statutory/External audit of the Bank and RBI inspections.

The Committee also reviews the adequacy of internal control systems, structure of internal audit department, its
staffing pattern and hold discussions with the internal auditors / inspectors on any significant finding and follow-up
action thereon. It further reviews the financial and risk management policies of the Bank.
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As for Statutory Audit, the Audit Committee interacts with the Statutory Central Auditors before finalization of Quarterly

/ Year to date / Annual Financial Results and Reports. It also maintains follow up on various issues raised in the Long
Form Audit Report (LFAR).

4.3 Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds:

Reserve Bank of India vide its letter No.RBI1/2004.5.DBS.FGV(F)N0.1004/23.04.01A/2003-4 dated 14th January,
2004 informed about the delay in various aspects of frauds like detection, reporting to regulatory and enforcement
agencies and action against the perpetrators of the frauds. It was therefore, suggested to constitute a Sub-committee
of the Board, which would be exclusively dedicated to monitor and follow up of fraud cases of Rs.1.00 crore
and above. The Audit Committee of the Board will continue to monitor all the cases of frauds in general.

The major functions of the Committee, inter-alia, include monitoring and review of all the frauds of Rs.1.00
crore and above so as to:

(@) Identify the systemic lacunae if any that facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures
to plug the same

(b) Identify the reasons for delay in detection, if any, reporting to top management of the Bank and RBI

-

(c)  Monitor progress of CBI/Police investigation and recovery position

(d)  Ensure that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and staff side action, if
required, is completed quickly without loss of time

(e) Review the efficacy of the remedial action taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as strengthening
of internal controls; and

(f)  Put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen Preventive measures against
frauds.

The Special Committee is constituted with five members of the Board of Directors consists of: (a) Chairman
and Managing Director (b) Two members from ACB and (c) Two other members from the Board excluding RBI
Nominee.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:
(i) Shri Jatinderbir Singh- CMD

(i) Shri S C Das — MOF Director

(iii)  Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta- Non- Official Director

(iv)  Shri Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non- Official Director

(v)  Shri Sanjay Verma- Non- Official Director

The Committee met three times during the Financial Year 2013-14 as per the details below:

14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of directors during their tenure are as under:

Meetings held Meetings
Name of the Director Period SR Atz
tenure
Shri D.P. Singh-Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 3 3
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri Rajat Sachar — M.O.F. Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das — M.O.F. Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
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Meetings held Meetings
Name of the Director Period ugsphen AliEm
tenure
Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta — Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 1 1
Sh. Sanjay Verma — Non official Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

4.4

RBI, vide letter No. DBS. CO. FrMC. No. 7/23.04.001/2009-10 dated 16.09.2009 had advised to initiate necessary
action in respect of effective investigation in fraud cases and prompt reporting to appropriate authority. The Bank
has since then set up a Centralized Dedicated Operating Unit under the aegis of HO Inspection Department to
undertake distinct functions relating to frauds above Rs. 1.00 crore as advised by RBI.

In terms of Board Resolution no. 20214 dated 12.12.2012, a new independent Deptt named ‘Fraud Monitoring
Department’ has been working since 07.02.2013 at one place, leaving no scope to overlapping and duplicity of
effort. Earlier, fraud cases were dealt at two places viz the large value fraud of Rs. one crore & above at HO.
Inspection Deptt, where as frauds below the amount of Rs. one crore were being dealt by HO. Vigilance Deptt.
The new set up resulted in close monitoring of fraud cases, faster closure of old fraud cases, effective follow
up and implementation of preventive measures to check the recurrence of frauds alongwith improvement in
timely reporting of frauds to RBI.

In terms of the directions of Special Committee of Board (SCB), a Committee has also been formed in view of
increasing trend of frauds particularly in those cases where property is kept as security. The identified vulnerable
areas are valuation of property, genuineness of the title deeds and multiple mortgages.

Vigilance Committee

With a view to make the review of vigilance work an effective instrument of monitoring the speedy disposal
of vigilance disciplinary cases, a Vigilance Committee of the Board has been set up in the Bank in terms of
Ministry of Finance letter No.10/12/90/VIG/CVOs dated 24.10.1990 with following members:

1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- CMD

2. Shri K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3. Shri M.K. Jain — Executive Director

4. Shri S.C.Das- M.O.F. Nominee Director

5. Shri P.K.Jena - RBI Nominee Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY — 2013-14

14.06.2013 19.08.2013 21.12.2013 28.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure are

as under:
Name of the Director Period Meetings held Meetings
during their tenure attended
Shri D.P. Singh —Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh—-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
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Shri P.K. Anand- Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0
Shri K.K.Sansi— ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014

Shri M.K.Jain—- ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3
Shri Rajat Sachar— MOF Nominee Director | 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2
Shri S.C.Das— MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 2
Shri P.K.Jena— RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 2

4.5. Risk Management Committee:

The Bank has constituted a Board level Risk Management Committee to review and evaluate the overall risks
assumed by the Bank.

The Committee reviews three important risk functions viz. Credit Risks, Market Risks and Operational Risks and

takes an integrated view of the subject and impart suitable directions if required.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Shri K.K.Sansi — Executive Director

Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director

Shri N. Rajendran — Non Official Director

6.

Shri Sanjay Verma — Non Official Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY - 2013-14

14.06.2013 25.09.2013

21.12.2013

16.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Meetings of the Committee held during their respective tenure
are as under:

Meetings Meetings
Name of the Director Period held during attended
their tenure

Shri D.P. Singh-Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri K.K.Sansi-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri M.K.Jain-ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3
Shri P.K. Anand-Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Shri N Rajendran— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
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Shri Sanjay Verma — Non Official Director

11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 2

Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon— Non Official Director 01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013 1

The Bank has set up an appropriate risk management architecture, comprising Risk Management Organizational
Structure, Risk Principles, Risk Processes, Risk Control and Risk Audit, all with a view to ideally identify, manage,
monitor and control various categories of risks, viz. Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk, etc. The
underlying objective is to ensure continued stability and efficiency in the operations of the Bank and to look

after the safety of the Bank.

4.6 Customer Service Committee:

(@) Customer Service Committee of the Board

The Bank has constituted a sub-committee of Board, known as ‘Customer Service Committee of the Board’. The
Committee has the following members as on 31st March, 2014:

1. Shri. Jatinderbir Singh-Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri K.K. Sansi — Executive Director

3. Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

4, Shri S.P.S. Virk — Workmen Director

5. Shri Suresh Thakur- Non-Official Director

The functions of the Committee include creating a platform for making suggestions and innovative measures for
enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the level of satisfaction for all categories of clientele
at all times, which inter-alia comprises the following:

i. Act as apex Committee on Customer Service and oversees the functioning of the Standing Committee on
Customer Service and also compliance with the recommendations of the Committee on Procedure and
Performance Audit on Public Service (CPPAPS).

ii. Review the status of the Awards remaining unimplemented for more than 3 months from the date of Awards

and also deficiencies in providing banking services as observed by the Banking Ombudsman.

iii. Mount innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving level of customer
satisfaction for all categories of clientele.

During the Financial Year 2013-14, the Committee met on the following dates:

27.7.2013 11.11.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors are as under:

Name of the Director Period Meetings held during Meetings
the period of their attended
tenure
Shri D.P. Singh - Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 2 2
Shri Jatinderbir Singh - CMD 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Shri K.K. Sansi - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
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Shri M.K. Jain - ED 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.ED 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0

Shri S.P.S. Virk — Workmen Employee Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2

Shri Suresh Thakur- Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 1
(b) Standing Committee on Customer Service:

4.7

4.8

Besides, the Sub Committee of the Board as aforesaid, the Bank has also set up a Standing Committee on
Customer Service having two General Managers of the Bank and three other eminent public personalities as
members, as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India. The Committee is chaired by the Executive Director
of the Bank.

Main functions of the committee are:
(i)  To take stock of the customer centric measures taken by the Bank.

(i)  To get feedback from the Zonal Offices and put up the same on customer service committee of the Board
for necessary Policy / Procedural action facilitate change on an ongoing basis.

Remuneration Committee:

Government of India announced Performance Linked Incentives for Whole Time Directors of Public Sector Banks
vide Notification No.F N0.20/1/2005-BO.I dated 9th March, 2007. The incentive is based on certain qualitative
as well as quantitative parameters fixed for Performance Evaluation Matrix on the basis of the statement of intent
on goals and benchmarks based on various compliance reports during the previous financial year. In compliance
of the said directives, a Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted for evaluation of the performance
and incentive amount to be awarded / paid during the year.

The composition of the present Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

1. Shri.S. C. Das, MOF Nominee Director

2. Shri P.K. Jena, RBI Nominee Director

3. Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta, Non-Official Director

4. Shri Sanjay Verma, Non-Official Director

Shareholders' / Investors' Grievances Committee:

The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee has been constituted to redress shareholders and investors
complaints, if any.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta, Non Official Director - Chairman

2. Shri Jatinderbir Singh, Chairman & Managing Director - Member
3. Shri M.K.Jain, Executive Director - Member

4. Shri N Rajendran, Non Official Director-Member

The Committee met on the following dates during the FY — 2013-14

01.05.2013 27.07.2013 11.11.2013 28.01.2014

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:
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Meetings held during Meetings
Name of the Director Period the period of their attended
tenure

Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta - Chairperson 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 4
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 1 1
Shri D.P.Singh Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri M.K.Jain- Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri N Rajendran 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 4 3

The Committee monitors the redressal of investors’ complaints in a time bound manner. The summary of number of
requests/complaints received and resolved during the year are as under

Pending as on 01.04.2013

Received during the year Resolved during the year

Pending as on 31.03.2014

NIL

25 24

One case pertaining to dividend, received on 31.03.2014 on SCORES portal of SEBI was outstanding at the end of
the year 2013-14 and the same was closed by SEBI on 03.04.2014 on the basis of Action Taken Report submitted
On-line by the Bank. Company Secretary has been designated as the “Compliance Officer” of the Bank under Clause
47 (a) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges.

4.9 HR Committee

The HR Committee has been constituted vide BR No0.19841 dated 05.05.2012 for promoting progressive HR
plans and to have interaction with various unions and associations. CMD, ED and anyone among the other
members is the quorum for meeting. Meeting may be held as and when required but at least once in a quarter.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:

Shri Jatinderbir Singh

o1k W=

—IAS-Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director - Member

Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director - Member

Shri S C Das , MOF Nominee Director-Member

Sh. Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non- Official Director- Member

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14\

14.06.2013

25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

. . Meetings held during the Meetings
Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri D.P. Singh- Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 3 3
Shri Jatinderbir Singh-Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 0 0
Managing Director
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
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Director

Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora- Non- Official 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3

4.10 Nomination Committee:

Reserve Bank of India has laid down “Fit and Proper” criteria to be fulfilled by persons to be elected as
directors on the Boards of the Nationalized Banks under the provisions of Section 9(3)(i) of Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/80. In terms of the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India, a Nomination Committee is required to be constituted consisting of a minimum of three directors (all
independent/non executive directors) from amongst the Board of Directors. In compliance of the said directives,
a “Nomination Committee” had been constituted.

411 IT Strategy Committee of the Board

With a view to take forward IT initiatives and drive other benefits of technologies, IT Strategy Committee of the
Board comprising of the following members is in place as on 31.03.2014.

1. Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director

2. Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director

3. Shri S.C.Das - M.O.F. Nominee Director

N

. Shri Sanjay Verma- Non Official Director

5. Shri N Rajendran — Non Official Director-Chairman of the Committee

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14

14.06.2013 25.09.2013 21.12.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective

tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the Meetings

Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex.Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 0 0
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 2 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Shri N Rajendran-Non-Official Director 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014 3 3

Shri Karanpal Singh Sekhon - Non-
Official Director

01.04.2013 to 04.07.2013

Shri Sanjay Verma — Non- Official
Director

11.11.2013 to 31.03.2014
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4.12 Committee of the Board on Executives’ Promotions:

A Committee of Directors consisting of Executive Director (in the absence of CMD) and the nominee Directors of
Government of India and Reserve Bank of India has been formed for dealing with the promotions at senior level.
The Committee met on 19.04.2013 and 29.03.2014 for conducting interview for the post of General Managers.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri S.C.Das -MOF Nominee Director

3. Shri P.K.Jena-RBI Nominee Director

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the | Meetings attended

Name of the Director Period period of their tenure

Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Managing Director

Shri. D.P.Singh-Ex - Chairman & 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 1 1
Managing Director

Shri Rajat Sachar-MOF Nominee Director 01.04.2013 to 21.10.2013 1 1
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Sh B.P. Kanungo —RBI Nominee Director 01.04.2014 to 30.05.2013 1 1
Sh. P.K.Jena- RBI Nominee Director 31.05.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 1

4.13 Committee of the Board on Appellate / Reviewing Authority:

A committee of the Board on Appellate / Reviewing Authority is constituted to consider appeal / review in
respect of Disciplinary cases at senior Management level, with the following members as on 31.03.2014:

1. Sh. P.K.Jena - RBI Nominee Director
2. Sh. S.C.Das - MOF Nominee Director
3. Sh. Mahesh Kumar Gupta - Non-Official Director

4.14 Committee for Monitoring of Recovery:

A Committee of Directors consisting of Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Director and the nominee
Director of Ministry of Finance has been formed to monitor the progress in recovery of the Bank in terms of
directions received from Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, New Delhi,vide their letter
no.F.No. 7/112/2012- BOA letter dated 21.11.2012.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2014 is as under:
1. Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & Managing Director
2. Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director

3. Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director
4, Shri S.C.Das -MOF Nominee Director

The Committee met on following dates during the financial year 2013-14.

13.05.2013 13.06.2013 18.07.2013 17.09.2013 13.03.2014
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The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during the Meetings
Name of the Director Period period of their tenure attended
Shri. D.P.Singh Ex.CMD 01.04.2013 to 31.01.2014 4 4
Shri Jatinderbir Singh- Chairman & 04.02.2014 to 31.03.2014 1 1
Managing Director
Shri P.K. Anand - Ex. Executive Director 01.04.2013 to 31.05.2013 1 1
Shri M.K. Jain - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri K.K. Sansi - Executive Director 05.08.2013 to 31.03.2014 2 2
Shri Rajat Sachar — MOF Nominee Director 01.03.2013 to 21.10.2013 4 4
Shri S C Das-MOF Nominee Director 22.10.2013 to 31.03.2014 1 0

4.15 Concurrent Audit Committee of the Board
Concurrent Audit Committee of the Board comprising of the following members is in place as on 31.03.2014.

Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director

Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta Non-Official Director

The Committee met on the following dates during the Financial Year 2013-14

26.07.2013 19.08.2013 30.08.2013 04.09.2013 11.09.2013

The details of attendance of the Directors at the aforesaid Meetings of the Committee held during their respective
tenure are as under:

Meetings held during | Meetings
Name of the Director Period the period of their attended
tenure
Shri Sanjiv Kumar Arora — Non-Official Director 14.06.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 5
Shri Sukhen Pal Babuta Non-Official Director 14.06.2013 to 31.03.2014 5 4

4.16. Election of Shareholder Directors Committee-Voting by Public Sector Bank:

In terms of Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services letter date 03.04.2012 a committee of Board
for taking decision on supporting the candidates in election as Shareholder Directors in various companies,
Financial institutions and PSU Banks was constituted as per Board resolution number 19840 dated 05.05.2012.

The composition of the Committee as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

1. | Shri Jatinderbir Singh- IAS- Chairman & Managing Director

Shri M.K.Jain — Executive Director

Shri K.K.Sansi — Executive Director

2
3
4. | Shri Suresh Thakur — Non-Official Director
5

Shri Surinder Pal Singh Virk ~-Workmen Employee Director
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4.17 Share Transfer Committee:

Punjab & Sind Bank

A committee of officials comprising of one CGM, two GMs, one AGM and the Company Secretary approved the
demat/ transfer/transmission of shares at least once in a fortnight. The minutes of the Share Transfer Committee
are placed before the Board in the forthcoming meetings. 27 meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were
held during 2013-14. The Bank ensures that all transfer of shares is affected within a period of one month from

the date of their lodgment.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The remuneration including traveling and halting expenses to Non-Executive Directors which are being paid as
stipulated by the Central Government in consultation with Reserve Bank of India from time to time in terms of
Clause 17 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (as amended).

The Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Directors are being paid remuneration by way of salary as
per rules framed by the Government of India. The details of remuneration and Performance Linked Incentives
paid to Chairman and Managing Director and Executive Director/s is detailed below:

A.  Salary including Arrears paid during the Financial Year 2013-14:

(Amount in Rupees)

Sr. No Name Designation Amount (Rs.)
1 Shri Jatinderbir Singh Chairman & Managing Director 2,84,117.85
2 Shri M.K. Jain Executive Director 10,67,048.38
3 Shri K.K. Sansi Executive Director 10,12,322.57
4 Shri D.P. Singh Ex. Chairman & Managing Director 15,05,393.53
5 Shri P.K. Anand Ex.Executive Director 2,86,961.2

The Sitting Fee paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the Year 2013-14 is as under: (No sitting fee is payable
to whole time directors and director representing Government. of India):

Sr.No Name of the Director Amount Paid in Rs.
1 Sh Sukhen Pal Babuta 3,30,000
2. S. Mahesh Kumar Gupta 2,95,000
3 Sh Sanjiv Kumar Arora 3,25,000
4 Sh K P S Sekhon 80,000
5 Sh Suresh Thakur 1,70,000
6 Sh N. Rajendran 1,80,000
7 Sh S.P.S. Virk 2,35,000
8 Sh. Sanjay Verma 1,20,000
9 Smt. Anita Karnavar 10,000

TOTAL 17,45,000
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6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of last three General Body Meetings of the shareholders held are given below:

Nature Day & Date Time Venue

AGM Thursday16.06.2011 11.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park,
New Delhi-110 010

AGM Saturday 23.06.2012 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium Subroto Park,
New Delhi-110 010

AGM Wednesday 26.06.2013 9.00 a.m. India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg,
Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003

EGM Tuesday 27.03.2012 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110 010

EGM Monday 11.03.2013 9.00 a.m. Air Force Auditorium
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110 010

EGM Saturday 21.12.2013 9.00 a.m. India International Centre, 40-Max Mueller Marg,
Lodhi Estate, New Delhi-110003

7. DISCLOSURES:

a) There is no materially significant Related Party Transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Bank at large.

b) Income by way of Fees, Commission other than on Government Business, Commission on Guarantees,
LCs, Exchange, Brokerage, Interest on overdue Bills, Advance Bills and Interest earned on Tax Refunds are
accounted for on realization basis.

c) Dividend on Shares in Joint Ventures and Associates is accounted on actual realization basis.

d) No penalties and strictures have been imposed on the Bank by the Stock Exchange and /or SEBI for non-
compliance of any law, guidelines and directives, on any matters related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

e) As on date, the Central Vigilance Commission’s Whistle Blower Policy is in place.

f) Directors have disclosed that they have no relationship between directors inter se as on 31st March 2014.

8. MANDATORY AND NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The Bank has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements as provided in Revised Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges where Bank'’s shares are listed.

The extent of implementation of non-mandatory requirements is as under:

Sr. No | Non-mandatory requirement Status of Implementation

1. Non-executive Chairman to maintain Not Applicable, since the Chairman’s position is
Chairman’s Office at company’s expense. Executive.

2. Board to set-up a Remuneration Committee | Not applicable, as Chairman & Managing Director and
to formulate company’s remuneration Executive Directors draw salary as fixed by the Government
policy on specific remuneration package for | of India. However a Remuneration Committee is in
Executive Directors. operation to consider Performance Linked Incentive in

terms of guidelines issued by the Central Government.

3. Half-yearly declaration of financial Half yearly/Quarterly financial results were published in
performance including summary of leading newspapers and were also placed on the website
significant events in last six months to be of the Bank for the information of the shareholders.
sent to shareholders.

4, Company may move towards regime of The Bank has initiated steps for moving towards achieving
unqualified financial statements. unqualified financial statements.
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5. Company may train Board Members in the
Business Model of the Company as well as
risk profile of the business parameters of the
company, the responsibilities as Director
and the best way to discharge them.

A complete overview of the Business Model and risk
profile along with Code of Conduct adopted by the Board
of Directors has been communicated to each member of
the Board.

6. The evaluation of performance of non-
executive Directors by other members of
the Board and to decide to continue or
otherwise of the Directorship of the non-
executive Directors.

A Nomination Committee has been constituted in terms
of Reserve Bank of India Guidelines and the directors to
be elected under clause 9(3)(i) of The Banking Companies
(Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 shall
be subject to determination of their fit & proper status.

7. The Company to establish the Whistle
Blower Policy for reporting management

As on date, the Central Vigilance Commission’s Whistle
Blower Policy is in place.

concerns about unethical behaviors, actual
or suspected fraud, etc.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Bank recognizes the need for keeping its members and stakeholders informed of the events of their interests
through present advanced information technology and means of communication.

The financial results of the Bank are submitted to the stock exchanges, where the securities of the Bank are
listed, immediately after the conclusion of the Board Meeting approving the same. The results are also published
in minimum two or more newspapers, one circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and the
other circulating in the NCT of Delhi where the Head Office of the Bank is situated.

The quarterly/year to year/Annual Financial results of the bank are posted on the Bank's website http://www.psbindia.com.

1. Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 25th Floor,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai-400001
BSE CODE : 533295
2. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
“Exchange Plaza”
Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra,(East)
Mumbai 400 051
NSE CODE : PSB-EQ

The annual listing fees in respect of all the securities listed with the exchange(s) have been paid till date.

10.1 Dematerialisation of Securities:

The shares of the Bank are under compulsory demat list of SEBI and the Bank has entered in to Agreements
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for
dematerialization of Bank’s shares. Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized with either NSDL or CDSL.

As on March 31, 2014 the Bank has 275284212 Number of Equity Shares of which 275281524 Shares are held
in dematerialized form, as per the detail given below.

Nature of Holding Number of shares Percentage
Physical 2688 0.0009
Dematerialized
NSDL 42321308 15.3737
CDSL * 232960216 84.6254
Total 275284212 100.0000

* includes 22,41,32,212 equity shares held by the Government of India.
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10.2 Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) :

Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) is a modern method of payment where the amounts of dividend/interest etc.,
are directly credited to the bank accounts of the Investors concerned. The Bank has offered the services to the
shareholders with an option to avail the facility at all the centers covered by Reserve Bank of India under its
National ECS/ ECS facility.

10.3 Electronic Share Transfer System & Redressal of Investors’ Grievances:

The Bank ensures that all transfers of Shares are duly affected within a period of one month from the date of their
lodgment. The Board has constituted Shareholders’/ Investors’” Grievances Committee to monitor and review the
progress in redressal of shareholders’/ investors’ grievances and Shares Transfer Committee to consider transfer
of Shares and other related matters. The Committees meet at regular intervals and review the status of Investors’
Grievances.

The Bank has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Pvt Ltd as its Registrars and Transfer Agent with a mandate
to process transfer of Shares, dividend payments, recording of Shareholders’ requests, solution of investors’
grievances amongst other activities connected with the issue of Shares / Bonds. The Investors may lodge their
transfer deeds / requests / complaints with the Registrars at following address:

M/s Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

(Unit: Punjab & Sind Bank)

44, Community Centre, lind floor,

Naraina Indl. Area, Phase-l,

Near PVR Naraina,

New Delhi-110 028.

Phone : (011) 41410592 to 0594

Fax : (011) 41410591

E Mail : delhi@linkintime.co.in

The Bank has also established Shares Cell at Head Office, 21-Rajendra Place, New Delhi - 110008 wherein
the shareholders can mail their requests / complaints for resolution at the address given below:

Punjab & Sind Bank

Head Office : Shares Cell,

21-Rajendra Place, 1st Floor,

New Delhi-110 008.

Telephone : (011) 25782926, 25728930, 25812922

Fax : (011) 25781639

E-mail : complianceofficer@psb.co.in

(The aforesaid e-mail ID is exclusively designated for investors’ complaints pursuant to Clause 47(F) of the listing
agreement with Stock Exchanges)

10.4 Status report in respect of unclaimed shares of the allottees held in Escrow A/c :

S. No. Particulars NSDL CDSL
IN301330-21335661 1601010000399414

1. No. of shares lying in PSB Unclaimed Suspense 1272 1230
Account in beginning of the year
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2. No. of shareholders who approached for transfer
of shares and to whom shares were transferred
from Suspense A/c

3. No. of shares lying in PSB Unclaimed Suspense
Account at the end of the year

1272*

1230*

Certified that voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims the said shares.

11. Corporate Governance

The Bank has adopted and follows such practices, convention and codes as would provide its financial
stakeholders including the depositors, a high level of assurance on the quality of Corporate Governance. The Bank
has transparent ownership structure, well-defined executive management structure, satisfactory risk management
practices, transparency in appointment and functioning of the Board and Senior Management and an elaborate
audit function, carried out both by its Inspection Division and independent audit firms.

12. Financial Calendar (tentative):
Financial Year 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014

Board Meeting for considering of Accounts and recommendation of dividend.

10.05.2014

Submission of audited statement of accounts to RBI.

20.05.2014

Date of Fourth Annual General Meeting.
Time of Fourth Annual General Meeting

Venue of Fourth Annual General Meeting

30.06.2014 Monday
9 AM.

India International Centre,

40-Max Mueller Marg, Lodhi Estate,

New Delhi-110003

Posting of Annual Report

02.06.2014 to 04.06.2014

Book Closure dates

14.06.2014 to 30.06.2014

Record date (for entitlement of final dividend)

13.06.2014

Last Date for receipt of Proxy Forms

25.06.2014 upto 5 pm

Probable date of dispatch of warrants for Dividend

07.07.2014 - 08.07.2014

Payment date — Dividend 11.07.2014
13. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2014

Sr. Description No. of Share Holders Shares % To Equity
No.

1. Govt. of India (Promoters) 1 224132212 81.42
2. Mutual Funds/UTI 0 00 0.00
3. Financial Institutions / Banks 22 12824131 4.65
4. Insurance Companies 0 0 0
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5. facefh weemma o 15 7921591 2.88
6. PHuRe FHor 872 4576428 1.66
7. Juftee e 159790 24250948 8.81
8. RIBESIEIESIE] 1286 992437 0.36
9. faceh ®raRke o 0 0 0
10. | = 13 293986 0.11
1. | TR e 195 292479 0.11

B 162194 275284212 100.00

13.1 oIRd & egufdr oY fF oned weere o ufdforfeeT o= ¥, o sfdadh drereh o sifdener
3TYTE UT ST ¢
fa® 21.12.2013 BI d6 & YARURST B $.5L.TH. H AT Hhed & AJAIGT AR ARG & AUl Sff b AR

FRHR BT URIHRE S &, BT 10/ —. Afhd od & 2,12,63,023 SfFTT IR T faA1H 24.12.2013 BT 1AM
YR TR 37.03%. TR AT&f foar 11 il fob del 99,99,99,971.69%. X1 & o |

14. 31 @I, 2014 &Y rTe gredr o1 Jvft-are fFaeor

dqit AHA BY AHel BT Fd IR TR (3ffpeat TR BT

=1 uferera ) uferera

1 — 2500 148075 9129 9281338 92813380 337
2501 — 5000 7514 463 2848093 28480930 1.04
5001 — 10000 3628 2.24 2784032 27840320 1.01
10001 — 20000 1647 1.02 2364549 23645490 0.86
20001 — 30000 446 0.28 1127631 11276310 0.41
30001 — 40000 197 0.12 703059 7030590 0.25
40001 — 50000 154 0.09 724395 7243950 026
50001 — 100000 295 0.18 2138010 21380100 0.78
100001 3R I 3NfoH 238 0.15 253313105 2533131050 92.02
Hl AT 162194 100.00 275284212 2752842120 100.00

15. 31 aITd, 2014 ST FeeERD I onfaw gic & (Tware) f&aeor

4. NS ArTet AW % (AR B HeEm)
1. ERLIEENCRETATIN 4 333 0.00012
2. BIEREH 6547 1648588 0.59887
3. BV TS 2 550 0.00020
4, 3| 706 117948 0.04285
5, [EEIN 1547 266972 0.09698
6. eSS 1108 289205 0.10506
7. WIS 770 119975 0.04358
8. TIe™T U9 IR gdell 24 1831 0.00067
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5. Foreign Institutional Investors 15 7921591 2.88
6. Bodies Corporate 872 4576428 1.66
7. Resident Individuals 159790 24250948 8.81
8. Non Resident Indians 1286 992437 0.36
9. Overseas Corporate Bodies 0 0 0
10. | Trusts 13 293986 0.11
11. | Clearing Members 195 292479 0.11

Total 162194 275284212 100.00

13.1. Allotment of Equity Shares to The President of India acting through the Government of
India [GOI] on Preferential basis.
As approved by Special Resolution in the EGM of shareholders of the Bank, held on 21.12.2013, 2,12,63,023

equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a premium of Rs. 37.03 per share aggregating to Rs. 99,99,99,971.69
were issued to GOI on preferential allotment basis on 24.12.2013.

14. Distribution of Shareholders — Category-wise as on 31st March 2014

Category No. of Cases % of Cases | Total Shares Amount(Face % of Amount
Value)

1 - 2500 148075 91.29 9281338 92813380 3.37
2501 - 5000 7514 4.63 2848093 28480930 1.04
5001 — 10000 3628 2.24 2784032 27840320 1.01
10001 — 20000 1647 1.02 2364549 23645490 0.86
20001 - 30000 446 0.28 1127631 11276310 0.41
30001 — 40000 197 0.12 703059 7030590 0.25
40001 - 50000 154 0.09 724395 7243950 0.26
50001 — 100000 295 0.18 2138010 21380100 0.78
100001 & Above 238 0.15 253313105 2533131050 92.02
TOTAL 162194 100.00 275284212 2752842120 100.00

15. Geographical (State Wise) Distribution of Shareholders as at 31st March 2014

Sr. No. State Cases Shares % (No. of Shares)
1. ANDAMAN & NICOBAR 4 333 0.00012
2. ANDHRA PRADESH 6547 1648588 0.59887
3. ARUNACHAL PRADESH 2 550 0.00020
4. ASSAM 706 117948 0.04285
5. BIHAR 1547 266972 0.09698
6. CHANDIGARH 1108 289205 0.10506
7. CHATTISGARH 770 119975 0.04358
8. DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI 24 1831 0.00067
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9 T 3R 8 1735 0.00063
10. | feoel 15245 229002219 83.18756
1. | TR 197 26803 0.00974
12. | oA 31979 3827410 1.39035
13. | gRamn 5238 835110 0.30336
14, | feAmad uewr 300 50548 0.01836
15. | SR 3R TR 254 57341 0.02083
16. | SIRES 1436 180277 0.06549
17. | FHlc® 7203 1503306 0.54609
18. | o 1663 413902 0.15035
19. | Hew g 4269 799156 0.29030
20. | MERTS 33481 26618498 9.66946
21. | AR 9 1099 0.00040
22. | HETe™ 31 3192 0.00116
23. | ANTelS 21 7830 0.00284
24. | IS 983 171998 0.06248
25. | gif$eRY 110 20378 0.00740
26. | GoTE 4990 1273528 0.46262
27. | RToTeRIH 14213 1491478 0.54180
28. | fafawH 6 500 0.00018
29. | ATy 7995 1588467 0.57703
3. | fBgx 19 4420 0.00161
31, | SR Uew 8101 1447398 0.52578
32. | ScRrEs 937 192898 0.07007
33. | uf¥=w dwra 11498 2325797 0.84487
34. | TGN /3 14 1085 0.00039

B 16098 274291775 99.63949
35. | U.3TR3ME. 1286 992437 0.36051

Hel T 162194 275284212 100.00000

16. TTP TFATOIT 3 DAL B EGr DY AT TAT T Hiaa (Refid 01.04.2013 & 31.03.2014)

AT TP aad o ATw gfsar for 94 wie taaaw fo. (fvas)
(Tis)
e ) )
Soadd (%) | gAdH (%)) drar @Y Joadad (®) | g9 (|8) | €&l &) 9=

HIAT(HEA) (E)
ardet, 2013 63.80 57.50 1314577 63.50 57.70 326657
7, 2013 63.20 57.00 1422175 63.70 57.00 380577
S, 2013 60.50 51.85 941001 60.50 52.00 287578
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9. DAMAN & DIU 8 1735 0.00063
10. DELHI 15245 229002219 83.18756
11. GOA 197 26803 0.00974
12. GUJARAT 31979 3827410 1.39035
13. HARAYANA 5238 835110 0.30336
14. HIMACHAL PRADESH 300 50548 0.01836
15. JUMMU & KASHMIR 254 57341 0.02083
16. JHARKHAND 1436 180277 0.06549
17. KARNATAKA 7203 1503306 0.54609
18. KERALA 1663 413902 0.15035
19. MADHYA PRADESH 4269 799156 0.29030
20. MAHARASHTRA 33481 26618498 9.66946
21. MANIPUR 9 1099 0.00040
22. MEGHALAYA 31 3192 0.00116
23. NAGALAND 21 7830 0.00284
24. ORISSA 983 171998 0.06248
25. PONDICHERRY 110 20378 0.00740
26. PUNJAB 4990 1273528 0.46262
27. RAJASTHAN 14213 1491478 0.54180
28. SIKKIM 6 500 0.00018
29. TAMIL NADU 7995 1588467 0.57703
30. TRIPURA 19 4420 0.00161
31. UTTAR PRADESH 8101 1447398 0.52578
32. UTTARAKHAND 937 192898 0.07007
33. WEST BENGAL 11498 2325797 0.84487
34. APO/ OTHERS 14 1085 0.00039

Total 16098 274291775 99.63949
35. NRI 1286 992437 0.36051

GRAND TOTAL 162194 275284212 100.00000

Share Price, Volume of Shares Traded in Stock
(From 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014)

Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
Month Highest (Rs.) Low Volume Traded | Highest (Rs.) Lowest (Rs.) | Volume Traded
(Nos.) (Nos.)
APR 2013 63.80 57.50 1314577 63.50 57.70 326657
MAY 2013 63.20 57.00 1422175 63.70 57.00 380577
JUN 2013 60.50 51.85 941001 60.50 52.00 287578
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Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

JUL 2013 54.55 45.25 1107263 54.50 45.15 356002
AUG 2013 48.80 36.65 1743556 48.70 *36.75 528466
SEP 2013 44.70 37.50 2675983 44.65 37.45 622730
OCT 2013 44.75 39.25 1816286 44.80 39.45 494631
NOV 2013 54.50 43.50 3038928 54.30 43.30 1002806
DEC 2013 47.50 42.95 1389964 47.90 43.00 473662
JAN 2014 47.50 42.80 1817811 47.25 42.65 639818
FEB 2014 44.95 40.50 758389 44.35 40.70 197703
MAR 2014 45.65 40.40 3043499 45.50 40.30 616852

Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance
To: The Members of Punjab & Sind Bank

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Punjab & Sind Bank, for the year
ended on 31st March 2014, as stipulated in Clause-49 of the Listing Agreement of the Bank with Stock Exchanges.
i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Bank
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For R. M. Lall & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(R. P. Tewari)
Partner

M. No. 071448
FRN : 000932C

For B. K. Shroff & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(L. K. Shroff)
Partner

M. No. 060742
FRN : 302166E

Dated: May 10, 2014
Place : New Delhi

For O. P. Tulsyan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rakesh Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 081808

FRN : 500028N

For R. Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Kumar)
Partner

M. No. 090865
FRN : 307069E
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Punjab & Sind Bank

The Board of Directors
Punjab & Sind Bank
New Delhi

Dear Sirs,
Re: Declaration under Clause 49(1)(D) 2013-14

It is to declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Bank have affirmed their
compliance of the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2014 in accordance with clause 49
(I) (D) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. The said Code of conduct has been posted
on the Bank’s website.

For Punjab & Sind Bank

Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director

The Board of Directors
Punjab & Sind Bank
New Delhi

Dear Sirs,

Re: CEO/CFO Certification for the year 2013-14

Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreements, we hereby certify that:

(@) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2014 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Bank’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Bank during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s code of conduct.

() We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Bank pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Bank’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
For Punjab & Sind Bank
Place: New Delhi Jatinderbir Singh
Dated:10.05.2014 Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 119



m v ws e o

ard [ & fore ysdiavor 31 ad 2014 &1 Gad a9
arferst S % 1— ITUANRT &1 fawa &5

AUTHAS THTHIOT d% U9 =l art H 78T oA B |
9 9t & HalaH g &1 A T TR SIRET AN Bl 2 |

fIA® IRl @ SMIR R AT oi@l & FHEHA # IRl & AR a1 & 3idiid

3T aretl ufaftedl &1 dferd &RT (i) foeaT quf w9 3 9 f6ar w8, (i) e
JMER W FHE a1 11 %, (iii) e ge & T 7, 72 (iv) o a ar

FAfGT foar 11 2 &R 9 &1 ge <1 T 2| (S $Is SIIgA w1kd fawn)

HEATHS GHTHIOT

|+l wEre Hufal 31 Yol § Sl &1 o IR 9 wded # |fafera w81 faar man EIVGE]

e R Trerr R 8§ den f=e A Ol Werie HHfaa § gere 1§ |

9% BT FHof M (31ATq =1 981 Ho ) S I HAGAT § il 8, 399 | Sl ARgH A1k

g, S® M, S {THAE & GRAE A7 M4, WA &1 3 do afs = & ar g9 <Ay

HeHl H H IS AAMTPR AR BT 3 | §HS AR IS Yol M Ge & WD D
TN ¥ B4 dTel AT YA1d A1 ad & |

RIVEHE]

aifesar & uw 2- geft sedar
TOMTHD YHSIHRIT

Brer feaw 1 geft 3g forerar wa ord
% 9 AR feaR 11 & AEgH ¥ T KT & WY H qAI-IF B HUA ORI B 2, R giae afve / sefarie
MR TR fHar ST 21 39 9fve &f <2 er—faeiRor woifral & fafraq ool feiiRa sxam & arg SR fovar mar 2
Tl garar dfvs Rar R 6 @ RIS 7 & sidifa oW, I Wia gadeidl, §9s 4 gdidg © | 549 a1Us @ 3
HEagul ard & —
n  SfUS BT 3MAf gD SR IR BT AT F 109 78 ¥ 127 W & 19 B T |
" 8 UYF QUG g, TR 3T T 31 oHeR! & <1dl 9 W7 B, Ufiad) wue 9 Jad § iR gR$ & de
R I MR RGd §& @1 weafa & 941 A 781 o gad 2
» I8 YOS AT af & Sifom dia auf & IR 200 Ufad & IR F HAE qaE & 9 21 39 UIR fay
MY A &1 IR BT Yol g Sgevdl 7q fear 11 goft § enfiet =8t faar mam 2
3 UUE $ 9el & a6l BT feIR | Yol H e wRe & forg U uuAl & el & gl § aRidr yaH
BI IS 2 AT T AFGRI & S1ai & 07 J7+1 717 2 |
m 00T RO YU, §% B SR I YSH & 50% T AT BT TAT 59 YUl & A (SR 11 Yl B 3T HIGD
&R | ot & 100% & 31feres =781 BT |
d% =1 Ul BIS N IR SR 11 Yol T=1 e UuF SR A8l {6y €, Siife feaR 1 goll 3 9 maer & I & |

VAR
®) IR 1 Yo $I ARG 44 &7 37T I THTdvo RUEIl
g I Yol 475.28
SINGIRDIR 3705.24
<= g 160.00
31 gofl 9o, 0.00
I AT 4340.52

120 aiffe Ruré 2013-14



Punjab & Sind Bank

BASEL Il DISCLOSURES - YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2014

Table DF 1 — SCOPE OF APPLICATION

Qualitative Disclosures The Bank does not
(@) The name of the top bank in the group to which the Framework applies. belong to any group

(b) An outline of differences in the basis of consolidation for accounting and regulatory purposes,
with a brief description of the entities within the group (i) that are fully consolidated; (ii) that Not Applicable
are pro-rata consolidated; (iii) that are given a deduction treatment; and (iv) that are neither
consolidated nor deducted (e.g. where the investment is risk-weighted).

Quantitative Disclosures

(c) The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries not included in the consolidation Not Applicable
i.e. that are deducted and the name(s) of such subsidiaries.

(d) The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the bank's total interests in insurance entities,
which are risk-weighted as well as their name, their country of incorporation or residence, the Not Applicable
proportion of ownership interest and, if different, the proportion of voting power in these entities.
In addition, indicate the quantitative impact on regulatory capital of using this method versus
using the deduction.

Table DF 2 — CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Qualitative disclosures

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF LOWER TIER Il CAPITAL:

The Bank has issued Lower Tier Il Bonds by way of Subordinated Debts in the form of Promissory Notes at Coupon
payable annually / semi-annually. These bonds have been issued after getting them duly rated by the Domestic Rating
Agencies. All the outstanding Bonds except issued under series VI & VII are listed at the National Stock Exchange
Ltd. Mumbai. The other important features of these bonds are :

The bonds have a tenor ranging from 109 months to 127 months from date of the issue.

The instruments are fully paid up, unsecured and subordinated to the claims of other creditors, free of
restrictive clauses and not redeemable at the initiative of the holder or without the consent of the RBI.

The instruments are subjected to progressive discounting @ 20% per year over the last five years of their
tenor. Such discounted amounts are not included in Tier — Il Capital for Capital Adequacy purposes.

The claims of the investors in these instruments shall rank superior to the claims of investors in instruments
eligible for inclusion in Tier | Capital and subordinate to the claims of all other creditors.

Subordinated debt instruments shall be limited to 50% of Tier | capital of the Bank and these instruments,
together with other components of Tier Il Capital shall not exceed 100% of Tier | Capital.

The Bank has not issued any upper Tier Il capital and innovative instruments that qualify for inclusion in
Tier | capital.

X/ Crores)

(@) The amount of Tier 1 capital, with separate disclosure of Amount
Paid-up share capital; 475.28
Reserves; 3705.24
Innovative instruments; 160.00
Other capital instruments; 0.00
SUB-TOTAL 4340.52
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Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

LESS: amounts deducted from Tier 1 capital, including goodwill & investments. 0.1265
TOTAL TIER | CAPITAL 4340.40
(b) The total amount of Tier 2 capital (net of deductions from Tier 2 capital) 2141.62
(c) Debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Upper Tier 2 capital. NIL
Total amount outstanding. NA
Of which amount raised during the current year NA
Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds NA

(d) Subordinated debt eligible for inclusion in Lower Tier 2 capital

Total amount outstanding 1365.00
Of which amount raised during the current year. NIL
Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds 1215.00
(e) Other deductions from capital, if any. NIL
(g) Total eligible capital. 6482.02

Table DF 3 - CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Qualitative disclosures

Bank is already geared up to adopt global best practices while implementing risk management stipulations that are
in conformity with the Basel Il framework.

Comprehensive risk management architecture is in place to address various issues concerning Basel Il. A quarterly
review is carried out to assess the capital need of the Bank, keeping in view the anticipated growth in Risk Weighted
Assets, Market Risk and Operational Risk.

Bank maintains capital as a cushion towards the risk of loss in value of exposure, businesses, etc., to protect the
interest of stake holders, more particularly, depositors.

Bank has system in place for assessing the capital requirements based on current and future business activities and
monitoring the same on an ongoing basis. The bank considers that capital availability is the central theme in the whole
process and its computation is relatable to policy, strategy, business level/composition, and Supervisory concern and
Disclosure issues. Towards this, bank has evolved a well laid down Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) framework and carries out capital calculation under Pillar-2 also of Basel-Il at periodical intervals besides Pillar
1 Capital calculation. The bank has formulated Stress Testing policy to measure impact of adverse stress scenarios on
the adequacy of capital at periodical intervals.

In line with RBI guidelines, the bank has adopted following approaches for implementation of New Capital Adequacy
Framework — Basel II.

m  Standardised Approach for credit risk

®  Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk

®  Standardised Duration Approach for market risk

Though the bank is presently implementing the above Approach, it has started its preparation for moving towards
advance approaches.

Capital requirements for credit risk:

Amt. - T/ Crores

Portfolios subject to standardised approach @ 9% 4308.66

Securitisation exposures Nil
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Capital requirements for market risk: Standardised duration approach

Capital Charge on account of General Market Risk Amt. - %/ Crores
Interest rate risk 107.15
Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 0.77
Equity risk 16.70

Capital requirements for operational risk:

Amt. - %/ Crores

Basic indicator approach 298.78

Total and Tier 1 capital ratio for the Bank:

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel Il 12.10%

Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel Il 8.10%

Table DF 4 - CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures

A. DEFINITIONS OF PAST DUE AN D IMPAIRED:

The Bank follows the basic prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
as under :

a) Interest and / or instalment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a
term loan.

b) The account remains ‘out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of sanctioned
limit / DP for more than 90 days and / or there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of
Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, in respect of
Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

¢) The bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted.

d) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration
crops.

e) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

f)  The amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitization
transaction undertaken in terms of guidelines on securitization dated May 7, 2012.

g) In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-market value
of a derivative contract, if these remains unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for
repayment.

Here, *Overdue' mean any amount due to the Bank under any credit facility, if it is not paid on the due date fixed
by the Bank.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter, the
account is classified as Non-performing asset and ceases to generate income for the bank.

Besides above, Bank also follows the guidelines issued by RBI in respect of classification of assets under a) Restructured
accounts, b) Project under implementation involving time overrun, c) Post shipment Suppliers' Credit. d) Export Project
Finance, e) Take over Finance, f) Govt. guaranteed Advance, g) Advance under Rehabilitation approved by BFIR / TLI,
h) Advances under Debt Waiver & Debt Relief Scheme 2009, i) Sale of Financial Assets to Securitization Company
/Reconstruction Company, j) Purchase/ Sale of Non-Performing Financial Assets, k) Up-gradation of accounts, )
Accounts regularized near about the Balance Sheet date etc.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

B. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES:

To effectively identify, assess, measure, and manage the credit risk exposure of the Bank, with a view to contain
it within desired limits in relation to the risk appetite of the Bank and commensurate with the availability of
Capital. In doing so, the Bank's Credit Risk philosophy aims at minimising risk and maintaining it within the
levels which shall ensure safety of the Bank's financial resources, including stakeholders' equity and, at the
same time, also ensure a steady and healthy financial growth.

STRATEGIC POLICY OF THE BANK - CREDIT RISK:

The Bank has a comprehensive and well defined Loan Policy which covers various aspects of strategic planning. The
loan policy of the Bank is reviewed from time to time, depending on requirements of the changes in loan portfolio
and general economic and market scenario. The loan policy is also subjected to a comprehensive review by the

Board at

least once a year. The loan policy of the Bank addresses, among other things:
Exposure ceilings and prudential caps in different industry segments and borrower categories.
Pricing based on risk profile linked to credit ratings and/or retail segments.

Guidelines relating to procedures and systems for appraisal, sanction, and monitoring of loans and modes
of dispensation of credit.

Credit Rating framework.

Inspection mechanism and compliance of regulatory and policy guidelines.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT ARCHITECTURE:

TOOLS

The organizational structure of the Bank for Credit Risk Management function has the Board of Directors
at the Apex level that has the overall oversight of management of risks.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) which is the sub-committee of the Board headed by the Chairman
& Managing Director devises the policy and strategy for integrated risk management including credit risk.

At the operational level, the Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) manages the credit risk. The main
function includes implementation of credit risk management policies approved by the Board, monitoring
credit risk on a bank wide basis, recommending to the board for its approval all policies relating to credit
risk management, prudential limits on credit exposures, portfolio management, loan products etc. There is a
structured and standardized credit approval process including a comprehensive credit appraisal procedure.
In order to assess the credit risk associated with any financing proposal, the Bank assesses a variety of risks
relating to the borrower and the relevant industry.

The Risk Management Department (RMD) headed by the General Manger, measures, controls and manages
credit risk on bank wide basis within the limits set by the Board and enforces compliance with risk parameters
set by Board/RMC/CRMC. The RMD is duly supported by Credit Risk Management Cell, Asset Liability
Management Cell and Operations Risk Management Cell.

The Inspection Department as well as Credit Monitoring Department headed by a General Manager, monitors
the quality of loan portfolio, identifies problems and takes steps to correct deficiencies. Loan review / credit
audit is undertaken by the Credit Audit function.

USED FOR CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT / MITIGATION

Credit Approving Authority — Delegation of Powers. The Bank has a well-defined scheme of delegation of
powers with a multi-tier risk based approving system, which is reviewed periodically and revised as and
when necessary to meet the compulsions of business environment.

Prudential Limits on various aspects of credit / investment like Single / Group borrower limits for various
types of borrowers are in place.

Risk Rating/Pricing - The bank has introduced rating models for various segments, which serve as a single
point indicator of diverse risk factors of a counter party and support credit and pricing decisions.

Credit Audit/Loan review mechanism is an effective tool for constantly evaluating the quality of loan book
and to bring about qualitative improvements in credit administration

Portfolio Management - to start with, the bank has introduced a simple portfolio-monitoring framework.
Going forward the bank will be graduating to a more sophisticated Portfolio Management model.
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RISK MEASUREMENT

Punjab & Sind Bank

At present Credit Risk is assessed through Risk rating at the individual level and through Risk Weighting of the assets

at the portfolio level and capital is maintained based on Risk Weights.

Total gross credit risk exposures

Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
1 Fund Based Credit Exposures 57857.74
2 Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43

Geographic distribution of exposures

Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Overseas
. NIL
1 Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures NIL
Domestic
. 57857.74
2 Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43

INDUSTRY TYPE DISTRIBUTION OF EXPOSURES

Amt. - ¥/ Crores

Industry Fund Based Non- Fund Based Total

AMINING & QUARRYING 837.53 107.98 945.51
B.FOOD PROCESSING 1176.84 26.43 1203.27
C.BEVERAGES & TOBACCO 484.77 18.04 502.81
D.TEXTILES 1412.67 58.35 1471.02
E.LEATHER & LEATHER PRODUCTS 136.02 3.46 139.48
F.WOOD & WOOD PRODUCTS 93.19 3.19 96.38
G.PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS 102.27 1.29 103.56
H.PETRO./COAL/NUCLEAR FUELS 60.81 0.29 61.10
I.CHEMICALS & CHEMICAL PROD. 520.11 17.12 537.23
J.RUBBER,PLASTIC & ITS PROD. 196.54 20.57 217.10
K.GLASS & GLASSWARE 12.11 0.31 12.42
L.CEMENT AND CEMENT PROD. 252.13 14.36 266.48
M.BASIC METAL & METAL PROD. 2433.65 195.70 2629.35
N.ALL ENGINEERING 672.24 135.53 807.77
O.VEHCLES/V.PARTS/TPT.EQPM. 300.00 127.40 427.40
P.GEMS & JEWELLARY 67.88 225.43 293.30
Q.CONSTRUCTIONS 828.69 329.55 1158.24
R.INFRASTRUCTURE 18164.82 895.95 19060.78
S.OTHER INDUSTRIES 185.62 29.78 215.40
T.RESIDUARY 29919.88 1222.70 31142.58
Grand Total 57857.74 3433.43 61291.17
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Significant exposure:
Industry where the Total Exposure is more than 5% of Total Fund based and Non-fund based exposure:
Amt. - ¥/ Crores

S.No. Industry Exposure
1 Infrastructure 19060.78
2 Residuary 31142.58

RESIDUAL CONTRACTUAL MATURITY BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS
Amt. -3/ Crores

Maturity Pattern (Time Loans & Advances | Investments Foreign Currency Deposits Borrowings
Buckets) (Book Value) | |jabilities Assets
1 day 547.63 0.39 30.18 221.23 584.18 0.00
2-7 days 1044.21 346.32 0.74 17.80 1547.94 380.00
8-14 days 1473.68 292.94 5.08 24.86 2016.91 0.00
15-28 days 2270.23 480.30 12.12 50.09 3564.36 0.00
29 days to 3 months 6617.49 4076.32 29.91 191.97 11947.63 40.00
Over 3 months to 6 months 3844.42 36.69 32.33 73.03 10739.15 200.04
Over 6 months to 1 year 7320.15 899.81 94.68 0.00 27745.45 0.00
Over 1 year to 3 years 14495.39 2417.71 92.77 0.00 13121.22 150.00
Over 3 years to 5 years 9011.54 5874.52 8.70 0.00 4321.80 100.00
Over 5 years 10614.33 13869.11 0.00 0.00 9141.52 1435.00
TOTAL 57239.07 28294.11 306.51 578.98 84730.17 2305.04
Amount of NPAs (Gross)
Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores

1 Substandard 1494.81

2 Doubtful 1 672.15

3 Doubtful 2 346.99

4 Doubtful 3 13.33

5 Loss 26.24
Net NPAs

Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Net NPAs 1918.60
NPA Ratios
Category Percent
1 Gross NPAs to Gross advances 4.41%
2 Net NPAs to Net advances 3.35%

Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Amt. - ¥/ Crores

Opening Balance 1536.90
Additions 1619.61
Reductions 602.99
Closing Balance 2553.52
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Movement of Provisions for NPAs

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 412.56
Provisions made during the period 564.68
Write-off

: — 358.57
Write-back of excess provisions
Closing Balance 618.67

Amount of Non-Performing Investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Amount of Non-Performing Investments 59.04

Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments

Amt. - T/ Crores

Provisions held for non-performing investments 33.45

Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 22.73
Provisions made during the period 9.55
Write-off Nil
Write-back of excess provisions 13.23
Closing Balance 19.05

Table DF 5 - CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE

STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative Disclosures

1.

The Bank has approved using the general rating of the following credit rating agencies for risk weighting under
the standardized approach for CRAR calculations CRISIL, ICRA, India Rating, SMERA, BRICKWORK and CARE
for domestic claims and S&P, FITCH and Moody's for claims on non-resident corporates, foreign banks and
foreign sovereigns.

The ratings of all these agencies are being used for all exposures subjected to rating for risk weighting purposes
under the standardized approach for CRAR calculations under Basel-Il as defined by RBI.

The process used to transfer public issue ratings on to comparable assets in the banking book is as per regulatory
requirements of RBI. The public ratings published by the rating agencies on their website are used for this
purpose. Only, ratings which are in force as per monthly bulletin of the concerned rating agency and which
have been reviewed at least once during the previous 15 months are used.

For all the exposures on a particular counterparty, bank uses the rating of only one agency, even though these
exposures are rated by more than one with exception being where each of the exposures is rated by only one
of the approved rating agencies.

To be eligible for risk-weighting purposes, it is ensured that the external credit assessment takes into account
and reflects the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all payments owed to it i.e.,
both principal and interest. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group is not used to risk
weight other entities within the same group.

For assets that have contractual maturity less than or equal to one year, short term ratings are used while for
other assets, long term ratings are used. For Cash Credit exposures long term ratings are taken.

Where an issuer has a long-term exposure with an external long term rating that warrants a risk weight of 150%,
all unrated claims on the same counterparty, whether short-term or long-term, also receive a 150% risk weight,
except incases where credit risk mitigation techniques are used for such claims. Similar is the case with short-
term rating.
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Punjab & Sind Bank
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8.  The long-term ratings assigned by the approved rating agencies are directly mapped to the risk weights under
the Standardised Approach for long-term exposures. On the contrary, the unrated short-term claim on counter-
party attracts a risk weight of at least one level higher than the risk weight applicable to the rated short-term
claim on that counter-party. Issue-specific short-term ratings are used to derive risk weights for claims arising
from the rated facility against banks and a corporate's short-term rating is not used to support a risk weight for
an unrated long-term claim.

9. If there are two ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies, which map into different risk weights, the
higher risk weight is applied. If there are three or more ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies with
different risk weights, the ratings corresponding to the two lowest risk weights are referred to and the higher of
those two risk weights are applied, i.e., the second lowest risk weight.

10. The RW of the investment claim is based on specific rating by a chosen credit rating agency, where the claim is
not an investment in a specific assessed issue:

i) the rating applicable to the specific debt (where the rating maps into a risk weight lower than that which

applies to an unrated claim) is applied to the bank's un-assessed claim only if this claim ranks pari passu

or senior to the specific rated debt in all respects and the maturity of the un-assessed claim is not later than
the maturity of the rated claim, except where the rated claim is a short term obligation.

ii) if either the issuer or single issue has been assigned a rating which maps into a risk weight equal to or
higher than that which applies to unrated claims, an unrated claim on the same counterparty, is assigned
the same risk weight as is applicable to the rated exposure, if this claim ranks pari passu or junior to the
rated exposure in all respects.

Exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach
Amt. - T/ Crores

Risk Weight Category Exposure After Credit Risk Un-Rated Exposure Rated Exposure
Mitigation
Below 100 % risk weight 32263.37 21754.30 10509.08
100 % risk weight 20142.59 14377.32 5765.27
More than 100 % rISk Welght 6121.57 1539.32 4582.26
Deducted 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 58527.53 37670.94 20856.61

Table DF 6 - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURES FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES

Qualitative Disclosures

1. Credit Risk Mitigation is a proactive management tool designed to enhance revenue growth, while protecting an
entity's earnings from loss. Banks employ various methods and techniques to reduce the impact of the credit
risks they are exposed to in their daily operations. Some of the credit risk mitigation techniques are permitted
to be used by the supervisor for reducing the capital charge after adjustment for value, currency mismatch and
maturity mismatch. Various Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM) recognized under the New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel 1l) are as follows:

= Collateralised transactions
= On-balance-sheet-netting
®  (Guarantees

2. Eligible financial collateral:

All collaterals are not recognised as credit risk mitigants under the Standardised Approach. The following are
the financial collaterals recognized:
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Punjab & Sind Bank

i)  Cash and Deposits including deposits in foreign currency.

ii) Gold: benchmarked to 99.99% purity.

iii) Securities issued by Central and State Governments

iv) Kisan Vikas Patra and National Savings Certificates

v) Life insurance policies

vi) Debt securities -Rated subject to conditions.

vii) Debt securities not rated issued by banks subject to conditions
viii) Units of mutual funds subject to conditions

There are certain additional standards for availing capital relief for collateralized transactions, which have direct
bearing on the management of collaterals, and these aspects are taken into account during Collateral Management.

3.  On-balance-sheet-netting

On-balance sheet netting is confined to loans/advances (treated as exposure) and deposits (treated as collateral),
where Bank has legally enforceable netting arrangements, involving specific lien with proof of documentation
and which are managed on a net basis.

4. Guarantees Where guarantees are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, bank takes account of such
credit protection in calculating capital requirements. The range of eligible guarantors / counter guarantors include:

Sovereigns, sovereign entities (including BIS, IMF, European Central Bank and European Community as well
as certain specified MDBs, ECGC and CGTSME), banks and primary dealers with a lower risk weight than the
counterparty;

Other entities rated AA or better.

The Bank accepts all types of collaterals against exposures. However, for Basel-Il norms, the eligible collaterals
are considered and given appropriate treatment before they are set-off against exposures. The bank has a well
laid-out Credit Risk Mitigation & Collateral management Policy and also guidelines for valuation of collaterals.
The Bank also takes cognizance of eligible guarantees and substitution of rating of guarantor(s) in cases where
these are better than that of the counter-party. Besides, for purposes of credit protection, Central Govt., State

Govt., ECGC and CGFT coverages are also taken into account to apply appropriate risk weights.

Disclosed credit risk portfolio under the standardised approach, the total exposure that is covered by: Eligible financial
collateral; after the application of haircuts — ¥ 2491.56 crore

Table DF 7- SECURITISATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACH
Qualitative Disclosures

Objective of Policy on Securitization of Assets
1. For Raising Resources
1.1 To raise resources for the Bank (through mortgage/ asset backed securitization) at a reasonable cost.

1.2 For better asset liability management as long tenure assets can be disposed off, IN CASE OF NEED, to reduce
the maturity mismatches.

1.3 To manage the capital funds efficiently without effecting the growth of the Bank. To rotate assets and to continue
to book business even while capital availability is scarce.

1.4 To access to new source of funding and diversify the existing funding sources.
1.5 To maximize the returns by churning assets fast.

1.6 For better managing the credit portfolio. By hiring of assets in sectors of high concentration, the Bank would be
in a position to continue to book additional business in these sectors and hence maintain market share, client
relationship etc.
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ERE

2. For Deploying Surplus Funds: Avenue for bulk deployment of surplus funds either by subscribing to the PTCs
or by purchase of assets through bilateral assignment of debts with reasonable rate of return.

However, Bank has not sold out any standard credit portfolio under securitization to any other entities

Assignment of Standard Pool Assets- T 78.69 crores

Table DF 8 - MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK
Qualitative disclosures

Market risk refers to the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, market prices and volatilities. The Bank assumes market risk in its lending and deposit taking businesses and
in its investment activities, including position taking and trading. The market risk is managed in accordance with the
investment policies, which are approved by the Board. These policies ensure that operations in securities, foreign
exchange and derivatives are conducted in accordance with sound and acceptable business practices and are as per
the extant regulatory guidelines, laws governing transactions in financial securities and the financial environment.
Market Risk in Trading Book is assessed as per the Standardized Duration approach. The capital charge for Held for
Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) portfolios is computed as per Reserve Bank of India prudential guidelines.

Market risk management objectives:
The objectives of market risk management are as follows:
= Management of liquidity
=  Management of interest rate risk and exchange rate risk.
®  Proper classification and valuation of investment portfolio
= Adequate and proper reporting of investments and derivative products

= Compliance with regulatory requirements

Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for: Amt. - I/ Crores
Interest rate risk; 68.40
Equity position risk; 20.96
Foreign exchange risk; 0.77

Table DF 9 - OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has formulated Policies on 'Operational Risk Management' and the 'Business Continuity Plan & Disaster
Recovery Management'. These policies are being reviewed by the Board of the Bank on annual basis. Bank is in
process of collecting 'Loss Data'.

As per the policy on Operational Risk, the Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) has been set up
which is headed by the Executive Director. Regular meetings of the ORMC are convened at least on quarterly basis.
Inspection Deptt of the bank undertakes onsite 'Risk Based Internal Audit' (RBIA) of the branches. Credit Proposals /
Limits beyond ¥ 3 Crores are subjected to Regular Credit Audit also.

Inspection, Reconciliation and Vigilance Departments are reporting matters relating to Housekeeping, Reconciliation
and Frauds etc. periodically to ACB. Regulatory reporting with regard to Operational Risk and Business Continuity
Plan is made timely & regularly. Bank is presently following ‘Basic Indicator Approach' for calculating Capital Charge
on Operational Risk. However, the bank is preparing to move to advance approaches of calculating capital charge

for Operational Risk.
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Table DF 10 -INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative disclosures

The Interest rate risk in banking book is measured and managed by the bank through Traditional Gap for Earnings at
Risk (EaR) approach and modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) Approach. Interest rate risk in banking
book includes all advances and investments kept under Held to Maturity (HTM) portfolio. The strategies and process/
structure of organization /scope an nature of risk reporting/policies etc., are the same as reported under DF — 8. The
methodology adopted to measure the interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB) is based on RBI suggested guidelines.

1.1

1.2

1.3

RBI has stipulated monitoring of interest rate risk through a Statement of Interest Rate Sensitivity (Reprising Gaps)
to be prepared at monthly intervals. Accordingly, ALCO reviews Interest Rate Sensitivity statement on monthly
basis and monitors the Earnings at Risk (EaR) which measures the change in net interest income of the Bank
due to parallel change in interest rate on both the assets and liabilities.

RBI has also stipulated to estimate the impact of change in interest rates on economic value of bank's assets and
liabilities through Interest Rate Sensitivity under Duration Gap Analysis (IRSD). Bank also carries out Duration
Gap analysis as stipulated by RBI at monthly/quarterly intervals. The impact of interest rate changes on the
Market Value of Equity (MVE) is monitored through Duration Gap Analysis. Using the above, Modified Duration
of liabilities and assets for each bucket is calculated and the impact on their value for a change in interest rate
by 200 bps is reckoned by adding up the net position is arrived to determine as to whether there will be a
positive increase in the value or otherwise.

As a prudential measure limit has been fixed for EaR as well as for Net Duration Gap of the assets and liabilities
and the same is monitored at regular intervals.

Quantitative Disclosures

a)

Earning at Risk

| At 100 bps change for gaps upto T year on average basis I 81.71 Crores

Modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) - 6.81%
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BASEL- 11l DISCLOSURES — FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2014

Table DF 1 — SCOPE OF APPLICATION

Qualitative Disclosures

(a) List of group entities considered for consolidation The Bank does not belong to any group

(b) List of group entities not considered for consolidation both under the

accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation Not Applicable

Quantitative Disclosures

. o . L Not Applicable
(c) List of group entities considered for consolidation

(d) The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries which are

not included in the regulatory scope of consolidation i.e. that are deducted Not Applicable

(e) The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the bank’s total

interests in insurance entities, which are risk-weighted. Not Applicable

(f) Any restrictions or impediments on transfer of funds or regulatory capital

within the banking group Not Applicable

Table DF 2 - CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Qualitative disclosures

Bank is already geared up to adopt global best practices while implementing risk management stipulations that are
in conformity with the Basel 1l and Basel Ill framework.

Comprehensive risk management architecture is in place to address various issues concerning Basel Il and Basel Ill.
A quarterly review is carried out to assess the capital need of the Bank, keeping in view the anticipated growth in
Risk Weighted Assets, Market Risk and Operational Risk.

Bank maintains capital as a cushion towards the risk of loss in value of exposure, businesses, etc., to protect the
interest of stake holders, more particularly, depositor's.

Bank has system in place for assessing the capital requirements based on current and future business activities and
monitoring the same on an ongoing basis. The bank considers that capital availability is the central theme in the whole
process and its computation is relatable to policy, strategy, business level/composition, and Supervisory concern and
Disclosure issues. Towards this, bank has evolved a well laid down Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) framework and carries out capital calculation under Pillar-2 of Basel Il and also of Basel-lll at periodical
intervals besides Pillar 1 Capital calculation. The bank has formulated Stress Testing policy to measure impact of
adverse stress scenarios on the adequacy of capital at periodical intervals.

In line with RBI guidelines, the bank has adopted following approaches for implementation of New Capital Adequacy
Framework —

- Standardised Approach for credit risk
- Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk
- Standardised Duration Approach for market risk

Though the bank is presently implementing the above Approach, it has started its preparation for moving towards
advance approaches.

Capital requirements for credit risk:

Amt. - I/Crores

Portfolios subject to standardised approach @ 9% 4310.88

Securitisation exposures Nil
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Capital requirements for market risk: Standardised duration approach

Capital Charge on account of General Market Risk Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Interest rate risk 175.54

Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 0.77

Equity risk 37.25

Capital requirements for operational risk:

Amt. - %/ Crores

Basic indicator approach 298.78

Total and Tier 1 capital ratio for the Bank:

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel IlI 11.04%
Common Equity Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel 11l 7.27%
Tier | Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio as per Basel IlI 7.62%

Table DF 3 - CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures

A. DEFINITIONS OF PAST DUE AND IMPAIRED:

The Bank follows the basic prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
as under :

a) Interest and / or instalment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a
term loan.

b) The account remains ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of sanctioned
limit / DP for more than 90 days and / or there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of
Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, in respect of
Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

c) The bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted.

d) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration
crops.

e) The installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

f)  The amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitization
transaction undertaken in terms of guidelines on securitization dated May 7, 2012.

g) In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-market value
of a derivative contract, if these remains unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for

repayment.

Here, * Overdue’ mean any amount due to the Bank under any credit facility, if it is not paid on the due date fixed
by the Bank.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter, the
account is classified as Non-performing asset and ceases to generate income for the bank.

Besides above, Bank also follows the guidelines issued by RBI in respect of classification of assets under a) Restructured
accounts, b) Project under implementation involving time overrun, c) Post shipment Suppliers’ Credit. d) Export Project
Finance, e) Take over Finance, f) Govt. guaranteed Advance, g) Advance under Rehabilitation approved by BFIR / TLI,
h) Advances under Debt Waiver & Debt Relief Scheme 2009, i) Sale of Financial Assets to Securitization Company
/Reconstruction Company, j) Purchase/ Sale of Non-Performing Financial Assets, k) Up-gradation of accounts, )
Accounts regularized near about the Balance Sheet date etc.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

B. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES:

To effectively identify, assess, measure, and manage the credit risk exposure of the Bank, with a view to contain it
within desired limits in relation to the risk appetite of the Bank and commensurate with the availability of Capital. In

doing so,

the Bank’s Credit Risk philosophy aims at minimising risk and maintaining it within the levels which shall

ensure safety of the Bank’s financial resources, including stakeholders’ equity and, at the same time, also ensure a

steady and healthy financial growth.

STRATEGIC POLICY OF THE BANK - CREDIT RISK:

The Bank has a comprehensive and well defined Loan Policy which covers various aspects of strategic planning. The
loan policy of the Bank is reviewed from time to time, depending on requirements of the changes in loan portfolio
and general economic and market scenario. The loan policy is also subjected to a comprehensive review by the

Board at
| |
[ |

least once a year. The loan policy of the Bank addresses, among other things:

Exposure ceilings and prudential caps in different industry segments and borrower categories.
Pricing based on risk profile linked to credit ratings and/or retail segments.

Guidelines relating to procedures and systems for appraisal, sanction, and monitoring of loans and modes
of dispensation of credit.

Credit Rating framework.
Inspection mechanism and compliance of regulatory and policy guidelines.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT ARCHITECTURE:

TOOLS

The organizational structure of the Bank for Credit Risk Management function has the Board of Directors
at the Apex level that has the overall oversight of management of risks.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) which is the sub-committee of the Board headed by the Chairman
& Managing Director devises the policy and strategy for integrated risk management including credit risk.

At the operational level, the Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) manages the credit risk. The main
function includes implementation of credit risk management policies approved by the Board, monitoring
credit risk on a bank wide basis, recommending to the board for its approval all policies relating to credit
risk management, prudential limits on credit exposures, portfolio management, loan products etc. There is a
structured and standardized credit approval process including a comprehensive credit appraisal procedure.
In order to assess the credit risk associated with any financing proposal, the Bank assesses a variety of risks
relating to the borrower and the relevant industry.

The Risk Management Department (RMD) headed by the General Manger, measures, controls and manages
credit risk on bank wide basis within the limits set by the Board and enforces compliance with risk parameters
set by Board/RMC/CRMC. The RMD is duly supported by Credit Risk Management Cell, Asset Liability
Management Cell and Operations Risk Management Cell.

The Inspection Department as well as Credit Monitoring Department headed by a General Manager monitor
the quality of loan portfolio identifies problems and takes steps to correct deficiencies. Loan review / credit

audit is undertaken by the Credit Audit function.

USED FOR CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT / MITIGATION

Credit Approving Authority-Delegation of Powers. The Bank has a well-defined scheme of delegation of
powers with a multi-tier risk based approving system, which is reviewed periodically and revised as and
when necessary to meet the compulsions of business environment.

Prudential Limits on various aspects of credit / investment like Single / Group borrower limits for various
types of borrowers are in place.

Risk Rating/Pricing - The bank has introduced rating models for various segments, which serve as a single
point indicator of diverse risk factors of a counter party and support credit and pricing decisions.

Credit Audit/Loan review mechanism is an effective tool for constantly evaluating the quality of loan book
and to bring about qualitative improvements in credit administration
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Punjab & Sind Bank
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= Portfolio Management - to start with, the bank has introduced a simple portfolio-monitoring framework.
Going forward the bank will be graduating to a more sophisticated Portfolio Management model.

RISK MEASUREMENT

At present Credit Risk is assessed through Risk rating at the individual level and through Risk Weighting of the assets

at the portfolio level and capital is maintained based on Risk Weights.

Total gross credit risk exposures

Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
1 Fund Based Credit Exposures 57857.74
2 Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43
Geographic distribution of exposures
Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
1 Overseas NIL
Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures NIL
2 Domestic 57857.74
Fund Based Credit Exposures
Non Fund Based Credit Exposures 3433.43

INDUSTRY TYPE DISTRIBUTION OF EXPOSURES

Amt. -3/ Crores

INDUSTRY FUNDED NON FUND TOTAL

AMINING & QUARRYING 837.53 107.98 945.51
A.1 COAL/HARD LIGNITE/PEAT 2.04 86.19 88.23
A.2 MINING OTHERS 835.49 21.79 857.28
B.FOOD PROCESSING 1176.84 26.43 1203.27
B.1 SUGAR 187.80 18.37 206.16
B.2 EDIBLE OILS & VANASPATI 112.57 0.57 113.14
B.3 TEA 0.28 0.00 0.28
B.4 COFFEE 0.00 0.00 0.00
B.5 FOOD PROC.- OTHERS 876.19 7.49 883.68
C.BEVERAGES & TOBACCO 484.77 18.04 502.81
C.1 TABACCO & TOBACCO PROD. 0.59 0.00 0.59
C.2 BEVERAGES & TOBACCO-OTHERS 484.18 18.04 502.22
D.TEXTILES 1412.67 58.35 1471.02
D.1 COTTON 633.38 43.20 676.58
D.1.1 SPINNING 570.63 32.70 603.33
D.2 JUTE 2.93 0.00 2.93
D.2.1 SPINNING 1.17 0.00 1.17
D.3 HANDICRAFT/KHADI (NPS) 21.12 0.08 21.20
D.3.1 SPINNING 3.07 0.00 3.07
D.4 SILK 39.97 5.11 45.08
D.4.1 SPINNING 31.24 0.59 31.83
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Punjab & Sind Bank

D.5 WOOLEN 40.30 0.07 40.37
D.5.1 SPINNING 27.30 0.05 27.35
D.6 TEXTILE-OTHERS 674.98 9.89 684.87
E.LEATHER & LEATHER PRODUCTS 136.02 3.46 139.48
F.WOOD & WOOD PRODUCTS 93.19 3.19 96.38
G.PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS 102.27 1.29 103.56
H.PETRO./COAL/NUCLEAR FUELS 60.81 0.29 61.10
I.CHEMICALS & CHEMICAL PROD. 520.11 17.12 537.23
.1 FERTILISERS 135.86 0.00 135.86
1.2 DRUGS AND PHARMA. 266.17 6.04 272.21
.3 PETRO-CHEMICALS 64.59 6.62 71.21
.4 CHEMICALS & CHEMICAL PROD.- O 53.48 4.47 57.94
J.RUBBER, PLASTIC & ITS PROD. 196.54 20.57 217.10
K.GLASS & GLASSWARE 12.11 0.31 12.42
L.CEMENT AND CEMENT PROD. 252.13 14.36 266.48
M.BASIC METAL & METAL PROD. 2433.65 195.70 2629.35
M.T IRON & STEEL 1662.38 35.65 1698.03
M.2 OTHER METAL & METAL PROD. 771.27 160.05 931.32
N.ALL ENGINEERING 672.24 135.53 807.77
N.1 ELECTRONICS 61.66 9.35 71.01
N.2 ALL ENGG. - OTHERS 610.58 126.18 736.75
O.VEHCLES/V.PARTS/TPT.EQPM. 300.00 127.40 427.40
P.GEMS & JEWELLARY 67.88 225.43 293.30
Q.CONSTRUCTIONS 828.69 329.55 1158.24
R.INFRASTRUCTURE 18164.82 895.95 19060.78
R.1 TRANSPORT 1740.74 338.94 2079.68
R.1.1 -RAILWAYS 45.82 43.80 89.61
R.1.2 -ROADWAYS 1256.47 275.27 1531.74
R.1.4 -WATERWAYS 18.36 0.47 18.83
R.1.5 -OTHERS 420.10 19.40 439.50
R.2 ENERGY 12459.97 468.96 12928.93
R.2.1 -ELEC(GEN/TRMN/DTB) 12433.73 468.96 12902.69
R.2.2 -OIL (STRG/PIPELINES) 26.23 0.01 26.24
R.2.3 -GAS/LNG STRG/PIPELINE 0.01 0.00 0.01
R.3 TELECOMMUNICATION 334.34 8.44 342.78
R.4 INFRA-OTHERS 3629.77 79.62 3709.39
R.4.1 WATER SANITATION 1042.60 13.71 1056.32
R.4.2 -SOCIAL & COMM. 2587.17 65.90 2653.07
S.OTHER INDUSTRIES 185.62 29.78 215.40
T.RESIDUARY 29919.88 1222.70 31142.58
T.a EDUCATION LOAN 231.79 0.34 232.13
T.b AVIATION SECTOR 870.89 0.19 871.08
Grand Total 57857.74 3433.43 61291.17

Significant Exposure

Industry where the Total Exposure is more than 5% of Total Fund based and Non-fund based exposure:
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Amt. - %/ Crores

S.No. Industry Exposure
1 Infrastructure 19060.78
2 Residuary 31142.58

RESIDUAL CONTRACTUAL MATURITY BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS

Amt. -3/ Crores

Maturity Pattern’s Loans & Investments Foreign Currency . .
(Time Buckets) Advances (Book Value) Liabilities Assets Deposits Borrowings
Next 1 Day 547.63 0.39 30.18 221.23 584.18 0.00
2 Days To 7 Days 1044.21 346.32 0.74 17.80 1547.94 380.00
8 Days To 14 Days 1473.68 292.94 5.08 24.86 2016.91 0.00
15 Days To 28 Days 2270.23 480.30 12.12 50.09 3564.36 0.00
29 Days To 3 Months 6617.49 4076.32 29.91 191.97 11947.63 40.00
Over 3 Months To 6 Months 3844.42 36.69 32.33 73.03 10739.15 200.04
Over 6 Months To 1 Year 7320.15 899.81 94.68 0.00 27745.45 0.00
Over 1 Year To 3 Years 14495.39 2417.71 92.77 0.00 13121.22 150.00
Over 3 Years To 5 Years 9011.54 5874.52 8.70 0.00 4321.80 100.00
Over 5 Years 10614.33 13869.11 0.00 0.00 9141.52 1435.00
GRAND TOTAL 57239.07 28294.11 306.51 578.98 84730.17 2305.04
Amount of NPAs (Gross)
Category Amt. - ¥/ Crores
1 Substandard 1494.81
2 Doubtful 1 672.15
3 Doubtful 2 346.99
4 Doubtful 3 13.33
5 Loss 26.24
Net NPAs
Amt. - %/ Crores
Net NPAs 1918.60
NPA Ratios
Category Percent
1 Gross NPAs to Gross advances 4.41%
2 Net NPAs to Net advances 3.35%
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Opening Balance 1536.90
Additions 1619.61
Reductions 602.99
Closing Balance 2553.52
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Movement of Provisions for NPAs

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 412.56
Provisions made during the period 564.68
Write-off

358.57

Write-back of excess provisions

Closing Balance 618.67

Amount of Non-Performing Investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Amount of Non-Performing Investments 59.04

Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Provisions held for non-performing investments 33.45

Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments

Amt. - %/ Crores

Opening Balance 22.73
Provisions made during the period 9.55
Write-off Nil

Write-back of excess provisions 13.23
Closing Balance 19.05

Table DF 4 - CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE STAN-
DARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative Disclosures

1.

The Bank has approved using the general rating of the following credit rating agencies for risk weighting under
the standardized approach for CRAR calculations CRISIL, ICRA, India Rating, SMERA, BRICKWORK and CARE
for domestic claims and S&P, FITCH and Moody’s for claims on non-resident corporates, foreign banks and
foreign sovereigns.

The ratings of all these agencies are being used for all exposures subjected to rating for risk weighting purposes
under the standardized approach for CRAR calculations under Basel-Il as defined by RBI.

The process used to transfer public issue ratings on to comparable assets in the banking book is as per regulatory
requirements of RBI. The public ratings published by the rating agencies on their website are used for this
purpose. Only, ratings which are in force as per monthly bulletin of the concerned rating agency and which
have been reviewed at least once during the previous 15 months are used.

For all the exposures on a particular counterparty, bank uses the rating of only one agency, even though these
exposures are rated by more than one with exception being where each of the exposures is rated by only one
of the approved rating agencies.

To be eligible for risk-weighting purposes, it is ensured that the external credit assessment takes into account
and reflects the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all payments owed to it i.e.,
both principal and interest. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group is not used to risk
weight other entities within the same group.

For assets that have contractual maturity less than or equal to one year, short term ratings are used while for
other assets, long term ratings are used. For Cash Credit exposures long term ratings are taken.
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10.

Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

Where an issuer has a long-term exposure with an external long term rating that warrants a risk weight of 150%,
all unrated claims on the same counterparty, whether short-term or long-term, also receive a 150% risk weight,
except in cases where credit risk mitigation techniques are used for such claims. Similar is the case with short-
term rating.

The long-term ratings assigned by the approved rating agencies are directly mapped to the risk weights under
the Standardised Approach for long-term exposures. On the contrary, the unrated short-term claim on counter-
party attracts a risk weight of at least one level higher than the risk weight applicable to the rated short-term
claim on that counter-party. Issue-specific short-term ratings are used to derive risk weights for claims arising
from the rated facility against banks and a corporate’s short-term rating is not used to support a risk weight for
an unrated long-term claim.

If there are two ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies, which map into different risk weights, the
higher risk weight is applied. If there are three or more ratings accorded by eligible credit rating agencies with
different risk weights, the ratings corresponding to the two lowest risk weights are referred to and the higher of
those two risk weights are applied, i.e., the second lowest risk weight.

The RW of the investment claim is based on specific rating by a chosen credit rating agency, where the claim
is not an investment in a specific assessed issue:

i) the rating applicable to the specific debt (where the rating maps into a risk weight lower than that which
applies to an unrated claim) is applied to the bank’s un-assessed claim only if this claim ranks pari-passu
or senior to the specific rated debt in all respects and the maturity of the un-assessed claim is not later than
the maturity of the rated claim, except where the rated claim is a short term obligation.

ii) if either the issuer or single issue has been assigned a rating which maps into a risk weight equal to or
higher than that which applies to unrated claims, an unrated claim on the same counterparty, is assigned
the same risk weight as is applicable to the rated exposure, if this claim ranks pari-passu or junior to the

rated exposure in all respects.

Exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach

Amt. - %/ Crores

Risk Weight Category Rated Exposure Un-Rated Exposure Exposure After Credit Risk
Mitigation

Below 100 % risk weight 10509.08 21754.30 32263.37

100 % risk weight 5765.27 14377.32 20142.59

More than 100 % risk weight 4582.26 1539.32 6121.57

Deducted 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 20856.61 37670.94 58527.53

Table DF 5 - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURES FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES

1.

Qualitative Disclosures

1. Credit Risk Mitigation is a proactive management tool designed to enhance revenue growth, while protecting
an entity’s earnings from loss. Banks employ various methods and techniques to reduce the impact of the
credit risks they are exposed to in their daily operations. Some of the credit risk mitigation techniques are
permitted to be used by the supervisor for reducing the capital charge after adjustment for value, currency
mismatch and maturity mismatch. Various Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM) recognized under the New Capital
Adequacy Framework (Basel 1) and Basel Il are as follows:

m  Collateralised transactions

= On-balance-sheet-netting

®  Guarantees
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Punjab & Sind Bank

2. Eligible financial collateral:
All collaterals are not recognised as credit risk mitigants under the Standardised Approach. The following are
the financial collaterals recognized:
i) Cash and Deposits including deposits in foreign currency.
ii) Gold: benchmarked to 99.99% purity.
iii) Securities issued by Central and State Governments
iv) Kisan Vikas Patra and National Savings Certificates
v) Life insurance policies
vi) Debt securities -Rated subject to conditions.
vii) Debt securities not rated issued by banks subject to conditions
viii) Units of mutual funds subject to conditions
ix) Re-securitisations, irrespective of any credit ratings, are not eligible financial collateral.

There are certain additional standards for availing capital relief for collateralized transactions, which have direct

bearing on the management of collaterals, and these aspects are taken into account during Collateral Management.
3.  On-balance-sheet-netting

On-balance sheet netting is confined to loans/advances (treated as exposure) and deposits (treated as collateral),
where Bank has legally enforceable netting arrangements, involving specific lien with proof of documentation
and which are managed on a net basis.

4. Guarantees Where guarantees are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, bank takes account of such
credit protection in calculating capital requirements. The range of eligible guarantors / counter guarantors as
per Basel Il includes:

i)  Sovereigns, sovereign entities (including BIS, IMF, European Central Bank and European Community as well
as those MDBs, ECGC and CGTSI, CRGFTLIH), banks and primary dealers with a lower risk weight than
the counterparty;

ii) Other entities that are externally rated except when credit protection is provided to a securitisation exposure.
This would include credit protection provided by parent, subsidiary and affiliate companies when they have
a lower risk weight than the obligor.

iii)  When credit protection is provided to a securitisation exposure, other entities that currently are externally
rated BBB- or better and that were externally rated A- or better at the time the credit protection was provided.
This would include credit protection provided by parent, subsidiary and affiliate companies when they have

a lower risk weight than the obligor.

The Bank accepts all types of collaterals against exposures. However, for Basel-lll norms, the eligible collaterals are
considered and given appropriate treatment before they are set-off against exposures. The bank has a well laid-out
Credit Risk Mitigation & Collateral management Policy and also guidelines for valuation of collaterals. The Bank
also takes cognizance of eligible guarantees and substitution of rating of guarantor(s) in cases where these are better
than that of the counter-party. Besides, for purposes of credit protection, Central Govt., State Govt., ECGC and CGFT

coverages are also taken into account to apply appropriate risk weights.

Disclosed credit risk portfolio under the standardised approach, the total exposure that is covered by: Eligible financial
collateral; after the application of haircuts — ¥ 2491.56 crore

Table DF 6- SECURITISATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative Disclosures
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Objective of Policy on Securitization of Assets

1. For Raising Resources
1.1 To raise resources for the Bank (through mortgage/ asset backed securitization) at a reasonable cost.

1.2 For better asset liability management as long tenure assets can be disposed off, in case of need, to reduce the
maturity mismatches.

1.3 To manage the capital funds efficiently without effecting the growth of the Bank.

1.4 To rotate assets and to continue to book business even while capital availability is scarce.
1.5 To access to new source of funding and diversify the existing funding sources.

1.6 To maximize the returns by churning assets fast.

1.7 For better managing the credit portfolio. By hiring of assets in sectors of high concentration, the Bank would be
in a position to continue to book additional business in these sectors and hence maintain market share, client

relationship etc.

2. For Deploying Surplus Funds: Avenue for bulk deployment of surplus funds either by subscribing to the PTCs or
by purchase of assets through bilateral assignment of debts with reasonable rate of return.

However, Bank has not sold out any standard credit portfolio under securitization to any other entities.

Exposure (Balance Outstanding) under Securitisation (Assignment) of Standard Pool Assets — ¥ 78.69 crore

Table DF 7 - MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK

Qualitative disclosures

Market risk refers to the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, market prices and volatilities. The Bank assumes market risk in its lending and deposit taking businesses and
in its investment activities, including position taking and trading. The market risk is managed in accordance with the
investment policies, which are approved by the Board. These policies ensure that operations in securities, foreign
exchange and derivatives are conducted in accordance with sound and acceptable business practices and are as per
the extant regulatory guidelines, laws governing transactions in financial securities and the financial environment.
Market Risk in Trading Book is assessed as per the Standardized Duration approach. The capital charge for Held for

Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) portfolios is computed as per Reserve Bank of India prudential guidelines.
Market risk management objectives:

The objectives of market risk management are as follows:

= Management of liquidity

= Management of interest rate risk and exchange rate risk.
®  Proper classification and valuation of investment portfolio

= Adequate and proper reporting of investments and derivative products

= Compliance with regulatory requirements

Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for: Amt. - ¥/ Crores
Interest rate risk; 175.54

Equity position risk; 37.25

Foreign exchange risk; 0.77

Table DF 8 - OPERATIONAL RISK
Qualitative disclosures
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Punjab & Sind Bank

ERE

The Bank has formulated Policies on “Operational Risk Management” and the “Business Continuity Plan & Disaster
Recovery Management”. These policies are being reviewed by the Board of the Bank on annual basis. Bank is in
process of collecting “Loss Data”.

As per the policy on Operational Risk, the Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) has been set up
which is headed by the Executive Director. Regular meetings of the ORMC are convened at least on quarterly basis.
Inspection Deptt of the bank undertakes onsite “Risk Based Internal Audit” (RBIA) of the branches. Credit Proposals
/ Limits beyond ¥ 3 Crores are subjected to Regular Credit Audit also.

Inspection, Reconciliation and Vigilance Departments are reporting matters relating to Housekeeping, Reconciliation
and Frauds etc. periodically to ACB. Regulatory reporting with regard to Operational Risk and Business Continuity
Plan is made timely & regularly. Bank is presently following ‘Basic Indicator Approach” for calculating Capital Charge
on Operational Risk. However, the bank is preparing to move to advance approaches of calculating capital charge

for Operational Risk.

Table DF 9 -INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)
Qualitative disclosures

The Interest rate risk in banking book is measured and managed by the bank through Traditional Gap for Earnings at
Risk (Ear) approach and modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) Approach. Interest rate risk in banking
book includes all advances and investments kept under Held to Maturity (HTM) portfolio. The strategies and process/
structure of organization / scope and nature of risk reporting/policies etc. are the same as reported under DF — 8. The
methodology adopted to measure the interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB) is based on RBI suggested guidelines.

1.1 RBI has stipulated monitoring of interest rate risk through a Statement of Interest Rate Sensitivity (Reprising
Gaps) to be prepared at monthly intervals. Accordingly, ALCO reviews Interest Rate Sensitivity statement
on monthly basis and monitors the Earnings at Risk (EaR) which measures the change in net interest income
of the Bank due to parallel change in interest rate on both the assets and liabilities.

1.2 RBI has also stipulated to estimate the impact of change in interest rates on economic value of bank’s
assets and liabilities through Interest Rate Sensitivity under Duration Gap Analysis (IRSD). Bank also carries
out Duration Gap analysis as stipulated by RBI at monthly/quarterly intervals. The impact of interest rate
changes on the Market Value of Equity (MVE) is monitored through Duration Gap Analysis. Using the above,
Modified Duration of liabilities and assets for each bucket is calculated and the impact on their value for
a change in interest rate by 200 bps is reckoned by adding up the net position is arrived to determine as
to whether there will be a positive increase in the value or otherwise.

1.3 As a prudential measure limit has been fixed for EaR as well as for Net Duration Gap of the assets and
liabilities and the same is monitored at regular intervals.

Quantitative Disclosures

a) Earning at Risk
Amt. - ¥/ Crores

At 100 bps change for gaps upto 1 year on average basis 81.71

b) Modified Duration Gap for Economic Value (MVE) - 6.81%

Table DF-10: General Disclosure for Exposures Related to Counterparty Credit Risk

Qualitative Disclosures

Counter Party Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk of default by the Counterparty towards settlement of transaction before or
at the maturity. Counter party credit limits (Inter Bank limits) are set up and monitored through ALM Policy. All the
Derivative Transactions with the Counterparty are evaluated through Board approved Derivative Policy of the Bank.
However, Bank is not having any Derivative Transactions

Bank does not have any policy related to Wrong Way Risk exposure. Bank is yet to enter into any Credit Support
Annex (CSA) Agreement with its Counterparties and such impact is currently not quantifiable.
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Quantitative

Bank does not recognize bilateral netting

Punjab & Sind Bank

Zin Crores
Particulars Notional Amount Current Exposure
Foreign Exchange Contracts 7104.90 221.65
Bank is not having any derivative exposure/transactions.
Table DF 11 — Composition of Capital
Zin Crores
Amounts
. . . . Subject
Basel Ill common disclosure template to be used during the transition of regulatory adjustments To Pre Ref
(i.e. from March 31, 2013 to December 31, 2017) No.
Basel IlI
Treatment
io Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves
1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock surplus (share 979 26
premium) .
2 Retained earnings 183.21
3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 2818.06
4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint 0.00
stock companies1) Public sector capital injections grandfathered until 1/1/2018 ’
s Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount 0.00
allowed in group CET1) ’
6 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 3980.53
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
7 Prudential valuation adjustments 0.00
8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) 0.00
9 Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 0.05
10 Deferred tax assets 0.00
11 Cash-flow hedge reserve 0.00
12 Shortfall of provisions to expected losses 0.00
13 Securitisation gain on sale 0.00
14 Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities 0.00
15 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 0.00
Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-in capital on reported
16 0.00
balance sheet)
17 Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity 13.47
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
18 outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where 0.00
the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above ’
10% threshold)
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance
19 entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short 0.00
positions (amount above 10% threshold)
20 Mortgage servicing rights4 (amount above 10% threshold) Not
528 g "8 ’ Relevant
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences5 (amount above 10% Not
21 L
threshold, net of related tax liability) Relevant
22 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold Not
Relevan%
23 of which: significant investments in the common stock of financials ©
Relevan%
. L 0
24 of which: mortgage servicing rights Relevrslnt
25 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences ot
Relevant
26 National specific regulatory adjustments (26a+ 26b+26c) 69.08
26a | Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated nonfinancial subsidiaries 0
Shortfall in the equity capital of majority owned financial entities which have not
26b . . 0
been consolidated with the bank
26¢ | Unamortised pension funds expenditures 69.08
REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 IN 82.60
RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO PRE-BASEL Il TREATMENT ’
OF WHICH: filtering out of unrealised losses on AFS debt securities (not relevant in i
Indian context)
OF WHICH: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences -
OF WHICH: intangible assets -
97 Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient i
Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 82.60
29 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 3897.93
Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
30 Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related stock surplus 360.00
(31+32)
of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual Non-
31 . 200.00
Cumulative Preference Shares)
of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual
32 160.00
debt Instruments)
33 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Additional Tier 1 288.00
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included in row 5) issued

34 S . . . 0.00
by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)

35 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 0.00

36 Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 288.00
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

37 Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments 0.00

38 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments 0.00
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are

39 outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where 0.00
the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the ’
entity (amount above 10% threshold)
Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that

40 . 1 .. L. 0.00
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

41 National specific regulatory adjustments 0.00
Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority owned financial entities which

41a . . 0.00
have not been consolidated with the bank

41b REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO ADDITIONAL TIER 1 IN RESPECT OF 103.69
AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO PRE-BASEL IIl TREATMENT ’
OF WHICH: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 0.00
OF WHICH: existing adjustments which are deducted from Tier 1 at 50% 0.08
OF WHICH: 103.61

42 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to i
cover deductions

43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital 103.69

44 Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 184.31

44a | Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned for capital adequacy 184.31

45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) (row 29 + row 44a) 4082.24
Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

46 Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock surplus 0.00

47 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2 1132

48 Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included in rows 5 or 34) 0.00
issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2) ’

49 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 0.00

50 Provisions 726.62

51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 1858.62
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

52 Investments in own Tier 2 instruments 0.00
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53 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments 26.80
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are

54 outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where 0.00
the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the '
entity (@mount above the 10% threshold)
Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that

55 . L .. " 0.00
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

56 National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+ 56b) 0.00
Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned financial entities which have not

56a . . 0.00
been consolidated with the bank

56b REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO TIER 2 IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS 26.80
SUBJECT TO PRE BASEL Il TREATMENT ’
OF WHICH: existing adjustments which are deducted from Tier 2 at 50% 0.00
OF WHICH: 0.00

57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital 26.80

58 Tier 2 capital (T2) 1831.82

58a | Tier 2 capital reckoned for capital adequacy 1831.82

58b | Excess Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned as Tier 2 capital 0.00

58c | Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (row 58a + row 58b) 1831.82

59 Total capital (TC = T1 + T2) (row 45 +row 58c) 5914.06
RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO PRE-BASEL Il 53591.17
TREATMENT ’
OF WHICH:
OF WHICH: ...

60 Total risk weighted assets (row 60a +row 60b +row 60c) 53591.17

60a | of which: total credit risk weighted assets 47898.61

60b | of which: total market risk weighted assets 2372.78

60c | of which: total operational risk weighted assets 3319.78
Capital ratios

61 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 7.27%

62 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 7.62%

63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 11.04%
Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital

64 conservation and countercyclical buffer requirements, expressed as a percentage of 5.00%
risk weighted assets)

65 of which: capital conservation buffer requirement

66 of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement

67 of which: G-SIB buffer requirement 0
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68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted 2279
assets) e
National minima (if different from Basel I1I)

69 National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il minimum) 5.00%

70 National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Ill minimum) 6.50%

71 National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il minimum) 9.00%
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

72 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financials 0

73 Significant investments in the common stock of financials 0

74 Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) Not

applicable

75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) in India
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

76 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to 35278
standardised approach (prior to application of cap) ’

77 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach 669.89

78 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal NA
ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap) o

79 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach N.A.
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only applicable between April 1, 2018
and March 31, 2022)

80 Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements

81 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and
maturities)

82 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements Not

83 Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and applicable
maturities) in India

84 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements

85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and
maturities)

Table DF 12 —Composition of Capital- Reconciliation Requirements-

Not applicable as the Bank’s Balance sheet as in Financial Statement is same as Balance sheet under regulatory scope
of consolidation

Table DF 13 — Main features of Regulatory Capital Instruments
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Tier 1 Capital
Sr. Disclosure templa}te ff)r main features PNCPS(perpetual non-cumulative IPDI/ PDI=160 crore
No of regulatory capital instruments preference shares)= 200 crore
1 Issuer Punjab & Sind Bank Punjab & Sind Bank
Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN
2 or Bloomberg identifier for private INE608A04024 INE608A09106
placement)
Banking companies( acquisition and Banking companies( acquisition
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument 8 P . q and transfer of undertakings )
transfer of undertakings ) act 1980
act 1980
Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel Il rules AT-1 AT-1
5 Post-transitional Basel Il rules AT-1 AT-1
6 Eligible at solo/group/ group & solo Solo Solo
7 Instrument type Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference Perpetual Debt Instruments
shares.
Amount recognised in regulatory capital
8 (Rs. in million, as of most recent INR 160 Crores INR 128 Crores
reporting date)
9 Par value of instrument Rs 10 Rs 1000000
10 Accounting classification Shareholders’ Equity Liability (Borrowing)
11 Original date of issuance 22.12.2008 22.12.2008
12 Perpetual or dated Perpetual Perpetual
13 Original maturity date No Maturity No Maturity
14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory No No
%)ot[oval call date, contingent call dates
15 phional call date, 8 NA NA
and redemption amount
16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA NA
Coupons / dividends
17 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon floating floating
18 Coupon rate and any related index Repo rate +100 bps 10 year G-sec +250 bps
19 Existence of a dividend stopper YES No
20 Fylly d'lscretlonary, partially Fully Discretionary Mandatory
gm_crehona?/ or mandatorx _ _
21 xistence of step up or other incentive No No
to redeem
22 Noncumulative or cumulative Noncumulative Noncumulative
23 Convertible or non-convertible Nonconvertible Nonconvertible
24 If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA NA
25 If convertible, fully or partially NA NA
26 If convertible, conversion rate NA NA
27 If convgrtlble, mandatory or optional NA NA
Icfog(\)/g\r/sel%nble specify instrument type
28 ruble, spectly P NA NA
ﬁonvernbl%lmro — :
29 convertible, specify issuer o NA NA

instrument it converts into
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e Punjab & Sind Bank

30 Write-down feature NO NO

31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA NA

32 If write-down, full or partial NA NA

33 If write-down, permanent or temporary NA NA

34 If t.emporary wrltg-down, description of NA NA
write-up mechanism
Position in subordination hierarchy in i) Depositors & general creditors . . .
S e S . . i) Depositors & general creditors

35 liquidation (specify instrument type ii) All tier 2 regulatory capital ii) Subordinated Debt / PCPS
immediately senior to instrument) -Subordinated debt & PCPS iii) PDI

36 Non-compliant transitioned features YES YES

37 If yes, specify non-compliant features Point of non-viability. Point of non-viability.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Table DF 14 —Full Terms & Conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments

1.

BOND ISSUE - VII RS. 40 CRORE
TERMS OF THE PRESENT ISSUE

Punjab & Sind Bank is seeking offer for subscription of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated
Bonds (Series-VII) in the nature of Promissory Notes of Rs. 1,00,000/- each for cash at par aggregating to Rs.
40.00 crores.

The Bonds offered are subject to provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970, the Companies Act, 1956, Securities Contract Regulation Act, 1956, terms of this Information
Memorandum, Instructions contained in the Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be
incorporated in the Trustee Agreement and Bond Trust Deed. Over and above such terms and conditions, the
Bonds shall also be subject to the applicable provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the laws as applicable,
guidelines, notifications and regulations relating to the allotment & issue of capital and listing of securities issued
from time to time by the Government of India (Gol), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Securities & Exchange Board
of India (SEBI), concerned Stock Exchange(s) or any other authorities and other documents that may be executed
in respect of the Bonds.

NATURE & STATUS OF THE BONDS

The Bonds are to be issued in the form of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Bonds (Series-VII)
in the nature of Promissory Notes. The Bonds will constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Bank, ranking pari-passu with the existing/ future subordinated debt of the Bank and subordinated to the claims of
all other creditors and depositors of the Bank as regards repayment of principal and interest by the Bank. The Bonds
shall be free of any restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the holder and without the
consent of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

INSTRUMENT & ISSUE DETAILS AT A GLANCE

Issue Size

Rs. 40.00 crores

Issue Objects

Augmenting the Tier-Il Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long term
resources of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Bonds (Series-VII) in the nature of
Promissory Notes

Instrument Form

In Dematerialised Form

Credit Rating

‘LA” by ICRA

Face Value

Rs. 1,00,000/- per Bond

Issue Price

At par (i.e. Rs. 1,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Application

10 Bonds and in multiples of 10 Bonds thereafter

Tenure

109 months

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 109 Months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Coupon Rate (% p.a.) *

7.40%

Interest Payment

Annually on May 15

Listing

Proposed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Trustee

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited has been appointed by the Bank to act as Trustees for and on
behalf of the holder(s) of the Bonds

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate from the date of realisation of cheque(s)/ demand draft(s) upto one day prior
to the Deemed Date of Allotment

* Subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

2. BOND ISSUE - VIII RS. 150 CRORE

Punjab & Sind Bank is seeking offer for subscription of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Bonds
(Series-VIII) in the nature of Promissory Notes of Rs. 10,00,000/- each for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 100.00 crores
with an option to retain oversubscription.

The Bonds offered are subject to provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970, the Companies Act, 1956, Securities Contract Regulation Act, 1956, terms of this Information Memorandum,
Instructions contained in the Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Trustee
Agreement and Bond Trust Deed. Over and above such terms and conditions, the Bonds shall also be subject to the
applicable provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the laws as applicable, guidelines, notifications and regulations
relating to the allotment & issue of capital and listing of securities issued from time to time by the Government of
India (Gol), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), concerned Stock Exchange(s)

or any other authorities and other documents that may be executed in respect of the Bonds.

NATURE & STATUS OF THE BONDS

The Bonds are to be issued in the form of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Bonds (Series-VIII)
in the nature of Promissory Notes. The Bonds will constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Bank, ranking pari-passu with the existing/ future subordinated debt of the Bank and subordinated to the claims of
all other creditors and depositors of the Bank as regards repayment of principal and interest by the Bank. The Bonds
shall be free of any restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the holder and without the

consent of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

INSTRUMENT & ISSUE DETAILS AT A GLANCE

Issue Size

Rs. 100.00 crores with an option of retain oversubscription

Issue Objects

Augmenting the Tier-Il Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long term
resources of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Bonds (Series-VIII) in the nature of
Promissory Notes

Instrument Form

In Dematerialised Form

Credit Rating

“AA-“ by CRISIL and “LA+" by ICRA

Face Value

Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond

Issue Price

At par (i.e. Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Application

1 Bonds and in multiples of 1 Bonds thereafter

Tenure

117 months

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 117 Months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Coupon Rate (% p.a.) *

9.25% p.a.

Interest Payment

Annually on May 15th

Listing

Proposed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Trustee

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited has been appointed by the Bank to act as Trustees for and on
behalf of the holder(s) of the Bonds

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate from the date of realisation of cheque(s)/ demand draft(s) upto one day prior
to the Deemed Date of Allotment

* subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

3.BOND ISSUE - IX RS. 100 CRORE
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Punjab & Sind Bank

TERMS OF THE PRESENT ISSUE

Punjab & Sind Bank is seeking offer for subscription of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier-lI
Bonds (Series-1X) in the nature of Promissory Notes of Rs. 10,00,000/- each for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 100 crores.

The Bonds offered are subject to provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970, the Companies Act, 1956, Securities Contract Regulation Act, 1956, terms of this Information Memorandum,
Instructions contained in the Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Trustee
Agreement and Bond Trust Deed. Over and above such terms and conditions, the Bonds shall also be subject to the
applicable provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the laws as applicable, guidelines, notifications and regulations
relating to the allotment & issue of capital and listing of securities issued from time to time by the Government of
India (Gol), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), concerned Stock Exchange or

any other authorities and other documents that may be executed in respect of the Bonds.

NATURE & STATUS OF THE BONDS

The Bonds are to be issued in the form of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier-1l Bonds in the
nature of Promissory Notes. The Bonds will constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Bank,
ranking pari passu with the existing/ future subordinated debt of the Bank and subordinated to the claims of all other
creditors and depositors of the Bank as regards payment of interest and repayment of principal by the Bank out of
its own funds. The Bonds shall be free of any restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the

holder or without the consent of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The present issue of bonds is being made for augmenting the Tier-Il Capital of the Bank for strengthening its Capital
Adequacy and for enhancing the long-term resources of the Bank. The expenses of the present issue would be borne
by the Bank. The Main Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Bank enables it to undertake the
activities for which the funds are being raised through the present issue and also the activities which the Bank has

been carrying on till date. The proceeds of this Issue would be used by the Bank for its regular business activities.

INSTRUMENT & ISSUE DETAILS AT A GLANCE

Issue Size

Rs. 100 crores

Issue Objects

Augmenting the Tier-Il Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long
term resource base of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier-Il Bonds in the nature of
Promissory Notes (Series-1X)

Instrument Form

In Dematerialised Form

Credit Rating

“LAA” by ICRA and “AA-/Stable” by CRISIL

Face Value

Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond

Issue Price

At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Application

1 Bond and in multiples of 1 Bond thereafter

Tenure

10 Year and 3 Months ( 123 Months)

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption At par at the end of 10 Year and 3 Months from the Deemed Date of Allotment
Coupon Rate* 9.10% p.a.
Interest Payment Semi-Annual

Interest Payment dates

May 15 and November 15 each year

Listing

Proposed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) Segment of the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE)
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Trustee

for and on behalf of the holder(s) of the Bonds

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (ITSL) has been appointed by the Bank to act as Trustees

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate i.e. @ 9.10% p.a. from the date of realisation of cheque(s)/ demand
draft(s)/ RTGS upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment

* subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

4. BOND ISSUE — X Rs. 400 CRORE

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

Issuer Punjab & Sind Bank
Issue Size Rs. 400 crores
Instrument Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier-Il Bonds (Series-X) in the

nature of Promissory Notes (“Bonds”)

Issuance/ Trading

In Dematerialized Form

Credit Rating

“LAA” by ICRA and “CARE AA” by CARE

Security Unsecured
Face Value Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond
Issue Price At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Redemption Price

At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Subscription

1 Bond and in multiples of 1 Bond thereafter

Tenure

127 Months (10 Year 7 Months)

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 127 Months (10 Year 7 Months) from the Deemed Date of
Allotment (with prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India)

Redemption Date April 15, 2019
Coupon Rate * 11.05% p.a.
Interest Payment Annual

Interest Payment Date

15th May of each year

Listing Proposed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) Segment of the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd. has been appointed by the Bank to act as Trustees for
and on behalf of the holder(s) of the Bonds

Depository National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Registrars MCS Ltd.

Interest on Application
Money *

At coupon rate (i.e. @ 11.05% p.a.) from the date of realization of cheque(s)/ demand
draft(s)/ RTGS up to one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment

Settlement

Payment of interest and repayment of principal shall be made by way of cheque(s)/
interest/ redemption warrant(s)/ demand draft(s)/ credit through RTGS system

Mode of Subscription

Cheque(s) / demand draft(s) may be drawn in favour of “Punjab & Sind Bank” and
crossed “Account Payee Only” payable at par at designated centers mentioned
elsewhere in the Disclosure Document or by way of electronic transfer of funds through
RTGS mechanism for credit in the account of “Punjab & Sind Bank RTGS Account”
IFSC Code: “PSIB 0000385 for Mumbai and “PSIB 0000001” for New Delhi

Issue Opens on *

September 10, 2008

Issue Closes on *

September 12, 2008

Pay-In Dates *

September 10, 2008 to September 12, 2008
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Deemed Date of
Allotment *

September 15, 2008

* subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

* The Bank reserves its sole and absolute right to modify (pre-pone/ postpone) the issue opening/ closing/ pay-in
date(s) without giving any reasons or prior notice. In such a case, investors shall be intimated about the revised time
schedule by the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to keep multiple Deemed Date(s) of Allotment at its sole and

absolute discretion without any notice.

5. BOND ISSUE - XI Rs. 175 CRORE

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

Issuer

Punjab & Sind Bank

Issue Size

Rs. 175 crores

Issue Objects

Augmenting Tier-1l Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long
term resources of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Lower Tier-ll Bonds (Series-XI) in
the nature of Promissory Notes (“Bonds”)

Nature of Instrument

These Bonds shall be fully paid-up, unsecured, subordinated to the claims of other
creditors, free of restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the
holder or without the consent of the RBI

Issuance/ Trading

In Dematerialized Form

Credit Rating

“LAA” by ICRA and “CARE AA” by CARE

Security Unsecured
Face Value Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond
Issue Price At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Redemption Price

At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Subscription

1 Bond and in multiples of 1 Bond thereafter

Tenure

9 Year 10 Months (118 Months)

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 9 Year 10 Months (118 Months) from the Deemed Date of
Allotment (subject to prior approval from RBI)

Redemption Date

April 26, 2019 (subject to prior approval from RBI)

Coupon Rate *

8.70% p.a.

Interest Payment

Annual

Interest Payment Date

On May 15, every year and on final maturity

Listing Proposed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) Segment of the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.

Depository National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Registrars MCS Ltd.

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate (i.e. @ 8.70% p.a) from the date of realization of cheque(s)/ demand
draft(s)/ RTGS up to but excluding the Deemed Date of Allotment

Settlement

Payment of interest and repayment of principal shall be made by way of cheque(s)/
interest/ redemption warrant(s)/ demand draft(s)/ credit through RTGS/ ECS system
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Mode of Subscription

Cheque(s) / demand draft(s) may be drawn in favour of “Punjab & Sind Bank” and
crossed “Account Payee Only” payable at par at designated centers mentioned
elsewhere in the Disclosure Document or by way of electronic transfer of funds through
RTGS mechanism for credit in the account of “Punjab & Sind Bank RTGS Account”
IFSC Code: “PSIB 0000385 for Mumbai and “PSIB 0000001” for New Delhi

Issue Opens on *

June 15, 2009

A

Issue Closes on

June 19, 2009

Pay-In Date *

June 15, 2009 to June 19, 2009

Deemed Date of
Allotment *

June 26, 2009

* subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

* The Bank reserves its sole and absolute right to modify (pre-pone/ postpone) the issue opening/ closing/ pay-in
date(s) without giving any reasons or prior notice. In such a case, investors shall be intimated about the revised time
schedule by the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to keep multiple Deemed Date(s) of Allotment at its sole and

absolute discretion without any notice.

6. BOND ISSUE - XlIl Rs. 200 CRORE

VIIl. SUMMARY TERM SHEET

Issuer

Punjab & Sind Bank

Issue Size

Rs. 200 crores

Issue Objects

Augmenting Tier-1l Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long
term resources of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Lower Tier-ll Bonds (Series-Xll) in
the nature of Promissory Notes (“Bonds”)

Nature of Instrument

These Bonds shall be fully paid-up, unsecured, subordinated to the claims of other
creditors, free of restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the
holder or without the consent of the RBI

Issuance/ Trading

In Dematerialized Form

Credit Rating

“LAA” by ICRA and “AA” by CRISIL

Security Unsecured
Face Value Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond
Issue Price At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Redemption Price

At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Subscription

1 Bond and in multiples of 1 Bond thereafter

Tenure

10 Year 3 Months (123 Months)

Put & Call Option

None

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 10 Years 3 Months (123 Months) from the Deemed Date of
Allotment (subject to prior approval from RBI)

Redemption Date

April 15, 2020 (subject to prior approval from RBI)

Coupon Rate *

8.70% p.a.

Interest Payment

Annual

Interest Payment Date

On May 15, every year and on final maturity

Listing Proposed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) Segment of the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)
Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Depository

National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Registrars

MCS Ltd.

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate (i.e. @ 8.70% p.a) from the date of realization of cheque(s)/ demand
draft(s)/ RTGS up to but excluding the Deemed Date of Allotment

Settlement

Payment of interest and repayment of principal shall be made by way of cheque(s)/
interest/ redemption warrant(s)/ demand draft(s)/ credit through RTGS/ ECS system

Mode of Subscription

Cheque(s) / demand draft(s) may be drawn in favour of “Punjab & Sind Bank” and
crossed “Account Payee Only” payable at par at designated centers mentioned
elsewhere in the Disclosure Document or by way of electronic transfer of funds through
RTGS mechanism for credit in the account of “Punjab & Sind Bank RTGS Account”
IFSC Code: “PSIB 0000385 for Mumbai and “PSIB 0000001” for New Delhi

Issue Opens on *

January 6, 2010

Issue Closes on *

January 13, 2010

Pay-In Date *

January 6, 2010 to January 13, 2010

Deemed Date of
Allotment *

January 15, 2010

* subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

* The Bank reserves its sole and absolute right to modify (pre-pone/ postpone) the issue opening/ closing/ pay-in
date(s) without giving any reasons or prior notice. In such a case, investors shall be intimated about the revised time
schedule by the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to keep multiple Deemed Date(s) of Allotment at its sole and
absolute discretion without any notice.

7. BOND ISSUE - Xlll Rs. 300 CRORE

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

Issuer

Punjab & Sind Bank

Issue Size

Rs. 300 crore

Issue Objects

Augmenting Tier-ll Capital for strengthening the Capital Adequacy and enhancing long
term resources of the Bank

Instrument

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series-XIlI)
in the nature of Promissory Notes (“Bonds”)

Nature of Instrument

These Bonds shall be fully paid-up, unsecured, subordinated to the claims of other
creditors, free of restrictive clauses and shall not be redeemable at the initiative of the
holder or without the consent of the RBI

Issuance/ Trading

In Dematerialized Form

Credit Rating

“LAA+" by ICRA and “CARE AA+" by CARE

Security Unsecured
Face Value Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond
Issue Price At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Redemption Price

At par (Rs. 10,00,000/- per Bond)

Minimum Subscription

1 Bond and in multiples of 1 Bond thereafter

Tenure 124 Months
Put Option None
Call Option At the end of 6th Year (Subject to Approval from RBI)

Redemption/ Maturity

At par at the end of 124 Months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (subject to prior
approval from RBI)

Redemption Date

24th October 2021 (subject to prior approval from RBI)
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g & god R | 20.06.2011

g B 93 89 @ /" | 24.06.2011

9-g gew” 20.06.2011 ¥ 24.06.2011

e @ W TE AR | 24.06.2011
*EAd R AR R Herdl a3 |
Ao & urE 3 | He (Yd FRTSH/RRenT) R4, Eie/as SR/ [ HeEel U Udhd Ud Rt JffUdR
e 2 R §& 371 #1F wRo1 9aTg ferar gd Nfed & uRad= o) daar | W AWl #, d6 g1 fAderel
P FET THY RN ¥ [T HRARIT ST | §6 & I o471 oy Afed & amded & forw /it ST arefl ueh
¥ e fafaEn) fAufRa axa &1 0 teha vd ww el iffieR gRfEa 2 |

darferaT -vw-15- aRSfA® & U MasAHdILsn &1 THIHRoT

qrdoE &3 & dai & forg @y T8 g

dre: I8 g Ul e &1 ) argare 7|
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Punjab & Sind Bank

Coupon Rate *

9.73% p.a.

Interest Payment

Annual

Interest Payment Date

On May 15, every year and on final maturity

Listing Proposed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) Segment of the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.

Depository National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Registrars MCS Ltd.

Interest on Application
Money *

At the coupon rate (i.e. @ 9.73% p.a) from the date of realization of cheque(s)/ demand
draft(s)/ RTGS up to but excluding the Deemed Date of Allotment

Settlement

Payment of interest and repayment of principal shall be made by way of cheque(s)/
interest/ redemption warrant(s)/ demand draft(s)/ credit through RTGS/ ECS system

Mode of Subscription

By way of electronic transfer of funds through RTGS mechanism for credit in the
account of “Punjab & Sind Bank RTGS Account” IFSC Code: “PSIB0000001” for New
Delhi

Issue Opens on *

20th June 2011

Issue Closes on *

24th June 2011

Pay-In Date *

20th June 2011 to 24th June 2011

Deemed Date of
Allotment *

24th June 2011

* Subject to deduction of tax at source, as applicable.

* The Bank reserves its sole and absolute right to modify (pre-pone/ postpone) the issue opening/ closing/ pay-in
date(s) without giving any reasons or prior notice. In such a case, investors shall be intimated about the revised time
schedule by the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to keep multiple Deemed Date(s) of Allotment at its sole and

absolute discretion without any notice.

Table DF 15 —Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration-

Not applicable to PSU Banks
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31 91, 2014 ST gaT—9A

(000 BISHR)
HUY ®uY
ST 31.03.2014 &1 31.3.2013 @I
gofl derm Saary Reifar & argar Rafy @ argaR
(e wdiféra) (@raT whifEma)
gl 1 4752842 4540212
IRfErT ffer va arfiey 2 45360038 41500803
SRR 3 847301648 706415025
SEIN 4 23050423 25400507
3 <A AT FIGET 5 24626596 26922486
\_rﬁg 945091547 804779033
IRt
AHdl IR IR Rad d@ ¥ sfoeiy 6 48344909 32489201
1 H SfARIY Ug AT Tl 3Ted AT IR U 7 14903466 8302906
aq
faaer 8 282941140 225424808
afim 9 572390666 514307860
e anfeat 10 10027150 8441281
3 3t 11 16484216 15812977
Sirs 945091547 804779033
AHRAS TG 12 100290718 80116615
Tgel & forg fae 12757758 11588513
SeolE- orr et 17
@l ¥ et fewfort 18
TN 1 ¥ 18 WAl BT I 37T T |
31 |14, 2014 & T 99 @ forw arr—ary @rar
(000 BT BWIEHR)
®UY ®UY
A 31.3.2014 &I 31.3.2013 Bl
T Y (et vy | A oy (dar wfda)
I KD
Jifora & 13 79727065 73401243
3T 3 14 4272808 3942169
s 83999873 77343412
1. a5
3 fHar T |t 15 63521242 56991021
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

PUNJAB SIND BANK
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31st MARCH, 2014
(000’S OMITTED)

Rs. Rs.
AS ON AS ON
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES SCHEDULE 31.03.14 31.03.13
[Audited] [Audited]

Capital 1 4752842 4540212
Reserves & Surplus 2 45360038 41500803
Deposits 3 847301648 706415025
Borrowings 4 23050423 25400507
Other liabilities & Provisions 5 24626596 26922486
TOTAL 945091547 804779033
ASSETS
Cash & balances with Reserve Bank
Of India 6 48344909 32489201
Balances with banks & money at call and short
notice 7 14903466 8302906
Investments 8 282941140 225424808
Advances 9 572390666 514307860
Fixed Assets 10 10027150 8441281
Other Assets 11 16484216 15812977
TOTAL 945091547 804779033
Contingent Liabilities 12 100290718 80116615
Bills for Collection 12757758 11588513
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes on Accounts 18
Schedule 1 to 18 form an integral part
of the accounts

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2014
(000’S OMITTED)

Rs. Rs.
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SCHEDULE 31.03.14 31.03.13
[Audited] [Audited]
I. INCOME
Interest earned 13 79727065 73401243
Other income 14 4272808 3942169
TOTAL 83999873 77343412
1. EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 63521242 56991021
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gRETes & 16 12473212 10963900
TTaET 3R MhRas ™ 4999155 5996289
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AT & g /BT (—) 3006264 3392202
ST A4 /BT () 15430797 14225065
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qol U4 gHad 3foid Ui IR 10.69 13.49
Iv. fafrarsm
3R :
wifafere sm=fera fafert 752500 850000
golt arRferd ffer (fraen) 118522 93488
€T 36 (i) (viii) & ofafd 0 234188
oy erRfera fafert
JRfga fAaer 36817 0
JRAATT T FIATY 234960 0
HTARS IS ScrarfId fAfer 20000 20000
AT ATHTS:
EILENIT ) 180000 170000
$fdadt 605625 680777
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SeorEgg et Hifort 17
Qrdl ¥ et fewfort 18
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KISESCINATES freak AR A o FAR AT
Jee ud udy e e feye e fews
qRW T[T . aqan TARTS=H YR STHY Hollg aRIsT
IRERES IRENED IRENED IRERED IRERES
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

Operating expenses 16 12473212 10963900
Provisions and contingencies 4999155 5996289
TOTAL 80993609 73951210
1. PROFIT/LOSS
Net Profit/ Loss (-) for the
period 3006264 3392202
Profit/ Loss(-) brought forward 15430797 14225065
TOTAL 18437061 17617267
Basic & Diluted Earning per
Share (EPS) 10.69 13.49
V. APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to:
Statutory Reserve 752500 850000
Capital Reserve [Investment] 118522 93488
Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) 0 234188
Investment Reserve 36817 0
Deferred Tax Liability 234960 0
Corporate Social
Responsibility Fund 20000 20000
Proposed Dividend:
PNCPS 180000 170000
Equity 605625 680777
Dividend Distribution Tax 133517 138017
Balance carried over to
Balance Sheet 16355120 15430797
TOTAL 18437061 17617267
Significant Accounting
Policies 17
Notes on Accounts 18
Schedule 1 to 18 form an integral part of the accounts

JATINDERBIR SINGH KISHORE KUMAR SANSI MUKESH KUMAR JAIN
CHAIRMAN & MG.DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MAHESH GUPTA S.P.BABUTA N.RAJENDRAN SURESH THAKUR SANJIV ARORA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
S.P.S.VIRK SANJAY VERMA ANITA KARNAVAR G.S.SACHDEVA HARSHBIR SINGH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF GEN.MANAGER GEN. MANAGER
[.S.BHATIA DEEPAK MAINI G.S.DHALL R.C.NARAYAN D.D.SHARMA
GEN. MANAGER GEN. MANAGER GEN. MANAGER GEN. MANAGER GEN. MANAGER
VARINDER GUPTA R.P.S.KHURANA V.K.MEHROTRA A.S.AHUJA

GEN. MANAGER DY.GEN.MANAGER ASSTT GEN.MANAGER CHIEF MANAGER
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TH.A. 071448 TH. . 081808
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Fd 1. H% s 3.

UHIATRY 50002V

FHd AR, BN TS &.

<l dETeR <l dETeR
(Te1. 5iw) (IS $AR)
TR |EIER

TH.A. 060742 TH..090865

UBIRYA 302166

UBIIRYA 3070695

% faeel
f&H1®: 10.05.2014
(000 BT BWEFR)
®aY ®Y
IRLET 1 — gl 31.3.2014 &I 31.3.2013 &I
Reafd & sgarR Refd & sgarR
(e udifera) (rEr  odifera)

I sfaadl IR Yol yds 7500000 7500000
. 10,/. B 75,00,00,000 TRIR

1. AT R on (@ IR—weR) (@ oy dies.) 22500000 22500000
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30000000 30000000

forf, aiffreed vd g gl -

I sfaady IRR Yol
UG ®. 10 /. B 27,52,84,212 IR (Uwel av
25,40,21,189) RJ'IHH QVQAIH TWRER DI ?JIT@FH f[ W 2752842 2540212
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As per our Report of even date

For R. M. Lall & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(R. P. Tewari)
Partner

M. No. 071448
FRN : 000932C

For B. K. Shroff & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(L. K. Shroff)
Partner

M. No. 060742
FRN : 302166E

New Delhi
May 10, 2014

Punjab & Sind Bank e

For O. P. Tulsyan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rakesh Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 081808
FRN : 500028N

For R. Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Kumar)
Partner

M. No. 090865
FRN : 307069E

(000’'S OMITTED)

Rs.

Rs.

SCHEDULE 1-CAPITAL

AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited]

AS ON
31.03.13 [Audited]

Authorised Capital: Equity Share Capital 75,00,00,000

shares of Rs.10/- each 7500000 7500000
I Preference Share Capital  (Perpetual Non-cumulative)
(PNCPS)  225,00,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each 22500000 22500000
30000000 30000000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital:
i) Equity Share Capital 27,52,84,212 (Previous Year
25,40,21,189)  shares of Rs.10/- each [including
. 2752842 2540212
22,41,32,212 (Previous Year 20,28,69,189) shares of
Rs.10/- each held by Central  Government]
i) Preference Share Capital  (Perpetual Non-cumulative)
(PNCPS)  20,00,00,000 (Previous Year 20,00,00,000) 2000000 2000000
shares of Rs.10/- each held by Central Government
TOTAL 4752842 4540212
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SN SEN
31.3.2014 @I 31.3.2013 @I
Reafad & sgaR Refa & sgarR
(e gdifara) (e gdifera)
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I. wifafere am=fera fafer
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@) don IRfera ffer (e
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1T, S
ey 6254625 5055257
gRae: 99 & R yRae 787370 1201868
T IR oty = —2188 —2500
ST 7039807 6254625
% TG AT 3= 3TRferd et
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IRaE: 9¥ & SR yRaEH 0 0
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@) XIeTed IRIgr ey
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99 & SR uRaeHd 0 0
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) 3Rferq foaer
3Ry 0 0
99 & SR uRaed 36817 0
208  rfife RAYE 2013-14




Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

(000’ S OM TTED)

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 2-RESERVES & SURPLUS AS ON AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Statutory Reserves
Opening Balance 8259406 7409406
Addition during the year 752500 850000
Sub-Total-I 9011906 8259406
1. Capital Reserves:
a.Revaluation Reserve (Fixed Assets)
Opening Balance 7065699 7295071
Add: Addition during the year 1479579 0
Less: Deduction during the year 2237688 2229372
Sub-Total-1l.a 8307590 7065699
b.Capital Reserve [Investments]
Opening Balance 2604207 2510719
Add: Addition during the year 118522 93488
Sub-Total-11.b 2722729 2604207
1. Share Premium:
Opening Balance 6254625 5055257
Add: Addition during the year 787370 1201868
Less: Share Issue Expenses -2188 -2500
Sub-Total-111 7039807 6254625
Iv. Revenue & Other Reserves
a.General Reserves
Opening Balance 1089107 1089107
Add: Addition during the year 0 0
Less:Deduction during the year 0 0
Sub-Total-1V.a 1089107 1089107
b.Revenue Reserve:
Opening Balance 105700 105700
Add: Addition during the year 0 0
Sub-Total-IV.b 105700 105700
c.Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii):
Opening Balance 691262 457074
Add: Addition during the year 0 234188
Sub-Total-1V.c 691262 691262
d.Investment Reserve
Opening Balance 0 0
Add: Addition during the year 36817 0
Sub-Total-1V.d 36817 0
V. Balance in Profit & Loss Account 16355120 15430797
TOTAL [l TO V] 45360038 41500803
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Sy-arr—(1v) 9 36817 0
V. am—ge @ ¥ 9y 16355120 15430797
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(000 B WIEHR)
®[UY ®[UY
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STA 3 —orr It Reafad @ sgar Reafad @ sgar
(e _udiféra) (e _udiféra)
b, 1.) | ST
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1. |rafer S
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®UY wUY
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Reafd & argar Reafa & srgarR
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

(000’S OMITTED)

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 3-DEPOSITS AS ON AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 Audited]
I. Demand Deposits
i.From Banks 297775 461883
ii.From others 43436576 35143450
11.Savings Bank Deposits 133217694 121782532
IIl.Term Deposits
i.From Banks 67627719 55643648
ii.From others 602721884 493383512
TOTAL [I+11+11] 847301648 706415025
Deposits of branches in India 847301648 706415025
(000’S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 4-BORROWINGS

AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited]

AS ON
31.03.13 [Audited]

I. Borrowings in India

i) Reserve Bank of India 5800000 4000000
ii) Other Banks 0 0
iii) Other institutions & agencies 423 2956237
iv) Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments [IPDI) 1600000 1600000

v) Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares [PCPS] 2000000 2000000

vi) Subordinated Debt 13650000 13650000

1. Borrowings outside India 0 1194270
TOTAL [I & 1] 23050423 25400507
Secured borrowings included in | & Il above 3800000 5998768
(000’S OMITTED)

Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS AS ON AS ON

31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]

1. Bills Payable 1671254 2382557
1. Inter-office adjustments [net] 1117763 2995275
I1I. Interest accrued 7868251 6354274
IV. Deferred Tax Liability 769365 1106899
V. Others (including provisions) 13199963 14083481
TOTAL 24626596 26922486
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

(000’'S OMITTED)

Rs

Rs

SCHEDULE 6-CASH & BALANCES WITH RESERVE
BANK OF INDIA

AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited]

AS ON
31.03.13 [Audited]

I. Cash in hand [including foreign

currency notes] 2407064 1751839
II.Balances with Reserve Bank of India
i) in Current Account 45937845 30737362
ii) in Other Account 0 0
TOTAL [I & ] 48344909 32489201
(000’S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 7-BALANCES WITH BANKS &
MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE

AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited]

AS ON
31.03.13 [Audited]

LLIN INDIA

i) Balance with banks

a) in Current Accounts 567903 843466
b) in Other Deposit Accounts 8490959 2250000

ii) Money at call & Short notice
a) with banks 4350000 1500000
b) with other Institutions 0 1000000
SUB-TOTAL [l] 13408862 5593466

Il. OUTSIDE INDIA

i) In Current Accounts 1494604 1375458
ii) In Other Deposit Accounts 0 1333982
iii) Money at call & Short notice 0 0
SUB-TOTAL [lI] 1494604 2709440
TOTAL [I+11] 14903466 8302906
(000’'S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 8-INVESTMENT

AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited]

AS ON
31.03.13 [Audited]

I. Investments in India in

i) Government Securities *x 216836768 187060332
ii) Other approved securities 99491 113932
iii) Shares 1686798 1724943
iv) Debentures & Bonds 31363359 11941940
v) Subsidiaries, and/or Joint Ventures & Sponsored
Institutions 6537 6537
vi) Others:
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%) avias o/ e/ Ui IS /RIS IVt 32774703 24370055
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3 T, 617.04 INRIG D R TRt (@fed qou . 600.98 Rre) AftAfera €1 fime af I8 %, 27642 IR o
(©ifra g ®. 276.99 TRI)
(000 BT BIEWR)
®UY ®UY
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Reafd & srgarR Reafar & srgarR
(@ Thfdr) (erar wdifd)
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CREAKRESESIDLRGIES)
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STgA 10 — wmrfl  snRaat
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T @ SR dNTd § gRaeH 7666013 7666013
SU— ANT 8383871 7952174
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

a) Commercial Paper/CD/Securitised

Receipts/ RIDF 32774703 24370055
b)Units of UTI, other MF 173484 207069
SUB-TOTAL [I] 282941140 225424808

IL.Investments outside India NIL NIL
TOTAL [l + ] 282941140 225424808
Gross Value 283466139 225902431
Provision for Depreciation [-] 524999 477623
Net Investments 282941140 225424808

** Includes encumbered securities of Rs.617.04 crore [Face Value Rs.609.98 crore] previous year

Rs.276.42 crore [Face Value Rs.276.99 crore]

(000’'S OMITTED)

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 9-ADVANCES AS ON AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
i) Bills purchased & discounted 4321382 4803417
ii) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on
demand 179853971 160488534
iii) Term Loans 388215313 349015909
Total 572390666 514307860
i) Secured by tangible assets
includes advances against Book Debt) 448369357 398260595
ii) Covered by Bank/ Government Guarantees 65652978 55689694
iii) Unsecured 58368331 60357571
Total 572390666 514307860
ADVANCES IN INDIA
i) Priority Sector 155920233 139900130
ii) Public Sector 153507860 127844627
iii) Banks 3300871 471810
iv) Others 259661702 246091293
Total 572390666 514307860
(000’'S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 10-FIXED ASSETS AS ON AS ON

31.03.14 [Audited]

31.03.13 [Audited]

I.  Premises
Cost [Opening Balance] 717858 286161
Appreciation in cost on account of revaluation 7666013 7666013
Sub-Total 8383871 7952174
Additions during the year
Original Cost 105856 431697
Revaluation Cost 8545278 0

Deductions during the year on
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IRAMGH NG TR 105856 431697
eI ad ) 8545278 0
99 & IRE FwIfa
IRAMGH NG TR 0
eI ad ) —7666013
gei— Ierfad fRFie &1 qeus™
IRAMGH NG TR —201028 —159906
TS dd ) —273688 —600313
s 1 8930276 7623652
2) =T IR efRadt
(% R IR AR aftafed €)
I (@11 3m) 2487771 2119415
99 & RME URagd 613756 420967
99 & SR Sl —56549 —52611
IR JeI8 —1948104 —1670142
s 2 1096874 817629
od Wirg (19 2) 10027150 8441281
(000 BT BWIEWR)
RN RN
31.3.2014 &1 31.3.2013 &I
g 11— Iru et Reafd & R Reafa & srgarR
(orear T ifdi) (S gfd)
|. sfaeiaierg TR (Fae) 0 0
. Hrgqa & 5612110 4026688
Il. afim ®u & e /9 W) 3361796 3157252
PIT AT PR
1 <rgs Il 3R e 44260 30484
IV. Tl @1 ggfe 9 o & 0 0
T3 IR dHeRI R
V. 3= 7466050 8598553
SIS 16484216 15812977
(000 BT WER)
HUY ®UY
31.3.2014 @1 31.3.2013 DI
ITgA— 12 — IHRAS IFaTg Reafd & srgaR Reafa & srgar
(et gdifér) (e gdiféa)
I §% fovg U9 T@ 9 =01 & 38279 33669
9§ WeR T o T 8
I1.3fer: mew el & forg S 0 0
11, gomr arer fageh fafvme wfagme & fog <gar 71049040 50456175
IV dacsl @ 3R 0 & 18 TRfeat
%) ARd H 20753830 22681745
W) IR & dEx 0 0
V. Wi, yssicd qIm 3= S 3671688 4334366
VI a7 7, R o & amelRve w1 ¥ SoRerl 8 4777881 2610660
SIS 100290718 80116615
(000 BT BIEI)
| | Y wu|
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Original Cost 0 0
Revaluation Cost -7666013 0
Less Depreciation to date on
Original cost -201028 -159906
Revaluation cost -237688 -600313
Total | 8930276 7623652
Il. Other Fixed Assets
(including Furniture & Fixtures)
Cost [Opening Balance] 2487771 2119415
Additions during the year 613756 420967
Deductions during the year -56549 -52611
Depreciation to date -1948104 -1670142
Total 1l 1096874 817629
TOTAL I & 11 10027150 8441281
(000’S OMITTED
Rs Rs
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS AS ON AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I._Inter-office adjustments [net] 0 0
II. Interest accrued 5612110 4026688
Ill. Tax paid in advance/ Tax deducted at source 3361796 3157252
IV. Stationery & Stamps 44260 30484
V. Non Banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 0 0
VI. Others 7466050 8598553
TOTAL 16484216 15812977
(000’S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 12-CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS ON AS ON
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts 38279 33669
I. Liability for partly paid investments 0 0
lIl. Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange
contracts 71049040 50456175
IV. Guarantees given on behalf of Constituents:
a.In India 20753830 22681745
b.Outside India 0 0
V. Acceptances, Endorsements and other obligations 3671688 4334366
VI. Other items for which the bank is contingently liable 4777881 2610660
TOTAL 100290718 80116615
(000’S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 13-INTEREST EARNED YEAR ENDED 31.03.14 YEAR ENDED
[Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Interest/discount on advances/ bills 59776705 57095047
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I fasi ) e 18801850 15792268
3RS Rad & & arforet 820314 299803
3R 3 IR 9% [t ) =
IV = 328196 214125
s 79727065 73401243
(000 BT BWEWR)
AR »Uq
31.3.2014 &I 31.3.2013 &I
A 14 — I I Reafd & argarR Reafd & rgarR
(v Tifdr) (GECIR )
| o, fafra ek gareh 745335 798087
Il e & fawa R @y (Fad) 1253713 629814
11 ff, 7a= Ton Rl & g W o (Faa) 1505 1239
IV fafma o939 ® @ (Faa) 349042 333013
V. fafdy e 1923213 2180016
SIS 4272808 3942169
(000 BT BWIER)
HUY wUY
31.3.2014 &1 31.3.2013 &I
FqqAr 15 — srufaa < Rerfd & srgar Reafd & rgaR
(ot g difdrd) (S adifda)
| SRl R = 61166001 54247378
Il TR Rord 9§ /R 9 587866 943531
SURI W &S
1l =g 1767375 1800112
s 63521242 56991021
(000 BT wWEWR)
W
31.3.2014 @I 31.3.2013 @I
I 16 — TRATAT =" Reafd @ sgaR Reafar @ srgaR
(et wdifém) (T whifga)
| e @1 e iR mae 8562324 7735134
Il f_mam, &R &R AT 880003 678421
[l 9507 UF g |l 87635 72359
IV fasmoe iR meEr 21709 80928
V §% 3 99 R RN 603320 496905
FHER : g JIRfaT e & sfaRor 237688 229372
365632 267533
VI el &1 ged, W 3R &> 4088 2952
VI oE@T RIEd @ B IR 86112 70850
(SOH T el TS B I AR = i €)
VIII fafer g 105015 81121
IX ST% @, IR AR A anfe 87858 81845
X A9HT R SrRe 145648 127055
X1 & 694578 620739
X1l 3 &g 1432610 1144963
s 12473212 10963900
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Il. Income on investments 18801850 15792268
lll. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and
other inter-bank funds 820314 299803
IV. Others 328196 214125
TOTAL 79727065 73401243
000’S OMITTED)
Rs Rs
SCHEDULE 14-OTHER INCOME YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Commission, exchange and brokerage 745335 798087
II. Profit on sale of Investments [net] 1253713 629814
lll. Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets [net] 1505 1239
IV. Profit on exchange transactions [net] 349042 333013
V. Miscellaneous Income 1923213 2180016
TOTAL 4272808 3942169
(000'S OMITTED)
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 15-INTEREST EXPENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Interest on deposits 61166001 54247378
Il. Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-bank
borrowings 587866 943531
lll. Others 1767375 1800112
TOTAL 63521242 56991021
(000" S OM TTED)
Rs Rs
SCHEDULE 16-OPERATING EXPENSES YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.14 [Audited] 31.03.13 [Audited]
I. Payments to and provisions for employees 8562324 7735134
II.Rent, taxes and lighting 880003 678421
llI.Printing and stationery 87635 72359
IV.Advertisement & publicity 21709 80928
V.Depreciation on Bank’s property 603320 496905
Less: Transfer from Revaluation Reserve 237688 229372
365632 267533
VI.Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 4088 2952
VII.Auditors’ fees and expenses (including branch
auditors’ fee & expenses) 86112 70850
VIll.Law Charges 105015 81121
IX.Postages, Telegrams, Telephones etc. 87858 81845
X.Repairs & maintenance 145648 127055
Xl.Insurance 694578 620739
XII.Other expenditure 1432610 1144963
TOTAL 12473212 10963900
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SCHEDULE-17

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention on accrual basis
of accounting unless otherwise stated and comply with Generally accepted accounting principles, statutory
requirements prescribed under Banking Regulation Act, 1949, circulars and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank
of India from time to time and notified accounting standards by companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
to the extent applicable and current practices in Banking Industry in India.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

All the Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated in Indian rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date as notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). The
resultant gain / loss is accounted for in the Profit & Loss account.

The outstanding foreign  exchange contracts are stated at the prevailing exchange rate on the date of
commitment. Profit or loss on such contracts is accounted for as per rates advised by FEDAI and in accordance
with FEDAI guidelines and provisions of para 38 of AS-11.

Iltems of Income and expenditure relating to foreign exchange transactions are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transactions.

Contingent liabilities on account of acceptances, endorsements and other obligations including guarantees &
letter of credits in foreign currencies are valued as per rates published by FEDAI except Bills for Collection
which are accounted for at the notional rates at the time of lodgment.

Investments

Classification and valuation of investments are made in accordance with the prudential norms prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India read with clarifications / directions given by RBI.

The entire investment portfolio is classified into three categories, viz, Held to Maturity, Available for Sale and
Held for Trading in line with the guidelines / directions of Reserve Bank of India. Disclosure of the investments
under the three categories mentioned above is made under six classifications viz.,

i.  Government Securities

ii. Other approved securities

iii. Shares

iv. Debentures

v. Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and

vi. Others

Basis of Classification:
i. Investments that the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as Held to Maturity.

ii. Investments that are held principally for resale within 90 Days from the date of purchase are classified as
Held for Trading.

iii. Investments which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as Available for Sale.

iv. An investment is classified under the above three categories at the time of its purchase. Shifting of securities
from one category to another is done with the approval of the Board normally once in a year. Shifting
is effected at the lower of acquisition cost / book value / market value on the date of transfer and the
depreciation, if any, on such shifting is fully provided for and the book value of securities is changed
accordingly.

Securities under 'Held to Maturity’ are stated at acquisition costs unless such costs are higher than the face
value, in which case the premium is amortized over the remaining period of maturity. Such amortization is
shown under “Income on Investments— Schedule 13 item Il. In case, the cost is less than the redemption value,
the difference being the unrealized gain, is ignored. Any diminution in value of investments in subsidiaries and
joint venture, other than temporary in nature, is provided for each investment individually

Securities under 'Available for sale’ are valued scrip wise and depreciation/ appreciation is segregated category
wise. While net appreciation is ignored, net depreciation under each category is provided for.
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3.6 Securities under 'Held for Trading’ are valued at market price and the net depreciation under each category is
provided for and the net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

3.7 Cost of investment is based on the weighted average cost method category wise.

3.8 The 'market value’ for the purpose of valuation of investments included in the 'Available for Sale’ and 'Held for
Trading’ categories is the market price of the scrip as available from the trades/quotes on the stock exchanges,
price list of RBI, prices declared by Primary Dealers Association of India (PDAI) jointly with the Fixed Income
Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

In respect of unquoted securities, the procedure adopted is as below:

a. Government of India Securities: At rates put out by FIMMDA/PDAI

b. State Government Loans, Other approved On yield to maturity (YTM) basis at the rate prescribed
Securities, Preference Shares, Debentures and by FIMMDA/ PDAI with such mark ups as laid down

PSU Bonds: by RBI or FIMMDA/PDAI
C. Equity Shares: At break-up value based on the latest Balance Sheet,
which are not older than one year on the date of
valuation. In cases where latest Balance Sheets are not
available, the shares are valued at Re.1 per company

d. Mutual Fund Units: At re-purchase price or Net Assets Value

e. Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers, Certificate of At carrying cost.
Deposits, Recapitalization Bonds, Subsidiaries,
Joint Ventures and Sponsored Institutions:

3.9 In determining acquisition cost of investments:
a. Incentive received on subscription is deducted from the cost of securities;
b. Brokerage / commission/ stamp duty paid in connection with acquisition of securities are treated as revenue
expenditure;
c. Broken period interest, if any, paid on acquisition of investment is debited to profit & loss account. Broken
period interest received on sale of securities is recognized as Interest Income.

3.10 Profit/ Loss on sale of investments is taken to profit and loss account. However, in case of profit on sale of
investments in 'Held to Maturity’ category, an equivalent amount of profit is appropriated to Capital Reserve.

3.11 Non Performing Investments
In respect of Non-Performing Securities, income is not recognized and appropriate provision is made for
depreciation in the value of such securities as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

4. Advances

4.1 Advances are classified into “Performing” and “Non-Performing” assets and provisions are made as per the
prudential norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. Bank has made provisions on Non-Performing Assets

as per the prudential norms prescribed by the RBI as under:

Category of Assets Provision norms

15% on Secured Exposure.
25% on Unsecured Exposure*
Sub-Standard ° P
20% on Unsecured Exposure*

in respect of Infrastructure loan accounts where certain safeguards such as escrow accounts are available
Doubtful-I 25% on Secured

100% on Unsecured

Doubtful-1I 40% on Secured

100% on Unsecured
Doubtful-I1 100% on Secured

100% on Unsecured
Loss 100% of Book Outstanding
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TAT NG HUS IUE & (At Bl A AMMHA 8, BT FIOT DT AT MR W foram mar 2|

85 U WAl & YU ®U A FHRINTI 814 & GHI WAl & FAMEM WR &1 T §e $1 Wl 4 foram mam 2|

8.6 3ifcray wrafd ST RN WR =TS &1 TUFT §9d 9@ ST WId IR AN 791 &% W &I TS 7 |

87 UEl IR & FAdIHxUl R G ugl Ry & Hae § Jd1 $I MUET Ug & TR0 & FHI B TS & |

88 feaR-1l 4ol # S & HRUT G108 SINI SR Haell FAT P JRNT IS & /191 717 & 78 uiar ae § b arafey 4
CERCINRSISIRS IR IR

89 ¥R fife @l @1 PR Miftrm @ & AT fovar R |

9. wefarer dar forgfar s
9.1 UYL ®S, UM B AT JAHR ThaIHRU BS ¥ dlfich AT BT UG qHifdbd Jedih= & MR TR fHar mar & |

92 IAHM FHHARAT fS2i- Ugel Ued &1 Wipfa 781 <1 2, 7g e fased & g4: WiaH W 3R <adr o 9Rdg Red
9 & gRUF fadid 9 BRa¥, 2011 E. SHIBNST =.419.4141. 80/21.04.018/2010—11 P! W&l & AR, UYL Tae, 1972"
BT YA, H e, UGST DI HHAT %6, 10 ARGY GHifcbed Jedih @ SR Ul a3 ol afafdy it fob faxiig a9 2010—11
A B, aRENIT 3R &1 7 | ST IR—uRenferd e 5 fAdrel TyRarfagd efiet o o1g Il wfafoa w8 21
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*  Unsecured exposure is defined as an exposure where the realizable value of the security, as assessed by
the bank/ approved valuers/ Reserve Bank’s Inspecting Officers, is not more than 10 per cent, ab-initio, of
the outstanding exposure.

Advances are stated net of de-recognized interest and provisions/ Technical write off made in respect of non-

performing advances. Claims received from DICGC/ CGTMSE/ ECGC are not reduced from such advances till

adjusted/ technically written-off whereas part recovery in all NPA accounts is reduced from advances.

Provisions on standard advances are made and are included under “Other Liabilities and Provisions” as per

RBI’s guidelines.

For restructured/ rescheduled advances, provisions are made in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI.

Floating Provisions

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, the bank has an approved policy for creation and utilization of floating
provisions separately for advances and investments. The quantum of floating provisions to be created would be
assessed, at, the end of each financial year. The floating provisions would be utilized only for contingencies
under extra ordinary circumstances specified in the policy with prior permission of Reserve Bank of India.

Fixed Assets
Premises and other Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost/revalued amount. In respect of premises, where
segregation is not possible between land and superstructure, are considered in the value of superstructure.

Premises taken on perpetual lease are considered as freehold premises and are not amortized.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Depreciation is provided for on -

7.1.1Computers at 33.33%, on straight-line method; additions are depreciated for the full year irrespective of the

date of addition as per RBI guidelines.

7.1.2 Other Fixed assets on written down value method at the rates prescribed by the Income Tax Act 1961; additions

effected before 30th September are depreciated for full year and additions effected thereafter are depreciated
for half year.

7.1.3 Cost of premises is taken composite, wherever it is not possible to segregate the cost of land from the cost of

7.2
7.3

8.1
8.2

8.3
8.4

8.5
8.6
8.7
8.8

8.9

9.1

9.2

the superstructure.

No depreciation is provided on assets sold/disposed of during the year.

Amount equivalent to depreciation attributable to revalued portion of the assets is transferred from Revaluation
Reserve Account to the Profit & Loss Account.

Revenue Recognition

Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis unless otherwise stated.

Income on non-performing assets is recognized on realization basis in accordance with the prudential norms
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India.

Partial recovery in non-performing assets is appropriated first towards principal and thereafter towards interest.
Income on guarantees and letters of credit issued, locker rent, income from merchant banking transactions, money
transfer services, dividend on shares, Interest on refund of income tax, commission on credit card, interest on
overdue bills, processing fee, Government business including distribution of pension and income from units of
mutual fund products and income from ATM operations are accounted for on receipt basis.

Rebate on compromised accounts is accounted for at the time of full and final adjustment of the account.
Interest on overdue Term Deposits is provided at the rate of interest applicable to Savings Bank Deposits.
Liability in respect of incremental lease rent on renewal of lease agreement is accounted for at the time of
renewal of the lease.

Bond lIssue Expenses incurred in connection with raising Tier-ll Capital are treated as Deferred Revenue
Expenditure to be written off over a period of five years.

Share Issue Expenses are adjusted against the Share Premium Account

Staff Retirement Benefits

Annual contribution to Gratuity Fund, Pension Fund and Leave Encashment Fund are provided for on the basis
of an actuarial valuation.

The additional liability on account of re-opening of pension option for existing employees who had not opted
for pension earlier as well as amendment in the 'Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’ enhancing the gratuity limit to
Rs.10 lacs as per Actuarial Valuation is amortized over a period of five years commencing from the FY 2010-11
in terms of RBI Circular DBOD No.BP.BC.80/ 21.04.018/2010-11 dated February 9, 2011.
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9.3

10.
10.1

fa=Td 01.04.2010 AT SHS q1 WAl HHaTRAT ST =Y Uem ArerT # wnfiet fHar m g |

3T U P :
AT, AT PR BT AN HR—ax| AT faferep (A0iaT /Rt 8 <1 S aTell 1Y & STER R 3fiehT 77 & |

10.2 UTH 22 — RAMT—FR IR $H G B T TUET T IR AT I & §1F H FHI AR & HRUT SR —IRerd

TR U U919 1 S fHa1 T & q1 TRl dr—aNRadl & Hay § gHdT Hedidh JAfd gfdwhd 31 & 3
P far mar 2|

e, 18

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

21

2.2

ot & Tty Rwfirf

Al & AV A IR BT FHEISH

Hud ATES H HEddh g8] Wl AN B F1ef (457 WMl & AV Hef™ /FHrre 1 gfshar =el & 2 |

JiTeiRaT @Al REIRR + SS1) § gHrT ufdftcal & Sfie—sfSe &1 RS e o sideiied FarieH H e
IR 30 H (Rt garan wfafteat enfier €) o1 28.02.2014 T fHar T 8 AR SHEGT FHEAGH SR Tt & 2 |
gl /< Sl TF / Uaad I dRe, U /< Sfde e, RSN (STd) Sfe & A1 WIal &1 FArIS &l
P TA BT B |

TdEH B I H, AH—BIW @I g JAT—U3 W S3h URT 1.1 1.3 BT Y919 IS PIS & 1 0GB |

IR Red 96 & faen—fcell & 31wy 30.9.2013 &1 @) T T2HT 31.3.2014 B IHIAT AR & WAl DI A4
AT ST TfAfEAl 1 ST AT B HT B d& gI}7 fHa1 711 2 s uRumaeaey @@ Nl 3 | sfae a1 s=1
ool A ot ST 9y B | we HEEl 9 At @l sy &1 ae 9M ufaftedl & Heg § grau fey g g |

JTeIRaT WAy § gt ST 99 T8 ®, Sl UTaeTT &I el Tal © |

SR ARG WMl &1 ot (aet ST B fa1d 31 A9 1996 B RAT & 316U w. 3.69 TS (Uwel a¥ . 348
HRI) DI 3fa%wg ARg! fafde SR @rdl # faRd &= faar a1 8 | v 9 %, 1.77 TR BT 14.11.1989 B! 3@fdy &
U & 981 Jod W form war 21 01 3B 1996 & UTAT B 1Al & forg 3 aui & e ¥G THIAT . 4.63 TRIS DI
RN (GF a9 . 3.99 HRIS) Bl JFHANTT Hfafeai I renT ax I 3rardl w1 (AR |Wid # X T § |

fai® 31032014 @1 RIfT & IFAR ©.347 IS P! AKED AN I 5 bl P FukEdl & Gdg d s
JMoaREATd ar+ft T B9 9 2 | (el a¥ 7 R 15.18 FRie &1 o)

Tufdael o1 gascenae

99 & IRF 9 7 WdF AT 9 G FaRS! & Jeried Rurd & SR W e gk, fora# i 9 o= i &,
® . 916.80 HRIS BT JAHADH HaAT & ST {5 82.37 HRIg @l vawt # & RrafeilRad Hew 6. 62.27 HRre) TRUMARaSY
854.53 TR BT FLA IR g MRTAT BT e TR gieaiad Rad &f sfee gy m |

3. goft:

226

A 99 B IR AT AEATSIAR fAf—AT & SR IR IS / THATH H Aaead G U R & d18, 9 o
.10/, d@Tel IR & 2,12,63,023 SATC! IRT BT 37T IR TSR B . 47.03 U YR & AR MHAM TR &
w0 ¥ ar7dfed fhy | degaR 9@ @1 $faad! IR Yol ©.21.26 RIS U T¢I MR 319 T8 $.275.28 HIIS &1 73 AR IR
TRM %.78.52 HRIS I 9aHR (U1 IR NATH 5.78.74 TRIS €T IR ORI T %.0.22 HRIS) 9.703.98 BRI & AT
2l

(BT BRrS H)
7 2013-14 2012-13
() |4 3R ¢ &R feaR—1 goit (arrei—lI) 8.10% 8.38%
(i) <0 3R U aIR feaz—I1 goit (%) @r&e— 1) 4.00% 4.53%
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The Employees joining on or after 01.04.2010 are being covered under the New Pension Scheme.

Taxes on Income

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid considering the applicable tax rates and
favorable judicial pronouncement/ legal opinions.

In accordance with AS-22 Deferred Tax comprising of tax effect of timing differences between taxable and
accounting income for the period, is recognized keeping in view the consideration of prudence in respect of
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

SCHEDULE 18

1.1
1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Balancing of Books and Reconciliation.

In certain Branches, the balancing / reconciliation of control accounts with subsidiary ledgers is in progress.
Initial matching of debit and credit outstanding entries in Inter Branch Account (IBR+ DD) Adjustments (including
old outstanding entries) has been done up to 28.02.2014.and reconciliation is in progress.

Reconciliation of Drafts / TT payable, Dividend Warrants paid / payable, Debit Note Receivable/ Payable, NEFT/
RTGS (Suspense) etc. is in progress. Provisions have been made as per RBI norms.

In the opinion of the management, the impact of the above Para 1.1 to 1.3, if any, on the Profit & Loss Account
and Balance Sheet though not quantifiable, will not be material.

In terms of Reserve Bank of India guidelines, segregation of Debit and Credit entries in Inter Branch Accounts
pertaining to the period up to 30.09.2013 and remaining outstanding as on 31.03.2014 has been done which
has resulted in either net debit in some heads or net credit in other heads. Provision is to be made in respect
of Net Debit entries outstanding for the period exceeding six months.

In Inter Branch Account there is net credit balance hence no provision is required to be made.

Aggregate net credit position in respect of un-reconciled NOSTRO Accounts relating to the period up to 31st
March 1996 amounting to Rs.3.69 crore (previous year Rs 3.48 crore) has been transferred to Blocked Nostro
Sundry Creditors Account out of which Rs1.77 crore for period prior to 14.11.1989 is being carried at old book
value. Un-reconciled credit entries for the period after 1st April 1996 remaining outstanding for more than
3 years amounting to Rs.4.63 crore (previous year Rs.3.99 crore) have been segregated and kept in Blocked
Unclaimed Nostro New Account.

Legal formalities are yet to be completed in respect of five Bank’s properties having original cost of Rs.3.47
crore as on 31.03.2014 (Previous year 7 properties costing Rs.15.18 crore).

Revaluation of properties

During the year, Bank has revalued its premises comprising of land and building at Rs.916.80 crore against cost
of Rs.82.37 crore (WDV of Rs.62.27 crore) on the basis of valuation report of independent qualified external
valuers. Consequently, an incremental amount of Rs.854.53 crore has been debited to Fixed Assets and credited
to Revaluation Reserve.

Capital

During the year, Bank has issued 2,12,63,023 Equity Shares of Rs.10/ each to Government of India by way of
Preferential Issue at a price of Rs.47.03 per share determined as per SEBI ICDR Regulation after taking necessary
approval from RBI/ MOF. Accordingly the Equity Share Capital of the Bank has increased by Rs.21.26 crore to
Rs.275.28 crore and Share Premium has increased by Rs.78.52 crore (Share Premium Received Rs.78.74 crore
minus Share Issue Expenses Rs.0.22 crore) to Rs.703.98 crore.

(Rupees. in crore)

Items 2013-14 2012-13
(i) | CRAR - Tier | capital (Basel-Il) 8.10% 8.38%
(i) | CRAR - Tier Il capital (Basel-ll) 4.00% 4.53%
(iii) | Total CRAR (Basel-Il) 12.10% 12.91%
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(iii) H gl 3R T 3R (a'r\qa_ ||) 12.10% 12.91%
(iv) |\ gfaad) fear—I goft ergurd (arrei—111) 7.21% SRS
V) | arfeRee fear—I ol argurd (Srrer—I11) 0.34% SRS
Vi) |9 IR T SR—feaR—1 Yol ergurd (st 111) 7.62% SRS
(viD) | <Y TR ¢ SIR—feeR—11 Yot srgura (et 111) 3.42% SIEE!
(Vi) | ot TS SFUTA(RNSIRTSIR) (srrei—111 ) 11.04% SRS
V) | 9RA IRBR & IVRGRGI o) gfoeraar 81.42% 79.86%
(vi) | srfaRad sfaadt q\;ﬁ GaRIEdd 100 140
viD) | arfaRaq fear—1 goi rgura @ wifdr s | Nl T
o
JTSiEars :
(vii) | aifaRed feam—11 do erguma @t Al forad & or §on foraa femr NGl NG
IR Gl forad STl woi it eeR (i ee) /ufoea TR—<arft
AT TRR RIRTAIMNA.GH.) / Tfcred e QeR(RR I )
* 7852 IS wUY IR W Afed
4, Ty
4.1 frdeit = Fer
®. IS H)
q’é 2013-14 2012-13
(M | @) |fFrae &1 Fhet qea
(@ |9raH 28346.61 | 22590.24
(b) |9RT ¥ 9=R Nl Mgl
(i) |eeTe =g weau™ (TIdLY. drae wfed)
@) |I=a# 52.50 47.76
(b) |9 ¥ aTeR = =
(iii) |fyasi &1 g o
(@ |9rq # 28294.11 |22542.48
(b) |9 ¥ aTeR = =
(2) |fyaen § qoueT @ wEuEi § ge—9¢ (TIUIN. @ WeuEl |fed)
(i) |arer 3w 47.76 93.32
(i) |5 a9 & SR Py g grau™ 17.97 17.15
(iii) | =er 9§ & SR A by graeri @1 g Wrd § Sl / geRidb 13.23 62.71
(iv) | 99 52.50 47.76
42 G TRIE/YA: AfRaiid oFee @i e @1 Tl W)
421 G T@RIG/YH: Hfaafia oed dfaftedl (FRarT wfoforn)

(5. BRTS )
faazor GdH BTl Jfrpad geaT | IS 3T 9HTAT | 31.03.2014 BT AN
U RIS & Sfauid o= M8 wfafodt 225,00 694.00 176.89 380.00
g+ yfaafid & siaid @Rid) T8 affor 75.00 275.00 1.71 NGl
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(iv) | Common Equity Tier | capital ratio (Basel-IlI) 7.27% NA
(v) | Additional Tier I capital ratio (AT-I) (Basel-Ill) 0.34% NA
(vi) | CRAR - Tier | capital ratio (Basel-Ill) 7.62% NA
(vii) | CRAR - Tier Il capital ratio (Basel-IIl) 3.42% NA
(viii) | Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (Basel-III) 11.04% NA
(ix) | Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India 81.42% 79.86%
(x) | Amount of equity capital raised* 100 140
(xi) | Amount of Additional Tier | capital raised of which Nil Nil

PNCPS:

IPDI:
(xii) | Amount of Tier Il capital raised of which Debt capital instrument: Nil Nil

Preference Share Capital Instruments: [Perpetual Cumulative Preference

Share (PCPS) / Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) /

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)]

* Including Share Premium Rs. 78.52 crores
4. Investments

Value of Investments

(Rupees in crore)

Items 2013-14 2012-13
(1) (i) |Gross Value of Investments
(@ |In India 28346.61 | 22590.24
(b) [Outside India Nil Nil
(i) |Provisions for Depreciation (including provision for NPA)
(@ |In India 52.50 47.76
(b) |Outside India Nil Nil
(iii) [Net Value of Investments
@ [In India 28294.11 [22542.48
(b) |Outside India Nil Nil
(2) |Movement of provision held towards depreciation on Investments (Including
provision for NPAs)
(i) |Opening balance 47.76 93.32
(ii) |Add: Provisions made during the year 17.97 17.15
(iii) |Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the year 13.23 62.71
(iv) | Closing balance 52.50 47.76

4.2 Repo / Reverse Repo Transactions (in face value terms)
4.2.1 Repo / Reverse Repo Transactions (Government Securities)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily Average Balance as on
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding 31.03.2014
Securities sold under Repos 225.00 694.00 176.89 380.00
Securities purchased under Reverse 75 00 275.00 1.71 Nil
Repos
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4.2.2 gar: Witege: uftaffa deeer ufdfiea’ (wud swor uftrgfareit)

(& PIS H)
faavor gAAdH qH1AT Jferpad gbrar HECIEIGT 3T oY
dorar 31.03.2013
I TS & S o w8 wferyferat = = = Nl

4.3 TS us. grewe wref arae) o e gar sedter Rod & oF gaar o o 75 W g ufdr
2013—14 | 2012—13
ey @ wfcnyfarl &1 JMTasIadT & BRI TH.SIL.T. SR HIH arql &l G I IR
TR Rod 9 &1 e 31 T8 g8 D AR T Nl Nl

4.4 dre-fafée Teaar stequTd aTey forder gEt: 31.03.2014 o wdieat Gorad o fRafa:

(5., BS H)
RikeIll SR ®af afr froft s | e ds 9@ | sreifea SRR
H A | wRegRreer @ | gRegReat @ | ket @
Rkl Raikill Rkl
(1) @) @) @) () () )
I SIS SUHH 2485.65 2429.70 I 2144.50 2144.50
i. i e 2325.12 2318.74 = = I
ii.  |§ 1200.15 142.03 = = I
vt . 619.19 564.27 I 46.13 1.03
V. eI / GYddd SUshH 0.65 0.65 R N I
vi. = 21.37 415 T = I
Vil | qeTE & fog @ wauE 51.65 T T I
(SEEINSITES)
FA* 6600.48 I
e *Pia¥ 3 BT Wils gai—Ua 3 YA 8 &1 fr-ifafaa Afr—Y & St 9 o @ arfzy -
. IR
g fedax 9 9fvs
T, AESD /AYdd SUDH
k2 T |
(2) SWRIad BicH 4,5,6 9T 7 H RUId &1 18 AR WRER 3= 7 &8 |
4.5 srguetey 3ite de-aifafee aeaar sigurd fordeit i Iar-gsa
(5., BS H)
faawor 2013—14 2012—13
31T 9y 25.03 25.03
94 & IR gRaE= 34.01 I
¥ & IR BHelfadf I I
gfa oy 59.04 25.03
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4.2.2 Repo / Reverse Repo Transactions (Corporate Debt Securities)
Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily Average Balance as on
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding 31.03.2014

Securities sold under Repos Nil Nil Nil Nil

Securities purchased under Reverse
Repos

Nil Nil Nil Nil

4.3 Detail of bouncing of SGL Transfer Forms and Quantum of Penalty paid to Reserve Bank of India :

2013-14 2012-13
i. Number of instances when the SGL transfer form bounced for Nil Nil
want of either funds or the securities.
ii. Penalty paid to RBI on account of bouncing of SGL transfer form Nil Nil

4.4 Non-SLR Investments Portfolio: Issuer Composition as on 31.03.2014
(Rupees in crore)

No Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of 'Below Extent of Extent of
Private Investment Grade’ 'Un-rated’ 'Unlisted’
Placement Securities Securities Securities
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
i PSUs 2485.65 2429.70 Nil 2144.50 2144.50
ii. |Fls 2325.12 2318.74 Nil Nil Nil
iii. | Banks 1200.15 142.03 Nil Nil Nil
iv. | Private Corporate 619.19 564.27 46.13 1.03
v. | Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures 0.65 0.65 Nil Nil Nil
vi. | Others 21.37 4.15 Nil Nil Nil
vii. | Provision held towards
depreciation (including NPA) 51.65
Total * 6600.48

Note: (1) * Total under column 3 should tally with the total of Investments included under the following categories
in Schedule 8 to the balance sheet:

a) Shares

b) Debentures & Bonds

¢) Subsidiaries / joint ventures

d) Others

(2) Amounts reported under column 4, 5, 6 and 7 above may not be mutually exclusive.

4.5 Movement of Non Performing Non SLR Investments
(Rupees in crore)

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Opening balance 25.03 25.03
Additions during the year 34.01 Nil
Reductions during the year Nil Nil
Closing balance 59.04 25.03
Total Provisions held 33.45 25.03
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ECELEE | 33.45 | 25.03 |

4.6 Feafeaar

g9 2013—14 & IRM dF 1 UfReAT A1 AURS 2T F DI A1 I JURT - (AT R IV R AT
e/ faf R R Ao &R FRE) 981 6 § | JegaR IR Rod 96 @ feen-fAdell & sgaR iy oF e &
Hae # UITHS d ATHS THIHRUT AUfET 8l 2 |

4.7 o & SYere ga: WeRIAge: Sqefaa /g g forder

(5., IS H)

faa=or 2013—14 2012—13
S RA! foea gae=a-T 8 © NG NG
3FGHH MRAAT T JTER=T B4 2 I I
arened MRt RTd! GERaT B 2 NG NG
R IR DI AW D! G 841 2 NGl NGl

48 T % IRE 9F 7 057 TRIS & oUeN & SUId ‘IRYGIA d% v+ 4§ 9! g Sy s # & 895 aie (3ifara
o) @ gfeegfaat siaRa @t € den et 2q Suder vl § “uRugadt d& w@= W & ofdifd &. 1641.95 IS

3faRa g 2 |
49 ¥ & IR fRAfHAT &1 gou iR wadied gl S/ wferyfodll &1 ofarur, a9 & RW # wadied Aot # w3 g fAaer
% I8 Iod | 5% 9 31f¥d 7L ¢ |
5. anfed spurar
5.1 squetey anfdaaf (B, B H)
i 2013—14 2012—13
i) g A # g = W U (%) 3.35 2.16
(i) TTaET FAraer Jrgura (ffieR) (%) 4551 50.37
(iii) o U7 @ U # "ge—9¢
(@) 3721 ¥y 1536.90 76344
(@) a¢ & SR uRads 1619.61 1093.60
@M ad & SR FH 602.99 320.14
(@) sftr oW 2553.52 1536.90
(iv) et ¢ @ ¢ H SAR—=era
()arer 2y 1110.38 547.56
(@) 99 & TR gRae= 134555 883.50
(mad & IR FH 537.33 32068
(@) gfa o 1918.60 1110.38
) T O U yraer=l H SAR—Tgd (AFS MR R Urae & wisan)
(@) @17 AW 412,56 206.44
(@) ST 99 & SR WraEn 564.68 293.99
(M) wer: Aft {6y wraas! & 92 @ 35857 87.87
STT / quttard
@)sfa oy 618.67 412.56

5-2 1.8, LS. /AL wH.UH.3./E. LS. & U |14, SIRad 91 g9 SIRad I/ S du/agel I 7, @
31l 2 wrae= & forg afnfa & MR W faaruig AT 2T 2
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4.6 Derivatives
Bank has not entered into any derivative transactions (Interest Rate Swap/ Exchange Traded Interest Rate
Derivatives) during the year 2013-14. Accordingly, qualitative and quantitative disclosures under RBI guidelines
with respect to derivative transactions are not required.

4.7 Restructured / Rescheduled / Renegotiated - Investments during the year
(Rupees in crore)

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Standard assets subjected to restructuring etc. Nil Nil
Sub-standard assets subjected to restructuring etc. Nil Nil
Doubtful assets subjected to restructuring etc. Nil Nil
Total amount of assets subjected to restructuring etc. Nil Nil

4.8 During the year, the Bank shifted securities worth Rs...895 crore (face value) from “Held till Maturity” to
“Available for Sale Category” and worth Rs. 1641.95 crores from “Available for Sale” to “Held till Maturity”
after providing depreciation of Rs...0.57 crore .

4.9 The value of sales from HTM category during the year does not exceed 5% of the book value of investments
held in HTM category at the beginning of the year.

5. Asset Quality

5.1 Non-Performing Assets (Rupees in crore)
Items 2013-14 2012-13
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 3.35 2.16
(i) Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) (%) 45.51 50.37

(iii) Movement of Gross NPAs

(@) | Opening Balance 1536.90 763.44
(b) | Additions during the year 1619.61 1093.60
(c) | Reductions during the year 602.99 320.14
(d) | Closing balance 2553.52 1536.90

(iv) Movement of Net NPAs

(@) | Opening Balance 1110.38 547.56
(b) | Additions during the year 1345.55 883.50
(c) | Reductions during the year 537.33 320.68
(d) | Closing balance 1918.60 1110.38

v) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)

(@) | Opening Balance 412.56 206.44
(b) | Add: provisions made during the year 564.68 293.99
(c) | Less: write off, write back of excess provisions 358.57 87.87
(d) | Closing balance 618.67 412.56

5.2 DICGC/CGTMSE/ ECGC claim eligible, lodged and re-lodged have been considered as security for provisioning
on advances on the basis that such claims are valid / realizable.
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5.5 WY o1g de-foranfed farefier snfRaet & Rgeo:
%) @i MY AR—Forfea fa<ha sRaat @ faaxor -
(5. BS H)
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1. ED) 9 & IRM WS MY @1 I I
) Hel Tt L L
2, ®) ST ¥ aY & AR YIS @l I Nl
) el Tt L L
@) 99 Y A% fefea fa<fa smRaay &1 faaxor
(5., BS H)
faa=or 2012—13 2011—12
1. | 9@ T @Al o |1 I Nl
2. el dhTaT A A
3. T del fchel Ngl NE
5.6 AT TS UT UTdETer
ae 2013—14 2012—13
A MRTAT TR ATae= 352.78 341.59
3ifohd Jea # BT BG WA Geifod Hed A 70.60 61.59
6. PRIGR 3JUTd
S 2013—14 2012—13
() I e e &1 e e # wferd 9.25% 9.60%
(ii) g erRieha fAfeat &1 Ik s o 7 wfaera 0.50% 0.55%
(iii) g wrdeie et &1 aRere o # wirerd 0.93% 1.23%
(iv) iRt I 0.35% 0.44%
v) I HHANT (BT IRIS H) FRIER (STHRIRRI 31fim) 15.31 13.70
(vi) T HHAR A (FIY HRIS H ) 0.03 0.04
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5.4 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction Companies for Asset Recon-

struction
(Rupees in crore)
Items 2013-14 2012-13
(i Number of Accounts Nil 1
(i) Aggregate Value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC Nil Nil
(iii) Aggregate consideration Nil 1.30
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years Nil Nil
v) Aggregate gain/ loss over net book value Nil 1.30
5.5 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold:
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
(Rupees in crore)
Particulars 2013-14 | 2012-13
1. (@) | No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) | Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2. (@) | Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) | Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
(Rupees in crore)
Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
1. | No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. | Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. | Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
5.6 Provisions on Standard Assets
(Rupees in crore)
Item 2013-14 2012-13
Provisions towards Standard Assets 352.78 341.59
Provision for Diminution in FV Restructured Standard Advances 70.60 61.59
6. Business Ratios
Items 2013-14 2012-13
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to average working funds 9.25% 9.60%
(ii) Non-Interest Income as a percentage to average working funds 0.50% 0.55%
(iii) | Operating Profit as a percentage to average working funds 0.93% 1.23%
(iv) | Return on Assets 0.35% 0.44%
v) Business [Deposits plus Advances] per employee (Rs. in crore) 15.31 13.70
(vi) | Profit per employee (Rs. in crore) 0.03 0.04
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7. Nty Tgdar gager
31.03.2014 ®I JTRTAT 3R I BT IRUFIdT TWHU:

(. BRIS H)
IRugadr w@wq STHRTRIR FOT a1 AfAH faw SHR facef gar
(eraTafen) YA afaat
1 fes1 584.18 547.63 0.39 0.00 30.18 221.23
2—7 fa= 1547.94 1044.21 346.32 380.00 0.74 17.80
8—14 faq 2016.91 1473.68 292.94 0.00 5.08 24.86
15—28 fa= 3564.36 2270.23 480.30 0.00 12.12 50.09
20 a9 3 98 dP 11947.63 6617.49 407632 40.00 29.91 191.97
3 T8 ¥ Afdd 6 718 qBH 10739.15 3844.42 36.69 200.04 32.33 73.03
% 2774545 7320.15 899.81 0.00 94.68 0.00
1 99 ¥ 1fde 3 99 do 13121.22 14495.39 2417.71 150.00 92.77 0.00
3 99 9 3ffS® 5 a¥ dB 4321.80 9011.54 5874.52 100.00 8.70 0.00
5 99 9 31ferd 914152 10614.63 13869.11 1435.00 0.00 0.00
HA 84730.17 57239.07 28294.11 2305.04 306.51 578.98
8. SROT wifegar
8.1 aredfde Huer o B skor wifigar
(. BRIS H)
fofy 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013
1. ety
) Reradt dee
i. V) FURRIT RS9 IR K0 BT Heoll § AT fHvRy R <1 TS BV BT AT AT FT SUD 2795.19 2360.33
R quid: gRfEa 21
ii. GRHI ST 0 S 6 wrerear &3 oy & afaford s a € 2247.01 1917.11
Q) ARG IS FUaT
i) TS IS HUST IR Sedh GIRT GRIET Fl (Hrafer, sia-, Sgamar 2941.87 251559
ATaRS IRER, 98 URIR JARIY A9, ATHRIG IRER STl 980 4 fRRIER
e B, Menfires "I A1 "eme I, Bied, A 3rturevr, faema qer fmfor
anfe) VY sur el # AR SmenRe (UH.9w. ) & T 1 enfiet € |
M Sy aforiferat # fafainT wavdiveag @R o= ST o Ny N
P. RERT? NSl NSl
g T Y- HUT I I
2. JITET FUT T MM (TH.TA.41.) 3R 3mary fad dares (Ve vw.3.) &1 fAfYy v *2342.72' 2805.75
MR- amenRa o)
qrEIfad HuaT &5 § | F 0 AHiEr 8079.67 7681.67
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7. Asset Liability Management
Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities as on 31.03.2014: (Rupees in crore)
Maturity Pattern Deposits Loans & Investments Borrowings Foreign Currency
(Time Buckets) Advances TRTOT

Liabilities Assets
1 day 584.18 547.63 0.39 0.00 30.18|  221.23
2 — 7 days 1547.94 1044.21 346.32 380.00 0.74 17.80
8 — 14 days 2016.91 1473.68 292.94 0.00 5.08 24.86
15 - 28 days 3564.36 2270.23 480.30 0.00 12.12 50.09
29 days to 3 months 11947.63 6617.49 4076.32 40.00 29.91| 191.97
Over 3 months & up to 10739.15 | 3844.42 36.69 200.04 32.33 73.03
6 months
Over 6 months & up to 2774545| 732015 899.81 0.00 94.68 0.00
1 year
Over 1 year & up to 3 13121.22 |  14495.39 2417.71 150.00 92.77 0.00
years
Over 3 years & up to 5 4321.80 9011.54 5874.52 100.00 8.70 0.00
years
Over 5 years 9141.52| 10614.63 13869.11 1435.00 0.00 0.00
Total 84730.17| 57239.07 28294.11 2305.04 306.51| 578.98

8. Exposures :

8.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(Rupees in crore)
Category 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013

1) Direct Exposure

(@) | Residential Mortgages

i Lending fully secured by mortgages of residential property that is or will 2795.19 2360.33
be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

ii. Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector 2247.01 1917.11
advances

(b) | Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages of commercial real estates (office 2941.87 2515.59
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily
residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc) Exposure would also include non fund based (NFB)

limits;
() | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized NIL NIL
exposures
a. Residential Nil NIL
b. Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil
2) Indirect Exposure * 2342.72 2805.75

[Fund based and Non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)

and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)]
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 8079.67 7681.67

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14 239



ﬂ v ws e o

"TACIE] dAT SR BIgTa dufal d fHU 1Y w®. 329.69 HRIs & A9 IfAa 2 |

8.2 Yot STeITe 3 sRoT sTefiariRaT (TredTere)

(| IS #H)

£

31.03.2014

31.03.2013

Sl TR, URad-a 10, gRad=1a Fu—g3T q21l 3fdad] Sd RIg3rel HUel &
Ffet # fadwr e 9ot wu & v Font # fafeanr 78 fosar war

152.58

159.93

AT 3Fer (31TE. U130 .S T3 9. u¥) IRac-1a §10s, uRad+Id Fo—u=i a2 gfdact
I NI Wl # fafamr & forg sfe /st /wor u= A o= ufoferi & gaw
# Thd @Al & feu e i

1.20

0.02

el o= Sew =g e wan fim Siet ofer ar gRad- ol a1 uRadsa o1 o= a1
sfaad S =g wet & Wmafis uferfar & wu # forar wam @

0.01

0.01

3fel &1 HurRde ufoRifa am gRad-ia arust a1 gRad=g o1 g3 a1 sfaad] S
A BUST gRT TATT 3 Iel 7g fau g 1w srifd Sief w afel / aRad-a
e} / aRTIHAT Fu—S1 / 3 S=E RIgerd Busi W Ay Y el a1 mfie
aferifr gRT quf U | gamd w8l fhar

TP SIHR DT STHT § IR—STAT 3MUH TAT T ShRI 3NR ATfbe Hh gIRT STy
ge

52.32

5 HHE 3 33T TG BUSH UHIT IR B ol ToT Faadhl & G B Y
IR & forg i ol / qust /For g a1 o= ufoniferdt A fder omuR R Fufar &
I Rl

£

£

TR Sidac] Sueterdr / fial R Sl & ®Re Ful

TreIf¥es 3fEll AT U1 qT0] AT URac-d 0T U3l A7 fdae] S-d RIard oSl &
Haer # Il gRT By EHERT arre

A+ A&l 8g TCId Fia™l ®1 fear ma fad

4 44

4 44

10.

goll fAferat o= eor SiRew (dofigra a2 arduiisd)

N
o
)]

w
B
N

gofl ek § @ ®0T Rl

163.41

215.99

8.3 wiiflgar Avftare B¢ wretIoe

SR AMUR R §F g1 fAeeh faf9a oed & ey 3 g 1 fad o1 S 93s < 9 94fed &, 96 @ dd il
D 1% D IR B | A ARA Rod 8 & Re—F<engaR 5 7R & graer™ &1 sawadal e © |

8.4 §& FIer UTR I IS UG TS AT (THONT®), THE IaTe) o (chiefies) o srer

99 & AR §F RT 9¢18 T8 Udhel SUNI WA (TH S Udl) 998 SuR W1 (Ghdlye) & faavor af 2013—14 &

IRM §F 7 IR R9d 96 gRT Udhd SUR) &8 SuN =g FuiRd fadeyut o i &1 urR - 21 fhar & Ram fae
AHA & T W a1 BT FFAGH U< PR forar T 8 |

(B, BIS H)
HH. SafRal & ™ s @ <RM Afpaw | fiAie @ IR 31.03.2014 ®I FUT
o7 T FoT SIRa(%) For A1/ 3garg SRa; %)
1. ERRID IR IEN 2T %.1501.63 BRI 23.90% f31% 26. 1501.63 24.03
HARTA fo. 07.2013 & IJAR
NS
240 gifi¥e R 2013-14



8.2

8.3

8.4

Punjab & Sind Bank e

* includes Rs.329.69 crore by way of Investment in NHB & Housing Finance Companies. et
Exposure to Capital Market

(Rupees in crore)
ltems 31.03.2014 |31.03.2013

1. | Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of 152.58 159.93
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

2. | Advances against shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ 1.20 0.02
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds;

3. | Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are 0.01 0.01
taken as primary security;

4. | Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or Nil Nil
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares/ convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/ units of
equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

5. | Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers 5.47 52.32

6 | Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/ bonds/ Nil Nil
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising

resources;
7. | Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/ issues; Nil Nil
8. | Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary Nil Nil

issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds;

9. | Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil Nil

10. | All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and 4.15 3.71
unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market 163.41 215.99

Risk Category wise Country Exposure
The net country-wise funded exposure of the Bank in respect of Foreign Exchange Transactions in respect of
each country is within 1% of the total assets of the Bank. Hence, no provision is required as per RBI guidelines.

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank
During the year 2013-14, the Bank has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits set by RBI to single borrower/

group borrower, except in the following case, which has been approved by the Board: (Rupees in crore)
SI. Name of the Borrower Maximum Limit Exposure (%) Limit / Liability Exposure (%)
No. during the year as on as on 31.03.14
1. M/s UP Power Corpn. Ltd. | TL 23.90% as on 1501.63 24.03
Rs.1501.63 crs 26.07.2013
NIL
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8.5 Unsecured Advances against Intangible Collaterals
(Rs. in crore)

Particulars As on 31.03.2014 As on 31.03.2013

Total Advances against intangible securities such as charge over the 455.37 188.57
rights, licenses, authority etc

Estimated Value of intangible collateral such as charge over the 455.37 176.21
rights, licenses, authority etc.

9.1 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by Reserve Bank of India

(Rs. in crore)
2013-14 2012-13
A. Penalty imposed by RBI on Bank 2.5 Nil
B. Strictures or Directions by RBI on the basis of adverse findings Nil Nil

9.2 Disclosure of Fees/ Remuneration Received in respect of Bancassurance Business
(Rs. In crore)

2013-14 2012-13
A. Fee/ Remuneration from Life Insurance Business 1.19 2.87
B. Fee/ Remuneration from General Insurance Business 0.0042 2.21
C. UTI Mutual Fund Business NIL 0.0005

10 Disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS)
10.1 AS-5 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

10.1.1 There are no material prior period items included in Profit & Loss Account required to be disclosed as per
AS-5 read with RBI guidelines except those disclosed elsewhere in the notes.

10.2 AS-6 Depreciation Accounting

Break-up of total depreciation for each class of assets
(Rs. In crore)

Class of Assets 2013-14 2012-13
Premises 27.88 25.21
Other Fixed Assets 32.45 24.48
Total 60.33 49.69

10.3 AS-9 Revenue Recognition

10.3.1  Certain items of income are recognized on realization basis as disclosed at point no. 8 — “Revenue
Recognition” of Schedule 17 — Significant Accounting Policies. However, in terms of RBI guidelines, the
said income is not considered to be material.

10.4 AS 15 - Employees Benefit

10.4.1  Provisions for Pension, Gratuity, Leave Encashment and Other long term benefits have been made in accordance
with the Revised Accounting Standard (AS - 15) issued by the ICAI. However, the additional liability towards
re-opening of pension option and amendment in the Gratuity Act, 1972 has been dealt in accordance with
the provisions contained in Reserve Bank of India circular no. DBOD.BP.BC.80/21.04.018/2010-11) dated
9th February 2011 on Re-opening of Pension Option to Employees of Public Sector Banks and Enhancement
in Gratuity Limit. Accordingly the Bank has amortized Rs. 146.12 Crores on account of Pension and Rs.
26.57 Crores on account of Gratuity. The balance amount carried forward on account of Pension Rs. 146.12

Crores and Rs. 26.57 Crores shall be carried forward to be amortized in next year i.e 2014-15.
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Gl & 26.57 HRIS, . DI MM dY 2014—15 H GRAMEIT PR T MG |
10.4.2 SrH-gIfer WY TAT JOT-UF 3 Fewar UTw Friwreare ol o efdra Rafy Reemeene :
104.3 arerarsit & adare ger F uRada

(. IS #)
faa=or vye (fere) F=gd (o) gl Ao (Fifee)
2013—14 2012—13 | 2013—14 | 2012—13 | 2013—14 2012—13
feEiRa e arearar &1 1 38 B o 2419.87 2318.41 389.20 43845 185.78 182.80
TSl AT 209.92 179.91 31.15 3248 15.05 13.55
A AT AT 211.77 252.21 14.17 8.75 25.52 30.70
EEGASIE (174.73) (139.10) (85.78) (64.81) (37.04) (26.77)
IrRIAT R gHIfGS BT/ (T4) (173.50) (191.56) (64.37) (25.85) (23.60) (14.50)
fIiRa o areaar &1 31 919 1 I 2493.33 2419.87 (284.19) 389.02 165.71 185.78
10.4.4 TNTaTord AfTdT & adara Feor F uRade
(& s W)
faaxor dyH (Ffere) d=gd (Mfore) BEl ThaIbRuT
(Frfern)
2013—14 2012—13 2013—14|  2012—13|  2013—14 2012—13
AT ARG BT 1 3 B oI 2007.30 1803.30 336.01 337.68 188.95 187.89
AT MR ¥ e Aferemss 180.66 162.30 30.24 3174 17.01 18.51
vt sfere™ 290.39 180.21 16.64 34.63 = 10.05
Y U&<T o4 (174.73) (139.10) (85.78) (64.81) (37.04) (26.77)
dHifes Tl / (@) 9.57 0.59 (3.03) (3.23) (2.85) (0.73)
ASTANTd R BT 31 7d B AT o 2313.19 2007.30 294.08 336.01 171.77 188.95
ATSTHANTS MRTAT W RIS Ufererr 190.23 162.89 27.21 28.51 19.86 17.78
10.4.5 35 Stanfde aifer (o)
(& s W)
UM (ffers) F=gd (ftre) GBI Abal
faraor (Frfern)
2013—14 | 2012—13 | 2013—14 | 2012—13 | 2013—14 | 2012—13
qifdbd BT+ / (A14) <RI (T) (173.50) (191.56) (64.37) (25.85) (23.60) (14.50)
A MR WR () JeAifhaal / (ofT) (9.57) (0.59) (3.03) (3.23) (2.85) (0.73)
€ i BT / (1) (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) (26.45) (13.77)
Ay & IRM TgAH B TE T/ (@1) (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) (26.45) (13.77)
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10.4.2 The summarized position of post employment benefits are recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c and
Balance Sheet as under:
10.4.3 Changes in the Present value of the Obligation
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (funded)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Present Value of defined benefit 2419.87 2318.41 389.02 438.45 185.78 182.80
obligation as at 1st April
Interest cost 209.92 179.91 31.15 32.48 15.05 13.55
Current service cost 211.77 252.21 14.17 8.75 25.52 30.70
Benefits paid (174.73) (139.10) (85.78) (64.81) (37.04) (26.77)
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligations (173.50) (191.56) (64.37) (25.85) (23.60) (14.50)
Present value of defined Benefit 2493.33 2419.87 (284.19) 389.02 165.71 185.78
obligation at 31st March

10.4.4 Changes in the Present Value of Plan Assets

(Rs. in crore)

Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
Particulars (funded)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 | 2012-13
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Tst 2007.30 1803.30 336.01 337.68 188.95 187.89
April
Expected return of Plan Assets 180.66 162.30 30.24 31.74 17.01 18.51
Employer contribution 290.39 180.21 16.64 34.63 Nil 10.05
Benefits paid (174.73) (139.10) (85.78) (64.81) (37.04) (26.77)
Actuarial (loss)/ gain 9.57 0.59 (3.03) (3.23) 2.85 (0.73)
Fair value of Plan Assets as at 31st 2313.19 2007.30 294.08 336.01 171.77 188.95
March
Actual return on Plan Assets 190.23 162.89 27.21 28.51 19.86 17.78

10.4.5 Net Actuarial Loss/ (Gain)

(Rs. in crore)

Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
Particulars (funded)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligation. (173.50) (191.56) (64.37) (25.85) (23.60) (14.50)
(A)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Plan Assets. (9.57) (0.59) 3.03 3.23 (2.85) 0.73
(B)
Net Actuarial loss/(gain) (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) (26.45) (13.77)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) (26.45) (13.77)
the period
Unrecognized actuarial loss/ (Gain) | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
at the end of the year
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Yy & 3fd H 91 ygd drell eifbd 81+ / () I N IR I I IR
104.6 goaus 3 ggaTel o1 AR
(5. TS H)
faaxor e (i) F=gd (fvre) BT Adhal (fftre)
2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
31 A9 &1 UIRHTIRT o 2493.33 2419.87 284.19 389.02 165.71 185.78
AT BT GAHH A
e : 31 A/ B @ 2313.19 2007.30 294.08 336.01 171.77 188.95
Rl &1 I o
JeI—uF | ugEE 1 T8 IR (180.14) (412557) 9.89 (53.01) 6.06 317
faf gg e /<aan
10.4.7 &ror g FIfer WTd 3 @it 9t ugTTer
(5. BRI #)
faa=or vy (fAfers) J=gdr (o) IraH1eT Abal (Ffere)
2013—14 2012—13 | 2013—14 | 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
1], |dT AT 21177 25221 14.17 875 25.52 30.70
TS NI 209.92 179.90 31.15 3248 15.05 13.55
T SR TR AT Red (180.66) (162.30) (30.24) (31.74) 17.01 (18.51)
Y & IR Y§ ol () BT (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) 26.45 (13.77)
g A I 57.96 77.67 46.26 13.13 2.89 11.97
10.4.8 goa-usr & ugaTel o AT F IATR-TGIT (®. IS H)
faaxor g (friere) A (FfEr) a1l Awal (Fifers)
2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
IR g <aar/ MRt 41257 515.11 53.01 100.77 (3.17) (5.09)
g Y Y 57.96 7767 46.26 (13.13) (2.89) 11.97
ge —faam mar s 290.39 180.21 16.64 34.63 = 10.05
e <ar / et 180.14 41257 9.89 53.01 (6.06) (3.17)
10.4.9 <ITe gRT e ek aror ferder ufdera
(fcrera #)
faazor v (i) F=gd (Afere) JqHIe Awhal (Ffere)
2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
P WRBR DI afferdm 18.31 21.04 3.40 3.18 I Nl
5T WHR o1 wferfarat 37.68 35.35 - N =T
Iod TR HRURE qIUS 36.02 37.97 33.94 39.61 N Nl
[ENERCEIDISEIIY - . - N N
3= fay 7.99 5.64 62.66 57.21 100 100
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10.4.6 Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
( Rs. in crore)
. Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (funded)
Particulars

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Present value of defined benefit 2493.33 | 2419.87 284.19 389.02 165.71 185.78
obligation as at 31st March
Less: Fair value of Plan Assets as at 2313.19| 2007.30 294.08 336.01 171.77 188.95
31st March
Unfunded net Asset / (Liability) (180.14) (412.57) 9.89 (53.01) 6.06 3.17
Recognized in the balance sheet

10.4.7 Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Account
(Rs. in crore)
Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Funded)
Particulars
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

Current service cost 211.77 252.21 14.17 8.75 25.52 30.70
Interest cost 209.92 179.90 31.15 32.48 15.05 13.55
Expected return on plan assets (180.66) (162.30) (30.24) (31.74) (17.01) (18.51)
Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized (183.07) (192.15) (61.34) (22.62) (26.45) (13.77)
during the year
Net benefit/ expense 57.96 77.67 (46.26) (13.13) (2.89) 11.97

10.4.8 Movements in the liability recognized in the Balance Sheet
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Funded)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Opening net Liability/(Asset) 412.57 515.11 53.01 100.77 (3.17) (5.09)
Net benefit expense 57.96 77.67 (46.26) (13.13) (2.89) 11.97
Less: Contribution paid 290.39 180.21 16.64 34.63 NIL 10.05
Closing liability/(Asset) 180.14 41257 (9.89) 53.01 (6.06) (3.17)
10.4.9 Investment percentage maintained by the trust
(in %age)
Particulars Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Funded)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Central Government Securities 18.31 21.04 3.40 3.18 Nil Nil
State Government Securities 37.68 35.35 — | - Nil Nil
High quality corporate bonds 36.02 37.97 33.94 39.61 Nil Nil
Special Deposit Scheme e — | — Nil Nil
Other investments 7.99 5.64 62.66 57.21 100 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

247



ﬂ v ws e o

10.4.10 goa-uw 3t fafd o go Saifdes gearae

(wifcrere #)
faaxor vy (Frfera) A () a1 Abal (Fifere)
2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
EETCH 9.00 8.00 9.00 8.00 9.00 8.00
T SR TR AT ofTH 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.40 9.00 9.85
=
g7+ # gfg B ) 5.00 5.50 5.00 5.50 5.00 5.50
3R R 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
AT H g T el EEil EESil RIS RIS KA RIS
10.4.11 Stifde Aeaiaa I arare
faavor DT BT AR
EEUCH AT $ AT YR W BRI diel B 2! $ 0T Joid—97 DI (A IR TR & Tgw
M & HeH W 98l IR B R fhar w2
A SRIT IR SFAIT &% | Haferd <aar ol yuf fafey gq rdiy & TR & GHY UR W RTAT R AT e dTolR
STATT TR 3R 7 |
g7+ # ghg B ) i Jedid- # Aasy H I+ gl $1 &9 H @ 7T T2AT J&T YHRY IR, Wi a2
311 Haferd "ea! R g faar war 2 |
3T R 3T SR BT (AufROT qd @I gt wiawd & o/gWa @ gaR AuiRa fawam war € aen 9
B BISHY U THET THR & e Gigfard & ife- sad uirdr sre oY anfie 2|

10.4.12 31 G 31afer arey BTy o (Sre-faife)

(5. B3I #)
TRl / Tergwhe fcar qaelt 999 a1 fgfa SR
fravor THATBRT Afswme ama

2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13
EOCICIERLIG] 12.25 11.74 0.37 0.32 0.49 0.47 1.08 1.25
Al
TRAH T T T T T T T T T
ay & SRHEUEAM T T T T T T T T
TS IR T
g 7 Bl g T T T3 T T3 T N NSl
IR ST
JorI—u & 12.25 11.74 0.37 0.32 0.49 0.47 1.08 1.25
YEAI TE QAT
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10.4.10  Principal Actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date
(in%age)
Pension (Funded) Gratuity (Funded) (Leave Encashment funded)
Particulars
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Discount rate 9.00 8.00 9.00 8.00 9.00 8.00
Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.40 9.00 9.85
Rate of escalation in salary 5.00 5.50 5.00 5.50 5.00 5.50
Attrition rate 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Method used PUC PUC PUC PUC PUC PUC

10.4.11 Basis of Actuarial Assumptions considered

Particulars

Basis of assumption

Discount rate

Discount rate has been determined by reference to market yield on
the balance sheet date on Government Bonds of term consistent with
estimated term of the obligation.

Expected rate of

return on plan assets

The expected return on Plan assets is based on market expectation, at
the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life of the related
obligation.

salary

Rate of escalation in

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion, and other relevant factor,
such as supply and demand in employee market.

Attrition rate

Attrition rate has been determined by reference to past and expected
future experience and includes all type of withdrawals other than death
but including those due to disability.

10.4.12 Other long term employee benefit (Non funded)

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars LTC/LFC Silver jubilee Bonus Medical Benefits * Retirement Gifts
Encashment *
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Present Value of 12.25 11.74 0.37 0.32 0.49 0.47 1.08 1.25
Obligation
Transitional Liability NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL Nil NIL
Transitional liability NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
recognized during the
year
Unrecognized NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
transitional liability
Liability recognized in 12.25 11.74 0.37 0.32 0.49 0.47 1.08 1.25
the Balance Sheet

* As assessed by the management
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faaxor AT 93 31.03.2014 (oh@T Uifara) AT T8 31.03.2013 (@
gifera)

1.QUE oG
B, ISTHY 200556 164221
9, BIURS /T Sfpi 476456 460851
. Hear dfebT 162868 150148
. 3T T uRare 119 508
Byl 839999 775728
2. @ gRum
P, SADIY 1429 592
T HUNS /FHY SfbT 83591 107577
. ear dfdT 28575 35049
. 3 SfpraRere 119 508
B 113714 143726
3. TRarefed = 33659 49841
4. GRATAT ATH 80055 93885
5. YTae 9 3MHRAG AT 55421 45215
6. ST —5429 14747
7. faory < /=1l
8. Y& o 30063 33923
SURRCR
9. TS MR
F. STDBIY 2884926 2293817
Y HIARE /THY ST 4841480 4290110
. Hear dfehT 1654968 1397748
g, 3= §fp gRares 0 0
. R—arafed anfkaat 69541 66115
gt Rt 9450915 8047790
10. W TIAY
B, SADIY 2746402 2168713
T BN /FHY SfbiT 4609010 4056129
. ear dfehT 1575503 1321516
g, 3= §f g 0 0
. IR—armafed anfkaar 18872 41022
Gt Rt 8949787 7587380

Ale: A9 UOE—17 T7 9RAg Red 98 gR1 FeiRa Ren—fdel & ogeu Ts RUfén & S5eed 9 §6 & a9 &l
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10.5 AS 17 — Segment Reporting )
Part A : Business Segment :
Particulars Year ended
31.03.14 31.03.13
1. Segment Revenue
a) Treasury 200556 164221
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 476456 460851
¢) Retail Banking 162868 150148
d) Other Banking Operations 119 508
Total 839999 775728
2. Segment Result
a) Treasury 1429 592
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 83591 107577
c) Retail Banking 28575 35049
d) Other Banking Operations 119 508
Total 113714 143726
3. Unallocated Expenses 33659 49841
4. Operating Profit 80055 93885
5. Provisions & Contingencies 55421 45215
6. Income Tax -5429 14747
7. Extra Ordinary Profit/ Loss
8. Net Profit 30063 33923
Other Information:
9. Segment Assets
a) Treasury 2884926 2293817
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 4841480 4290110
c) Retail Banking 1654968 1397748
d) Other Banking Operations 0 0
e) Unallocated Assets 69541 66115
Total Assets 9450915 8047790
10. Segment Liabilities
a) Treasury 2746402 2168713
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 4609010 4056129
c) Retail Banking 1575503 1321516
d) Other Banking Operations 0 0
e) Unallocated Liabilities 18872 41022
Total Liabilities 8949787 7587380

ote: For the purpose of segment reporting in terms ot AS-T17 of ICAI and as prescribed in RBI guidelines,
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ﬂﬁfé’@‘fﬁaﬁﬁv—dﬁo‘mwé‘\mf&o Q) oy gRETE 1) SRUNC@2AT® SfaTr 41 geax dfe 2 o= dfem aRared
2| PRURC@TSH TN Hedr dfhT T & Hag H W Mored] yRum] MR d20m <adieii &1 34 @i # g My ol &
MR W aiffgd fomam war 2|
STl Eel ¥ Heafdra oMk dorm <adm 3fefed @ 8 81 d2f Sfal IR I UcIerd: S-% Haftd 9 81| Sd! 3fde JAqT 31uTd
g AT & AR W far M 2 |

HTOT &g s oNfde s
g5 1 faey ¥ g N IRar T8 2, safory HIMfore We B SR o9 B asdhdl gl 2 |

10.6 &W@T AP 18 - watdd urdl ypdiaeor
q& gee- Aty

2 LAl g faTi® 30.01.2014 T& 37edel U4 ey e
3 SifdevdR g faTi® 04.02.2014 ¥ MeFeT Ud ey e
s L& 37w fadT® 31.05.2013 TF PRGN [3H
3 GO HAR oI faei® 05.08.2013 ¥ FRIGNT Haw®
7 fPeIR FAR A faei® 05.08.2013 ¥ FRIGNT Haw®
$. Y U9uA JAfe@IRAl ®1 fear war ulRsifie
. ol 4.

2013—14 2012-13
(1.)50 SIfieRaR RiE, et v vay feers 2.84 RIUEE
(2.) = fHeIR HaR G0, PN feerd 10.12 EGE]
(3.)0 g% HAR S, FRIGRY faw® 10.67 BIUGE
() = 101 g, 4d sree Ud vay evs 15.05 19.04
G @amHe, @ FRISR fees 2.87 19.40

@) yE y§uq AfreRal vd Sqa A§ftr & fag g o

fqa=u feTi® 31.03.2014 fei% 31.03.2013
Ecaniieaul I I

) wHfad uidt &1 am—wags arfivr 9% (FEAi)

TH—18 @ URT 9 H §HIT UIet & e H, Sl Iod (af3a Semi & o= wwafa wifiéal, S g g1 81 faf3a a1 Sl
2, & 121 fhU Y o9—<F &I Udhed IR H Ge odl © | 37 HedN1 % & A12F fhy 7Y oF—a &I Udhed Fel fhar 1 2 |

10.7 ufd 2rere 3mer (wee-20)

(T IS H)
faazor 2013—14 2012—13

3fdad! IR IRST g R B

e FHof AW (F. IRIS H) 27757 317.46
3fdadt IRRT B WIRT T

=T (HRrS H) 25.97 2353
MR TG &H &I TS 7T IR 3 (J0) 10.69 13.49
ufa AR 3ifea o7 (6) 10.00 10.00
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the business of the Bank has been classified into four segments i.e. a) Treasury Operations, b) Corporate/

Wholesale Banking, c) Retail Banking and d) Other Banking Operations.

Segmental Revenue, Results, Assets & Liabilities in respect of Corporate / Wholesale and Retail Banking
segment have been bifurcated on the basis of exposure to these segments.
Assets & Liabilities wherever directly related to segments have been accordingly allocated to segments
and wherever not directly related have been allocated on the basis of pro-rata segment revenue.

Part B : Geographical Segment :

Since the Bank does not have any overseas branch, reporting under Geographic Segment is not applicable.

10.6 AS 18 — Related Party Disclosures
Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. D.P. Singh Chairman and Managing Director up to 30.01.2014
Mr. Jatinderbir Singh Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f. 04.02.2014
Mr. P.K.Anand Executive Director up to 31.05.2013
Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain Executive Director w.e.f. 05.08.2013
Mr. Kishore Kumar Sansi Executive Director w.e.f. 05.08.2013

a) Remuneration Paid to Key management personnel :

(Rs. in lacs)
Name and Designation 2013-14 2012-13
Mr. Jatinderbir Singh, Chairman & Managing Director 2.84 N.A.
Mr. Kishore Kumar Sansi, Executive Director 10.12 N.A.
Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain, Executive Director 10.67 N.A.
Mr. D.P. Singh, Ex-Chairman and Managing Director 15.05 19.04
Mr. P.K Anand, Ex-Executive Director 2.87 19.40

b) Loans granted to Key Managerial Personnel & their relatives:

Particulars As on 31.03.2014 As on 31.03.2013
Loans outstanding NIL NIL
c) Name of Related Party Satluj Gramin Bank (An Associate)

Para 9 of AS 18 - Related Party Disclosures exempts state controlled enterprises from making any disclosures pertaining
to their transactions with other related parties which are also state controlled. Hence, the transactions with the

associated bank have not been disclosed.
10.7 AS 20 - Earning Per Share(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 2013-14 | 2012-13
Net Profit After tax available for equity Shareholders 277.57 317.46
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares in crore 25.97 23.53
Basic and Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) 10.69 13.49
Nominal Value per Share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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BT ATTD2 1- FAfPa o gt

% @& U HIg afeqs! g1 8, oI JEMES 21 N T8l 2

B@T ATTF 22 - 3T UT Fel 59 dedTheT

10.9.1 P o TP AG—SIET H YRAT TTe] AWTHR GeIF gRT ORI ol AFD 22, "3 TR BRI BT AGiDhT Bl

aruTer fama & |
10.9.2 ARAAT B ARTAT / IATA & T TSh [THIIER

(BT PRISH)
IRAfra &3 smiRaat ITIRTa B IATY
fawa 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

1. | IR IRl R eI I I 232 2.02
2. | Sufa & offe ufonforil w <3 92 I I 166.16 119.36
3. | R 36 1(8) & fia favy Rad I N 2350 N
4. | 999 HIEA TG UTaET 55.43 10.69 I I
5. | orufyqa =it 59.61 NGl NGl NGl
Easd 115.04 10.69 191.98 121.38

10.9.3 faftrp—ax faRms=l @1 T & MR W T T AT PR & o W 1T IR BT TUET & WYY iR R 96

q faR # A & T IEER FUU 403.80 FIS ([@ a9 & & 277.77 IRIQ) Bl ART & JRAMNT R AT &
famfor @ mravae & /AT WA |

10.9.4 fafer® faRIvE! @1 1T T Igae RIS AU BT &9 H I 8¢ 98 §RT DY, bl 9ffthe F= dor

I B & UTae= &I qIie J=7 137 |

10.9.5 3T TAHIRAT @1 fAuifge ol yomell qem o favvsi &1 @ & JguR faarfia smex, e o) @1 g AT

10.9.6

10.9.7

BT 477.79 PRIS (Gd 9§ H . 261.07 HRIS) B AT BT UIGe= &1 fbar T 2 |

IRAR RSd 9% @ Qi@ 20.12.2013 & gRUF 4. SEIRIST 7. ddL. §1_9 77 /21.04.018 /2013—14 & AR MIIR
et 1961 @ &RT 36 (1)(VII) & 3fid fawy Rerd w smeerfird &x <gar fRafRa & 12 8 | 9rda Rerd 9
% URUF H AT 6. 22.43 FRIS DI AR & FI 31 A, 2013 BT A9 Ro1d R mRAfid R <uar FaiRa w=a
BU, Sl fob A1 @i H wife 81 8, I 59 Rojd 3 e FHRISTT HR forar i € |

PR WRIARIEIRIT & AFAR % - a7e] a9 & oy e 8g Urae™ 1 |IvET & oy smaa sifafeas,
1961 & €T 36 (1)(VII) & fafd Helfaal &7 <mar fHar & S & ©.216.70 are & TR—Umor I &7 9
G ST & e H 2 | IMAHR AR, 1961 B oRT 36 (1)(VII) H TOEIHR0T 2 & ¥12F ufda &Ry 36 (1)(Vlla)
& TR IR—TTHIT AFYAT BT 37eMed 0T 92 @A H TheH ¥ Hafid &, ] 78l 2 | IRUTRI®Y 3R & Igar
AT dheudm X (He) B U . 68.10FRIS 2T AT I MR . 59.61 TS o H Ifg g8 ¥ IR
Haell BT HRATS H HUR HaHd Heldl & ad R g6 od & oY Yae AT © |

10.10 AW AP 23— FHTHT facia faaPET § e wens § ffdw 8g dwied

% @ U fHdl UHR 31 afeqsy 98 ¥ | o1 Yo 23 N 78 ¥ |

10.11 oI@T HHH 26— 3 MRT
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g o ga fear o a1 uftrey ditediR 9% # & R e man g o fe e gwaef ¥ faefa fear
AT & | 370 WTCdIR &I AN 6 & URDTed 3 &7 Maedd e 8 | o9 & Aoredy onfe qen am—a1fy @
¥ efd =g Y ¥ aaifed fear mar 2|
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10.8 AS 21 - Consolidated Financial Statement
The Bank does not have any subsidiary and as such AS 21 is not applicable.

10.9 AS 22 — Accounting for Taxes on Income

10.9.1

10.9.2

10.9.3

10.9.4

10.9.5

10.9.6

10.9.7

10.10

10.11

The Bank has accounted for Income Tax in compliance with Accounting Standard-22
'Accounting for taxes on Income’ issued by ICAI.

Major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities are as under:

Head Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liabilities

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

1 | Depreciation on Fixed Assets Nil Nil 2.32 2.02

2 | Interest accrued but not due on Nil Nil 166.16 119.36
securities

3 | Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) Nil Nil 23.50 Nil

4 | Provision for wage revision 55.43 10.69 Nil Nil

5 | Brought forward losses 59.61 Nil Nil Nil

Total 115.04 10.69 191.98 121.38

Based on the opinion of tax expert, the bank has considered the difference between accounting income
and computation of taxable income on valuation of securities as permanent and accordingly, deferred tax
liability of Rs 403.80 crore (Previous Year Rs.277.77 crore) has not been considered necessary.

Provision for Income Tax, Deferred Tax and Fringe Benefit Tax held by the Bank is considered adequate
taking into account the opinion of legal experts and favorable judicial pronouncements.

No provision has been considered necessary in respect of disputed demands of Income Tax, Fringe Benefit
Tax and Interest Tax aggregating to Rs 477.79 crore Previous year (Rs.261.07 crore) in view of decisions
of appellate authorities / judicial pronouncements / opinions of legal experts.

Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI’s) Circular No. DBOD. No. BP. BC.77/ 21.04.018/2013-14 dated
20.12.2013, Deferred Tax Liability on Special Reserve under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
has been created. As required by the said RBI Circular, the expenditure, amounting to Rs.22.43 crore due to
creation of DTL on Special Reserve as at March 31, 2013, not previously charged to Profit & Loss Account,
has now been adjusted directly from the Reserves. Had this amount been charged to Profit & Loss Account
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India, the amount of Profit for the year
had been lower for the year by such amount.

In computing the provision for Income Tax for the current Financial Year, based on the opinion of tax
consultant, the bank has claimed the deduction under section 36(1)(vii) of the Income Tax Act 1961 in respect
of write off of non-rural advances of Rs. 216.70 crore without adjusting the same with the unexhausted
provision outstanding under section 36(1)(viia) of the Income Tax Act 1961 holding that proviso read with
Explanation-2 to section 36(1)(vii) is not applicable to the bad debts written off of non-rural advances. This
has resulted into increase in Profit after Tax, MAT credit entitlement by Rs.68.10 crore and Deferred Tax
Asset by Rs.59.61 crore. The management is hopeful of enforcing its claim of above referred deduction in
tax litigation.

AS 23 — Accounting for Investments in Associates in consolidated Financial Statements
The Bank does not have any subsidiary and as such AS 23 is not applicable.
AS 26 - Intangible Assets
The application software in use in the Bank has been developed in house and has evolved over a period

of time. Hence ,the costs of software is essentially part of Bank’s operational expenses like wages etc. and
as such are charged to the respective heads of expenditure in the Profit and Loss Account.
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10.12

10.13
10.13.1

uony ws g §6

oG] H 28— IR & 3ol B Geell ol

oGl qFS 28— § uR¥IT 96 g1 aTRd Rer nRaat &1 “fFofag enRaat” &1 mar & 7 & “9od fAfia
SHIEAT | YSET B XA B IFAR- 31.03.2014 TH GHY 01 F ReR arioiep Rl o1g 781 2 | 3=y aniaai &
I B 3 Rerfd #§ Y Rord 9 g1 MuiRa iy |l & dgd uraw & ey v &

TGN AHH—29 BT JUTA- UG, FHRHAD SIATAT IR ATHAD JRIAT BT AT

Gl AFH — 29 B AGAR, IRA Q! AEHR HRIF §RT SR HTaer=l H AThRAS IRl AR ATHRAD
MRl 7] d& 1 71 & oy @18 wraa= 981 o 2 -
gd geHmRl gRT U~ $Is AT ST RTaHT TeHT A1 9 gedr 9wy § g9 arell fel sifaf¥ea gear w R
2, gt d% & A= # 8 2 &R
T8 ¥ S~ Dl Iaa= <Idl forge) Ugarr F8f a7 & Fifh—
IE G99 T8 © f dreHl & sfitaa & onfdie o & <@t &1 e fear s a@

ar

* Sar R @ AU SIgHT STidT TEF ST e 2 |

VY SIARN T MMHRAD AARN & U H ReTe fHar M1 8 | 961 iderd fARaR fhar Srar 2 &R <garh &
Hael a8 ¥ R4 e o &1 uRereror Biam ® &1 wraer= fovar war g Riar fagy uRRerforat # Set favaw-ia
AT @ ugET g B b |

fawi faa=forl & nafve Rl @ Ugam Tl @ S & Jifd A HH ugard # 9 o1+ arell g # uRafdd &
Tl § |

10.13.2 ATHRAP <garel GqEll graem = & ge—de

(5. BRIST #)
RS Wer g3t & <IkE URaes | 93t & QIR Peld) 37T

AT 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 2012—13 2013—14 | 2012—13 | 2013—14 | 2012—13
= 9% "o & 18.16 10.18 8.70 8.09 0.25 0.11 26.61 18.16
sffigGfa 8l &1 8, &

foeg <rar

gaids 9 TTRST 3.87 3.36 3.00 1.60 0.43 1.09 6.44 3.87
EEAIRT G~ Ta T NSl NSl Ta NSl Ta NSl

10.13.3 37T FEaYYf UTaaTel P FeET F st a1 fFed I Juga TS ue uwe T o ¥
1.1 sfoReT gacieer

(& IS H)

< B Ed & @y Y @ siasia 2013—14 2012—13
I 3R SMHAS Al &1 <Rt
R—frerfea &1t &g oraem™ 512.91 255.55
AMS ARAAT TG IR 11.19 152.88
3iferd el # Fekdl g WA gAfed (AH) 9.01 50.80
R—feqrfea fyaeii &g wraem 8.42 0.00
fraen # s &g uraue —3.11 —18.16

SREICEE] 15.79 11.09
FR—{AgR 2 wrau=
ERRIEIEa 186.54 149.66
I R —57.25 —2.91
SEIRIEN 0.48 055
R[ATH dHBfcad B F0T U —186.54 0.00
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10.12  Accounting Standard 28 - Impairment of Assets

Fixed Assets possessed by Bank are treated as 'Corporate Assets’” and not 'Cash Generating Units’” as defined
by AS-28. In the opinion of the Management, there is no impairment of the 'Fixed Assets’ of material amount
as of 31.03.2014, requiring recognition in terms of AS-28 issued by the ICAL. The impairment of other assets
has been provided for as per Prudential Norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.

10.13  Accounting Standard 29 - Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
10.13.1 As per AS-29 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered

a)

b)

Accountants of India, the Bank recognizes no provision for -
Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Bank, or
Any present obligation from the past events but is not recognized because
= [t is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
= A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are recorded as contingent liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except
in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realized.

10.13.2 Movement of Provision against Contingent Liabilities:.

(Rs. in crore)

Opening Balance Additions during the | Reduction during the Closing Balance
Particulars year year
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 | 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
Claims against the Bank 18.16 10.18 8.70 8.09 0.25 0.11 26.61 18.16
not acknowledged as Debt
Invoked Bank Guarantees 3.87 3.36 3.00 1.60 0.43 1.09 6.44 3.87
L.C Devolved Nil NIL Nil NIL Nil NIL NIl NIL

10.13.3 Movement of other significant provisions has been disclosed at the appropriate places in the

Notes forming part of the accounts.

11.1 Additional disclosures: (Rupees in crore)

Break up of 'Provisions & Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in 2013-14 2012-13
Profit & Loss Account

Provision for Non Performing Advances 512.91 255.55
Provision for Standard Assets 11.19 152.88
Provision for diminution in FV Restructured (Standard) 9.01 50.80
Provision for Non Performing Investments 8.42 0.00
Provision for Depreciation in the value of Investments -3.11 -18.16
Other Provisions 15.79 11.09

Provision for Taxation:

Current Tax 186.54 149.66
Deferred Tax -57.25 -2.91
Wealth Tax 0.48 0.55
MAT Credit Entitlement -186.54 0.00
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0.17

Rl

1)

499.92

599.63

11.2 3%aTE UTaeTell 7 ¥c-9¢

(5. IS )

2013—14

2012—13

37T Y

Y & IR RaEH

9 ® TR MER § IRMEe

sfcr 2

glicliale

glielielle

11.3 3nefera forfer & smaeor

R AfAftedl & IR ®1 GIAH d-- & oIy M AR (e @d 9 . 3 i (Ueel ¥ &. 0 A/@) 31 117 o7

3TexuT fhar AT |

11.4 amgs R

2013—14

2012—13

I & IRY H <ifed Rreraar &7 I

8

96

67

9 & IR I Rrraar &1 T

4

1810

1567

99 & IR AueE TS Rerd o g

S

1871

1538

9 & T # cifed Rreradl B T

)

35

96

11.5 Sfder reure grer ol FTae

2013—14

2011—12

9 & IR | IR—Tharf~aq it & I

@)
) 9§ B SR SBIT AP RT MU AW BT T

M 9 3 SR fharfeaa ot &1 v

) Y & 3fd § difed IR—Tharf~aa it @1 g=r

11.6 waAT3iT, 31f3raiT, wiiRadt U war.dt.u. &r dgidpeor
11.6.1 TAT3T BT D SIDBYOT

(5. aIs #)

31.03.2014

31.03.2013

I IS 20 TGN DI Gl o T

22177.88

16661.05

9% P Hof ST H FEH IS 20 STAIHAIR D
STHT T gfererd

26.17%

23.59%

11.6.2 3IF3rAT Fr Hgrepeor

(5. BT H)

31.03.2014

31.03.2013

T I 20 RO/ TTEDHT D ot AH

14203.61

12307.24

9% @ Gt oW § Fa9 g 20 FORN / TSt o1 1fH &7 ufcrerd

24 .56:

22.21:
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Others 2.48 0.17
Total 499.92 599.63
11.2 Movement of Floating Provisions (Rupees. in crore)
2013-14 2012-13
Opening Balance Nil Nil
Additions during the year Nil Nil
Draw down during the year Nil Nil
Closing Balance Nil Nil

11.3 Draw down from Reserve

A sum of Rs.Nil lacs(previous year Rs. Nil lacs has been drawn from the General Reserve on account of payment

to the claimant of old entries.

11.4 Customer’s Complaints:

2013-14 2012-13
a) | No. of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year 96 67
b) | No. of Complaints received during the year 1810 1567
c) | No. of Complaints redressed during the year 1871 1538
d) |[No. of Complaints pending at the end of the year 35 96
11.5 Awards Passed by the Banking Ombudsman:
2013-14 2012-13
a) | No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year 1 2
b) | No. of Awards passed by Banking Ombudsman during the 5 10
year
c) | No. of Awards implemented during the year 4 1
d) |No. of unimplemented Awards pending at the end of the year 2 1

11.6 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Deposits

(Rupees. In crore)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 22177.88 16661.05
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits 26.17% 23.59%

11.6.2 Concentration of Advances

(Rupees. in crore)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 14203.61 12307.24
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 24.56% 22.21%

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

259



ﬂ v ws e o

11.6.3 wi1fgait o1 Sdieweor
(®. IS H)
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I S 20 R0/ UTEDHT W FHof SREH 16248.41 12604.70
9% & FIOTAT / TTEDI IR ol SIRaH H Fa4 a 20 K0T/ AEDI TR H 28.09% 21.26%
SHRaw &7 ufererd
11.6.4 Ta.dt.w. or Fgtaeor
(. PRISH)
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I 93 IR UAULY. @Al R qGel kg 488.90 321,59

11.7 d59R U T
B.9. a4 S &3 § g afw 7 e ufaea
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
1. P vd Gafea wfcfafeds 332 2.09
2. SET (e Ud oY, 7EgH U9 §S) 6.47 3.24
3. Tar & 3.28 293
4. fHITd S 5.59 252
11.8 Tadiu. & Iar-gera
(. IS H)
fag=or 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
1 3 B Fdhed TAULY. (37T oM 1536.90 763.44
9 & IR YRaEH (A TA.91T.) 1619.61 1093.60
SUAN (B) 3156.51 1857.04
er : 1) e+ 187.19 153.55
i) Igferlt (S=0= wTdl | &I TS Il & JTARTh) 211.32 116.98
iii) 92 @l o e 204.48 4961
SY—ANT @) 602.99 320.14
31 9rd ®1 Gad R (5fa 9) (F-9) 2553.52 1536.90
11.9 =t snfweif, wodie i Trorea
(& TS H)
faazor 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
FHol MRt 148.57 270.97
Bl TAULT. 0 0
A oG 0.57 0.45
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(Rupees. in crore)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 16248.41 12604.70
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to Total Exposure 28.09% 21.26%
of the bank on borrowers/ customers
11.6.4 Concentration of NPAs
(Rupees. in crore)
31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013
Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts 488.90 321.59

11.7

Sector-wise NPAs
S. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in
No. that sector as on
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
1. |Agricultural & allied activities 3.32 2.09
2. | Industry (Micro & Small, Medium and Large) 6.47 3.24
3. | Services 3.28 2.93
4. | Personal Loans 5.59 2.52
11.8 Movement of NPAs
(Rupees. in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Gross NPAs as on 1 April (Opening Balance) 1536.90 763.44
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 1619.61 1093.60
Sub-total (A) 3156.51 1857.04
Less: (i) Up-gradations 187.19 153.55
(ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from 211.32 116.98
up-graded accounts)
(iii) Write-offs 204.48 49.61
Sub-total (B) 602.99 320.14
Gross NPAs as on 31t March (closing balance) (A-B) 2553.52 1536.90

11.9 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

Rupees. in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2013
Total Assets 148.57 270.97
Total NPAs 0 0
Total Revenue 0.57 0.45
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11.10 gover-us & sa¢ yrafera e,
(Buq RIS H)
yrafora g dLd. &1 A
BICH faQw
31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
LA NSl NSl NSl

12- 99%R, 2012 & UHTEY 99 G & @0 WR 3fed nRaat @ wifid & o1 131,63 FRIS (T a9 32.96 HRIE HUY),
% @ ded (Te—8®) ura g 7Y € | AT Gaar & 3rvrd |, I ST uar A8l ST S Gl o7 JNeM’g WU o

JUCTl BT AT B |

13. woremuassh aifferereT, 2006 ot il & steqeTe uscier
e 3R o1 Il A B B TS gt FHfd § Haftrd AT &1 favor

$. | faaor qa i TS

1. e oI I WR < ATl (T I SR Q) 31,/03 /2014 &1 Reafdy & I =
MR el amyfiieral &1 ee § |

2, 3MYfeibal BT a9 2013—14 & R 470 f&d & oramar fHy MY = 3 I NSl
IR & A1 TIUHTAS Sl AT B gRT 16 & FJER BHIGER §RT Uacd
RiskEakuil

3. I H g8 %) D A & oy <7 q2T 11 AToT (ST 37T B fom I T
2 oifed 98 & <R forad fafdr & arerman) afes s afdfem & siqifd
fafde = &1 nfie fe fmr

4. fami® 31,/03 /2014 31 RAT & AR IUfeq ATST FoIT Y & 1T = =

5. IRl auf § T T AfARET AT =1t BI AR, T2t dd [ SuIad < NGl NG
TSl ITAd H Y e B AIRTTIH B ORI 23 F AT FBErd AT JA
$ WU H AR B S U & PR AT ST 2 |

14- <7t a1 Suarer T2 ofl, 3 Bleax IR el ravad off el a¥ & oifdwel @1 g 2raRerd /g aiffga faar mn
gl
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(Rupees. in crore)

Name of the SPV sponsored

Domestic

Overseas

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014

31.03.2013

Nil NIL Nil

Nil

12.  An ad-hoc provision of Rs 131.63 crore(previous year Rs.32.96 crore) has been made to meet the likely liability
arising on account of Wage Revision effective from November 2012. In absence of requisite information, liability
could not be ascertained and has been provisionally provided for.

13. Disclosures in Terms of MSMED Act 2006

Details of information relating to purchase of moveable property from Micro and Small Enterprises:

S. No. Particulars Principal Amount Interest

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) NIL NIL
remaining unpaid to any supplier as on 31/03/2014

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED NIL NIL
Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year 2013-14

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making NIL NIL
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act;

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on 31/03/2014 NIL NIL
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise , for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Act.

14. The figures of the previous year have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary
except where information was not available.
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31 A1 2014 &) GIW 99 & ITAR Dl yars faaofi

(@) uRarer wfafaferay & siaia Ao yaE 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
FAH—EI @I & IER g @ / (1) 3006264 3392202
ARG 2q
I 3R AThR¥s 2 4999155 5996289
qeue (Fae) 237688 229372
et @ fasr iR A —1505 —1239
qrue, TrAITe 2 TEHSIes W & 1727740 1696705
—234960 0
SRS TS SaRET A ey —20000 —20000
R golt # gRad=i & qd uRares o 9714382 11293329
ARG 2q
fRerai 4 gfg / (@) 140886623 75175239
SURI # gfg / (@) —2350084 —8422775
3= <Al H gfg / (&) —2654398 3748637
faaer # gfg / @) —57569407 —24601899
AT # gfg / (F) —63213305 —55859191
31 3Rl H g / (@) —128311 —1628469
uRare= wfafaferal (€) @ Teg gars— 24685500 —259129
@) e nfofafery | 9o vare
et ikl H gfg —581667 —816187
iRl @ fam! TR Ay 1505 1239
gy wfafaferat & F<r varE (@) —580162 —814948
() fa<ia wfafafemt & Aol vare
33T TRT B SR BT (@sdien) (@ifea 1) 212630 198132
SH TR T IR WA 787370 1201868
TSt T @ —2188 —2500
THT 90 SR HIAT 0 0
T G0 HT AT . 0 0
T 90 TR 7S], MG TUE JEUISI3NS —1727740 —1696705
YIogTdIT R ATHIeT —785625 —850770
ATTET 3§ B —133517 —138017
() fa<ha wfafaferat @ F&d) vare —1649070 —1287999
gRare Tfafaferal & ol — 24685500 —259129
foraer nifafafert & A - —580162 —814948
faxirr nifafafert & 9o —1649070 —1287999
qPbal g dPal T ¥ gl - —22456268 —2362076
9% 99 9 dHal (URfS) 40792107 43154183
9% A9 g J@ar (3ffaH) 63248375 40792107
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2014

RACE S

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Net Profit/ (Loss) as per Profit & Loss Account 3006264 3392202
Adjustments for:

Provisions & Contingencies 4999155 5996289
Depreciation (Net) 237688 229372
Profit on sale of assets -1505 -1239
Interest on Bonds, PCPS and IPDI 1727740 1696705
Deffered Tax Liability -234960 0
Corporate Social Responsibility Fund -20000 -20000
Operating Profit before working capital changes 9714382 11293329
Adjustments for:

Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 140886623 75175239
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings -2350084 -8422775
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities -2654398 3784637
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments -57569407 -24601899
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances -63213305 -55859191
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets -128311 -1628469
Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 24685500 -259129
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Fixed Assets -581667 -816187
Profit on sale of assets 1505 1239
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) -580162 -814948
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Equity Shares (IPO) (Face Value) 212630 198132
Share Premium received thereon 787370 1201868
Public Issue Expenses -2188 -2500
Issue of Subordinated Bonds 0 0
Redemption of Subordinated Bonds 0 0
Interest on Bonds, PCPS and IPDI -1727740 -1696705
Dividend on Equity & PNCPS -785625 -850777
Dividend Distribution Tax -133517 -138017
Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C ) -1649070 -1287999
Cash from Operating Activities 24685500 -259129
Cash from Investing Activities -580162 -814948
Cash from Financing Activities -1649070 -1287999
Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 22456268 -2362076
Cash and Bank Balances (Opening) 40792107 43154183
Cash and Bank Balances (Closing) 63248375 40792107
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TaA oRaT TErdt B Rard

Har ¥,

HeMfeH Iregufa HEleay

B ISl YU Ry §% & 31 AT, 2014 B Al f[AaROR 5 Jor.03 a2 59 fAfY o1 w9 gy a%f & fou d%
P ATHEIN @ eI Adhal varg faaxol |ftd ol & Heferd fewforay &1 oiar uRiefur far € | 39 fawia faaxforay
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To

Punjab & Sind Bank e

RIASEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The President of India
Report on the Financial Statements of Punjab & Sind Bank

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Punjab & Sind Bank as at 315 March, 2014, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and Profit and Loss Account and the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Incorporated in these financial statements are the returns of 20 branches audited by us and 441 branches
audited by branch auditors. The branches audited by us and those audited by other branch auditors have been
selected by the Bank in accordance with the guidelines issued to the Bank by the Reserve Bank of India. Also
incorporated in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are the returns from 869 branches which
have not been subjected to audit. These unaudited branches account for 9.60 per cent of advances, 22.86 per
cent of deposits, 5.93 per cent of interest income and 19.67 per cent of interest expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards generally accepted in India and applicable banking laws. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the bank’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank'’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is generally sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of matter:
Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to:

(i) Noteno. 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3 regarding non reconciliation of balances and clearances/identification of outstanding
items in respect of various accounts of income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, the impact of which is
not ascertainable.

(i) Note no. 10.9.3 regarding disputed tax liabilities pending in appeals, the effect of which is not ascertainable.

(iii) Note no.10.9.5 regarding non creation of deferred tax liability of Rs. 477.79 crore in respect of difference
on account of variation on the value of investment as per the books of account and for the income tax
computation considering the difference to be permanent.

(iv) Note no. 10.9.6 to the financial statements, which describes the accounting treatment of the expenditure
on creation of Deferred Tax Liability on Special Reserve under section 36[1](viii) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 as at 31st March 2014, pursuant to RBI’s Circular No. DBOD. No. BP. BC.77/21.04.018/ 2013-14
dated 20th December 2013.

(v) Capital adequacy as per Basel — Il and Basel — Il and other ratios disclosed in the accounts by the bank
are subject to adjustment arising out of the Notes on accounts, accounting policies and our remarks in Para
6 (i) to (iii) above.

(vi) Note no. 10.4.1 regarding deferment, amortization and carry forward of pension and gratuity liability of the
bank pursuant to the exemption granted by Reserve Bank of India to the public sector bank from application
of provisions of Accounting Standard (AS) 15 " Employees Benefits" (revised 2005) vide its circular no.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

10.

given to us we further report that:

Punjab & Sind Bank e

DBOD.BP.BC/80/21.04.018/2010-11 dated 09.02.2011 of Re-opening of pension option to the EmplbYees
of public sector banks and enhancement in gratuity limits — Prudential regulatory treatment.

(vii) Note No0.10.9.7, which describes uncertainty relating to the allowability of claim of bad debts by the
Income Tax Authorities vis- a- vis to the stand taken by the bank based on expert independent opinion.

In our opinion, as shown by books of bank, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

(i) the Balance Sheet, read with the notes thereon is a full and fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary
particulars, is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of state of affairs of the Bank as at
31st March 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India;

(ii) the Profit and Loss Account, read with the notes thereon shows a true balance of profit, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, for the year covered by the account; and

(iii) the Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of

the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraph 1 to 5 above and as required by the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980, read with Notes on Accounts attached
and subject also to the limitations of disclosure required therein, we report that:
(@) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief,

were necessary for the purposes of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.
(b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank.

(c) The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the purposes

of our audit.

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the applicable

accounting standards.

For R. M. Lall & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(R. P. Tewari)
Partner

M. No. 071448
FRN : 000932C

For B. K. Shroff & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(L. K. Shroff)
Partner

M. No. 060742
FRN : 302166E

NEW DELHI
May 10, 2014

For O. P. Tulsyan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rakesh Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 081808

FRN : 500028N

For R. Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Kumar)
Partner

M. No. 090865
FRN : 307069E
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Punjab & Sind Bank e

‘2 Annexure-"A’
- Punjab & Sind Bank

(A Government of India Undertaking)
Head Office: 21-Rajendra Place,
New Delhi-110 008.

FORMAT OF DECLARATION (BY CANDIDATE)

l, son / daughter /wife of Shri a resident of

hereby confirm that:

A) | am a Shareholder holding equity shares of the Bank as on 30" May, 2014 (i.e.), the
Cut-Off date for participating in the Election.

B) *I have special knowledge or practical experience in [ i] agriculture and rural economy, [ii]

banking [iii] co-operation [iv] economics [v] finance [vi] law, [vii]small scale industry, or
[special knowledge of and practical experience of which in the opinion
of Reserve Bank of India would be useful to the Bank] and | represent the interest of the depositors
or farmers, workers and artisans, in terms of Sub-section 3A of Section 9 of the Act and as an
evidence thereof | submit herewith the relevant testimonial and

C) | accept the nominations numbering and

D) | am willing to contest the election for Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, and

E) I am not disqualified from being a Director of the Bank under the provisions of The Banking
Regulation Act 1949, The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1980,
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 as amended and
Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations 2008 and “Fit and Proper’ criteria as laid
down by Reserve Bank of India vide Circular No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/ 2007-08,
47/29.39.001/ 2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC.No. 95/29.39.001/2010-11
dated 23.05.2011.

F) I neither hold any office of profit nor am | an employee of any nationalized bank or State Bank of
India constituted under Sub-Section (1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act 1955, or any
subsidiary bank as defined by Section 3 of the State Bank of India (subsidiary Banks)Act, 1959.

G) | hereby confirm having gone through the contents of the notice dated 19" May 2014 for election
of directors.

H) | undertake to keep the Bank fully informed, as soon as possible, of events, if any, which take
place subsequent to this declaration which are relevant to the information provided hereto and
to execute the deed of covenants upon my election as a director of the Bank.
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

RIASEE

Name

Regd. Folio No.

[If not dematerialized]

DP ID No. & Client ID No.

[If dematerialized]

Place

Date

Signature

Contact No.

Address/email address

(Signature with seal of the Judge, Magistrate,
Registrar/ Sub-Registrar of Assurances or

any other Gazetted Officer or an Officer of

the Reserve Bank of India, Punjab & Sind Bank

or any Nationalised Bank.)

*Delete whichever is not applicable.

The above declaration was signed before me.

Signature with seal& Date.
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Punjab & Sind Bank e

RACE S

Annexure-"B’

Name of Bank : PUNJAB & SIND BANK

Declaration and Undertaking by Director*

(with enclosures as appropriate as on )

Personal details of director

a. | Full name

b Date of Birth

c. | Educational Qualifications

d. | Relevant Background and Experience

e. | Permanent Address

f. Present Address

g. | E-mail Address / Telephone Number

h. | Permanent Account Number under the Income Tax Act

and name and address of Income Tax Circle

Relevant knowledge and experience (Refer Section 9(3-A)
of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980

Any other information relevant to Directorship of the Bank

Relevant Relationships of director

a. | List of Relatives if any who are connected with the Bank
(Refer Section 6 and Schedule 1A of the Companies Act, 1956)
b. | List of entities if any in which he/she is considered as being
interested (Refer Section 299(3)(a) and Section 300 of the
c. | List of entities in which he/she is considered as holding substantial
interest within the meaning of Section 5(ne) of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 proposed and existing
d. | Name of Bank in which he/she is or has been a member of the board (giving
details of period during which such office was held)
e. | Fund and non-fund facilities, if any, presently availed of by him/her and/or by

entities listed in Il (b) and (c) above from the bank

Cases, if any, where the director or entities listed in Il (b) and (c) above are in
default or have been in default in the past in respect of credit facilities obtained
from the bank or any other bank.
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Punjab & Sind Bank e

RASE

Records of professional achievements

1
a. Professional achievements relevant

V. Proceedings, if any, against the director

a. If the director is a member of a professional association/ body, details of
disciplinary action, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in conviction in
the past against him/her or whether he/she has been banned from entry of at
any profession/occupation at any time.

b. Details of prosecution, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in conviction
in the past against the director and/or against any of the entities listed in Il (b)
and (c) above for violation of economic laws and regulations

C. Details of criminal prosecution, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in
conviction in the past against the director

d. Whether the director attracts any of the disqualifications envisaged under
Section 274 of the Company’s Act 1956?

e. Has the director or any of the entities at Il (b) and (c) above been subject to
any investigation at the instance of Government department or agency?

f. Has the director at any time been found guilty of violation of rules/regulations/
legislative requirements by customs/ excise /income tax/foreign exchange /
other revenue authorities, if so give particulars

g. Whether the director at any time come to the adverse notice of a regulator
such as SEBI, IRDA, DCA.
(Though it shall not be necessary for a candidate to mention in the column about

orders and findings made by regulators which have been later on reversed / set
aside in toto, it would be necessary to make a mention of the same, in case the

reversal / setting aside is on technical reasons like limitation or lack of juris-
diction, etc, and not on merit. If the order of the regulator is temporarily stayed
and the appellate / court proceedings are pending, the same also should be
mentioned).

V. Any other explanation / information in regard to items I to Ill and
Other information considered relevant for judging fit and proper

Undertaking

| confirm that the above information is to the best of my knowledge and belief true and complete. | undertake to keep
the bank fully informed, as soon as possible, of all events which take place subsequent to my appointment which are
relevant to the information provided above. | also undertake to execute the deed of covenant required to be executed by
all directors of the bank.

Place : Signature of director

Date :

VI. Remarks of Nomination Committee of the Bank

Place : Signature

Date :
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Punjab & Sind Bank e

‘2 Annexure-"A’
- Punjab & Sind Bank

(A Government of India Undertaking)
Head Office: 21-Rajendra Place,
New Delhi-110 008.

FORMAT OF DECLARATION (BY CANDIDATE)

l, son / daughter /wife of Shri a resident of

hereby confirm that:

A) | am a Shareholder holding equity shares of the Bank as on 30" May, 2014 (i.e.), the
Cut-Off date for participating in the Election.

B) *I have special knowledge or practical experience in [ i] agriculture and rural economy, [ii]

banking [iii] co-operation [iv] economics [v] finance [vi] law, [vii]small scale industry, or
[special knowledge of and practical experience of which in the opinion
of Reserve Bank of India would be useful to the Bank] and | represent the interest of the depositors
or farmers, workers and artisans, in terms of Sub-section 3A of Section 9 of the Act and as an
evidence thereof | submit herewith the relevant testimonial and

C) | accept the nominations numbering and

D) | am willing to contest the election for Director of Punjab & Sind Bank, and

E) I am not disqualified from being a Director of the Bank under the provisions of The Banking
Regulation Act 1949, The Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1980,
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1980 as amended and
Punjab & Sind Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations 2008 and “Fit and Proper’ criteria as laid
down by Reserve Bank of India vide Circular No. DBOD. No. BC. N0.46/29.39.001/ 2007-08,
47/29.39.001/ 2007-08, both dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD. No. BC.No. 95/29.39.001/2010-11
dated 23.05.2011.

F) I neither hold any office of profit nor am | an employee of any nationalized bank or State Bank of
India constituted under Sub-Section (1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act 1955, or any
subsidiary bank as defined by Section 3 of the State Bank of India (subsidiary Banks)Act, 1959.

G) | hereby confirm having gone through the contents of the notice dated 19" May 2014 for election
of directors.

H) | undertake to keep the Bank fully informed, as soon as possible, of events, if any, which take
place subsequent to this declaration which are relevant to the information provided hereto and
to execute the deed of covenants upon my election as a director of the Bank.
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Punjab & Sind Bank ﬂ

RIASEE

Name

Regd. Folio No.

[If not dematerialized]

DP ID No. & Client ID No.

[If dematerialized]

Place

Date

Signature

Contact No.

Address/email address

(Signature with seal of the Judge, Magistrate,
Registrar/ Sub-Registrar of Assurances or

any other Gazetted Officer or an Officer of

the Reserve Bank of India, Punjab & Sind Bank

or any Nationalised Bank.)

*Delete whichever is not applicable.

The above declaration was signed before me.

Signature with seal& Date.
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RACE S

Annexure-"B’

Name of Bank : PUNJAB & SIND BANK

Declaration and Undertaking by Director*

(with enclosures as appropriate as on )

Personal details of director

a. | Full name

b Date of Birth

c. | Educational Qualifications

d. | Relevant Background and Experience

e. | Permanent Address

f. Present Address

g. | E-mail Address / Telephone Number

h. | Permanent Account Number under the Income Tax Act

and name and address of Income Tax Circle

Relevant knowledge and experience (Refer Section 9(3-A)
of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980

Any other information relevant to Directorship of the Bank

Relevant Relationships of director

a. | List of Relatives if any who are connected with the Bank
(Refer Section 6 and Schedule 1A of the Companies Act, 1956)
b. | List of entities if any in which he/she is considered as being
interested (Refer Section 299(3)(a) and Section 300 of the
c. | List of entities in which he/she is considered as holding substantial
interest within the meaning of Section 5(ne) of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 proposed and existing
d. | Name of Bank in which he/she is or has been a member of the board (giving
details of period during which such office was held)
e. | Fund and non-fund facilities, if any, presently availed of by him/her and/or by

entities listed in Il (b) and (c) above from the bank

Cases, if any, where the director or entities listed in Il (b) and (c) above are in
default or have been in default in the past in respect of credit facilities obtained
from the bank or any other bank.
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Punjab & Sind Bank e

RASE

Records of professional achievements

1
a. Professional achievements relevant

V. Proceedings, if any, against the director

a. If the director is a member of a professional association/ body, details of
disciplinary action, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in conviction in
the past against him/her or whether he/she has been banned from entry of at
any profession/occupation at any time.

b. Details of prosecution, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in conviction
in the past against the director and/or against any of the entities listed in Il (b)
and (c) above for violation of economic laws and regulations

C. Details of criminal prosecution, if any, pending or commenced or resulting in
conviction in the past against the director

d. Whether the director attracts any of the disqualifications envisaged under
Section 274 of the Company’s Act 1956?

e. Has the director or any of the entities at Il (b) and (c) above been subject to
any investigation at the instance of Government department or agency?

f. Has the director at any time been found guilty of violation of rules/regulations/
legislative requirements by customs/ excise /income tax/foreign exchange /
other revenue authorities, if so give particulars

g. Whether the director at any time come to the adverse notice of a regulator
such as SEBI, IRDA, DCA.
(Though it shall not be necessary for a candidate to mention in the column about

orders and findings made by regulators which have been later on reversed / set
aside in toto, it would be necessary to make a mention of the same, in case the

reversal / setting aside is on technical reasons like limitation or lack of juris-
diction, etc, and not on merit. If the order of the regulator is temporarily stayed
and the appellate / court proceedings are pending, the same also should be
mentioned).

V. Any other explanation / information in regard to items I to Ill and
Other information considered relevant for judging fit and proper

Undertaking

| confirm that the above information is to the best of my knowledge and belief true and complete. | undertake to keep
the bank fully informed, as soon as possible, of all events which take place subsequent to my appointment which are
relevant to the information provided above. | also undertake to execute the deed of covenant required to be executed by
all directors of the bank.

Place : Signature of director

Date :

VI. Remarks of Nomination Committee of the Bank

Place : Signature

Date :
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Listing Agreement : Claue 31

Form A

Format of covering letter of the Annual Audit Report to be filed with the Stock Exchanges

1. | Name of the Company

Punjab & Sind Bank

2. Annual financial statements | 31 March 2014
for the year ended
3. | Type of Audit Observations | Unqualified
4. Frequency of Observation Not Applicable
LA
5.

M. No. 071448
FRN : 000932C

For B. KShroff & Co.

FRN 302166E

Place: New Delhi
Date : 10.05.2014

/
[I.S.Bhatia]
General Manager(AccouT;

14
Moo
[Mahesh Gupta]
Chairman Audit Committee

FRN - 500028N

4 Clade)

For R. Kotha r-“‘r«.- .
Chartered/ACkt ants

\

. 5
[Jatinderbir Singh ] /
M U Chairman & Managing Director
(Rajesh Ki
Partner

FRN : 307069E




